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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

All statements in this report, other than those relating to historical facts, are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of federal securities laws. Forward-looking statements can generally be identified by their use of terms such as “anticipate,”
“believe,” “confident,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “aim,” “seek,” “target,” “plan,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “project,” “forecast,” “predict,” “could,” “should,” and similar expressions including references to assumptions. Forward-looking statements are
not guarantees of future performance and are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, which could cause actual results to differ materially from such statements. Forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, statements about future financial and operating results, future strategic plans and objectives, and expected market or macroeconomic trends. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those presented or implied in the forward-looking statements in this report include, without limitation:

* the possibility that the Company may be unable to achieve expected benefits, synergies and operating efficiencies in connection with the sale of the Industrial Motors and Generators businesses, the acquisition of Altra Industrial Motion
Corp. (the "Altra Transaction"), and the merger with the Rexnord Process & Motion Control business (the “Rexnord PMC business”) within the expected time-frames or at all and to successfully integrate Altra Industrial Motion Corp. (“Altra”)
and the Rexnord PMC business;

* the Company’s substantial indebtedness as a result of the Altra Transaction and the effects of such indebtedness on the Company’s financial flexibility;

* the Company'’s ability to achieve its objectives on reducing its indebtedness on the desired timeline or at all;

* dependence on key suppliers and the potential effects of supply disruptions;

¢ fluctuations in commodity prices and raw material costs as a result of, among other things, changes to trade policies, imposition of tariffs, and other governmental regulations affecting trade;

* any unforeseen changes to or the effects on liabilities, future capital expenditures, revenue, expenses, synergies, indebtedness, financial condition, losses and future prospects;

+ unanticipated operating costs, customer loss and business disruption or the Company'’s inability to forecast customer needs;

* the Company's ability to retain key executives and employees;

* uncertainties regarding the Company's ability to execute its restructuring/strategic plans within expected costs and timing or at all;

* challenges to the tax treatment that was elected with respect to the merger with the Rexnord PMC business and related transactions;

* actions taken by competitors and their ability to effectively compete in the increasingly competitive global industries and markets;

* the Company's ability to develop new products based on technological innovation, such as the Internet of Things and artificial intelligence, and marketplace acceptance of new and existing products;

* dependence on significant customers and distributors;

* risks associated with climate change, including unexpected weather events in markets in which we do business, and uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to deliver on its sustainability commitments and/or to meet related investor,
customer and other third party expectations relating to the Company's sustainability efforts and risks associated with rapidly evolving sustainability regulations;

« Changes to and uncertainty in trade policy, including proposed tariffs on imports into the US from Canada, Mexico and China, or tariff and import/export regulations or other trade restrictions imposed by the US or other governments;

« risks associated with global manufacturing, including risks associated with public health crises and political, societal or economic instability, including instability caused by ongoing geopolitical conflicts;

« issues and costs arising from the integration of acquired companies and businesses;

« prolonged declines or disruptions in one or more markets, including disruptions caused by labor disputes or other labor activities, natural disasters, terrorism, acts of war, international conflicts, pandemics and political and government
actions;

« risks associated with excess or obsolete inventory charges, including related write-offs or write-downs;

+ economic changes in global markets, such as reduced demand for products, currency exchange rates, inflation rates, interest rates, recession, government policies, including policy changes affecting taxation, trade, tariffs, import/export
regulations, immigration, customs, border actions and the like, and other external factors that the Company cannot control;



product liability, asbestos and other litigation, or claims by end users, government agencies or others that products or customers' applications failed to perform as anticipated;
unanticipated liabilities of acquired businesses;

unanticipated adverse effects or liabilities from restructuring activities, business optimization initiatives, business exits or divestitures;

the Company's ability to identify and execute on future mergers and acquisitions (“M&A") opportunities, or other strategic transactions;

the impact of such M&A or other transactions on the Company's results, operations and financial condition, including the impact from costs to execute and finance any such transactions;
unanticipated costs or expenses that may be incurred related to product warranty issues, recalls or reworks;

infringement of intellectual property by third parties, challenges to intellectual property, and claims of infringement on third party technologies;

risks related to foreign currency fluctuations or changes in global commodity prices or interest rates;

effects on earnings of any significant impairment of goodwill;

losses from failures, breaches, attacks or disclosures involving information technology infrastructure and data;

costs and unanticipated liabilities arising from rapidly evolving laws and regulations, including data privacy laws, labor and employment laws, environmental laws and regulations, and tax laws and regulation; and
risks associated with stock price volatility;

and other risks and uncertainties including, but not limited, to those described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and from time to time in other filed reports including the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. For a more detailed description
of the risk factors associated with the Company, please refer to Part I - tem 1A - Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings. Shareholders, potential investors, and other
readers are urged to consider these factors in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included in this report are made only as of
the date of this report, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking information contained in this report to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company” refer collectively to Regal Rexnord Corporation and its subsidiaries.

References in an Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to information contained in the 2025 Proxy Statement, or to information contained in specific sections of the 2025 Proxy Statement, incorporate the information into that Item by reference.
ITEM 1 - BUSINESS

Our Company

Regal Rexnord Corporation (NYSE: RRX) (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) and its associates around the world help create a better tomorrow by providing sustainable solutions that power, transmit and control motion. The Company’s electric
motors and air moving subsystems provide the power to create motion. A portfolio of highly engineered power transmission components and subsystems efficiently transmits motion to power industrial applications. The Company's automation

offering, comprised of controllers, drives, precision motors, and actuators, controls motion in applications ranging from factory automation to precision tools used in surgical applications. We are headquartered in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and have
manufacturing, sales and service facilities worldwide.

Our Company is comprised of three operating segments: Industrial Powertrain Solutions ("IPS"), Power Efficiency Solutions ("PES") and Automation & Motion Control ("AMC").
A description of our three operating segments is as follows:

* The IPS segment designs, produces and services a broad portfolio of highly-engineered transmission products, including mounted and unmounted bearings, couplings, mechanical power transmission drives and components, gearboxes
and gear motors, clutches, brakes, and industrial powertrain components and solutions. Increasingly, the segment produces industrial powertrain solutions, which are integrated sub-systems comprised of Regal Rexnord motors plus the
critical power transmission components that efficiently transmit motion to power industrial applications. The segment serves a broad range of markets that include metals and mining, general industrial, energy, alternative energy, machinery
1 off-highway, discrete automation and other markets.

+ The PES segment designs and produces fractional to approximately 5 horsepower AC and DC motors, electronic variable speed controls, electronic drives, fans and blowers, as well as integrated subsystems comprised of two or more of
these components. The segment's products are used in residential and commercial HVAC, water heaters, commercial refrigeration, commercial building ventilation, pool and spa, irrigation, dewatering, agricultural, conveying and other
applications.

« The AMC segment designs, produces and services conveyor products, conveying automation subsystems, aerospace components, precision motion control solutions, high-efficiency miniature servo motors, controls, drives and linear
actuators, as well as power management products that include automatic transfer switches and paralleling switchgear. The segment sells into markets that include industrial automation, robotics, food and beverage, aerospace, medical,

agricultural and construction, general industrial, data center, and other markets.

On September 23, 2023, we signed an agreement to sell our industrial motors and generators businesses which represented the substantial majority of the Industrial Systems operating segment. The transaction closed on April 30, 2024. See Note
3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Strategy
The Company seeks to create value for its key stakeholders — its customers, its shareholders and its associates — by accelerating profitable growth, raising our margins, generating more cash and increasing our return on invested capital. We also
plan to create significant value for stakeholders by deploying excess capital towards maintaining a strong balance sheet and, over time, funding highly synergistic M&A transactions. The primary aspects of our strategy to achieve our value creation

objectives include:

o L ging our 80/20 Initiatives to profitable growth . Our 80/20 initiatives encompass broadly-applicable, data-driven processes used to identify the select inputs that drive a majority of the related outputs, which we apply




using a highly structured process to end markets, products and customers in order to focus our resources on the most valuable growth opportunities. Our 80/20 initiatives are embedded in the fabric of everything we do as a company, but
particularly in aligning our product and service offerings to what our customers need and value — an alignment we measure on several metrics, but especially on gross margins.

Deploying the Regal Rexnord Business System (“RBS") . RBS is our framework for continuous improvement, and it includes a set of tools, regularly deployed through thousands of targeted, continuous improvement events, or Kaizens, to
systematically remove waste, variation and overburden from all our processes. Our disciplined use of RBS, in combination with our 80/20 initiatives, is critical to our strategy for driving profitable growth.

Raising our exposure to markets with secular growth tailwinds. We are focused on growing our position in prioritized secular growth markets, including some with strong regulatory tailwinds tied to rising energy efficiency requirements.
These include the discrete automation, residential HVAC, food & beverage, aerospace, alternative energy, medical, data center, and pool markets. We plan to direct a significant portion of our growth investments to end markets with secular
growth characteristics.

Maintaining a strong portfolio of highly-engineered products and trusted, long-standing brands. Many of our products are characterized by technology leadership and reflect the Company’s deep application expertise. We regularly invest in
our product portfolio to ensure that we are selling products that our customers value — a strategic directive embodied in our Regal Rexnord value of driving Innovation with Purpose. To this end, we plan to double our new product vitality in
the medium term with the majority of new product introductions focused on serving secular growth markets, expanding our industrial powertrain offering, supporting rising demand for greater energy efficiency, and/or leveraging digital
capabilities to enhance our products' performance and ease-of-use.

Leveraging Regal Rexnord's unrivaled scale and scope to enable unique customer value-propositions. We believe that the broad scope of our product portfolio, plus the scale of our go-to-market capabilities, positions the Company to offer
customers a unique and compelling value proposition. For example, our portfolio breadth makes Regal Rexnord the logical choice for customers to consolidate their power transmission spending, which can create value by raising
convenience, improving accountability, and lowering transaction costs. Similarly, with over two thousand associates engaged in sales or sales support roles, we have broad go-to-market scale and scope, which enhances our ability to serve
our customers, globally. Our scaled go-to-market also allows us to monetize our new products in a highly effective manner, which reduces our time-to-market and can help us gain market share.

Providing a broader offering of increasingly robust solutions. One of our key product-related growth initiatives is integrating multiple products or components into a value-added solution. The significant and distinctive scale and scope of our
portfolio of power transmission components, automation solutions, and premium efficiency electric motors uniquely positions us to provide these solutions across a wide range of applications and end markets. One of our principal strategic
initiatives in this regard is selling industrial powertrains, which combine our high-efficiency electric motors with the critical power transmission components that connect the motor to whatever it is powering, sold as an integrated solution. By
engineering our components into solutions, we are able to provide customers with greater reliability, energy efficiency, ease-of-use, and enhanced data analytics, while often also reducing customers' engineering costs. A dedicated
powertrain solutions team leverages relevant product, technology and application expertise from across our segments to provide a single point of contact for our customers to design and procure these sub-systems. Beyond powertrains,
each of our segments takes the lead in particular end markets to pursue cross-sell opportunities that leverage the broad Regal Rexnord portfolio.

Utilizing our flexible global manufacturing presence. Our global manufacturing base consists of manufacturing locations across North America, Europe, Asia Pacific and the rest of the world. Our ability to shift production between locations
has helped us navigate geopolitical, supply chain and other disruptions, and provide better service levels to our customers, including higher product availability and shorter lead times. We expect our flexible global manufacturing footprint
will provide similar flexibility in the future.

Improving business durability. Improving the durability of our business is about increasing the consistency of our sales performance. While our portfolio already has many characteristics that bolster durability, such as deriving nearly 40% of
our sales through the distributor channel, which largely reflects less cyclical aftermarket transactions, we are also pursuing a number of initiatives aimed at raising durability further. Examples of these initiatives include pursuing original
equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") sales that have higher aftermarket potential, and directing more of our



growth investment to serving markets and applications with secular tailwinds. These initiatives are tied to new solutions, services and channel initiatives. For example, we are strategically investing in secular markets across the portfolio. Our
largest segment, IPS, is targeting first fit sales that have higher aftermarket potential and our PES business is launching new products specifically for the aftermarket.

«  Leveraging our strong free cash flows to enhance our growth profile and raise shareholder returns. We expect to continue to maintain our long track record of strong free cash flow generation, which supports expeditious de-leveraging post
acquisitions, as well as opportunities to fund inorganic growth initiatives, such as M&A activity and stock repurchases. The strong cash flow generating capabilities of our portfolio derive, in part, from a large installed base of our products,

our reputation for strong product quality, our trusted and well-recognized brands, and high levels of like-for-like replacement activity for many of our products in the markets we serve.

* Realizing synergies from our M&A transactions. Our acquisition of Altra and merger with the Rexnord PMC business are generating significant revenue and cost synergies, which we expect will contribute to our organic top line growth and
meaningfully benefit our adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") margins, net income, and free cash flow.

+  Conducting ongoing portfolio assessments. We review our business portfolio on an ongoing basis to ensure that it continues to align with our growth strategy. The Industrial Systems Divestiture is discussed in further detail below.
Acquisition and Divestitures

Industrial Systems Divestiture

On September 23, 2023, the Company signed an agreement to sell its industrial motors and generators businesses which rep the st ial majority of the Industrial Systems operating segment. The transaction closed on April 30, 2024
for a total price of $444.0 million. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Altra Transaction

On October 26, 2022, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Altra Merger Agreement”) by and among us, Altra, and Aspen Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and our wholly owned subsidiary (“Merger Sub”). Altra is a leading
global manufacturer of highly-engineered products and sub-systems in the factory automation and industrial power transmission markets. Regal Rexnord entered into the Altra Merger Agreement because it believes it can recognize substantial
revenue and cost synergies through the combination. In particular, Altra transforms Regal Rexnord's automation portfolio into a global provider with significant sales into markets with secular growth characteristics. Altra also adds significant
capabilities to Regal Rexnord's industrial power transmission portfolio, in particular in clutches and brakes, allowing it to provide a broader offering, and more robust industrial powertrain solutions to its customers.

On March 27, 2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Altra Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Altra (the "Altra Merger"), with Altra surviving the Altra Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Altra Transaction”). The total purchase price for the acquisition of Altra was $5.1 billion. See Part Il - Item 7 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note 3 — Acquisitions and Divestitures of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the Altra Transaction.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We sell our products directly to OEMs, distributors and end-users. We have multiple divisions that promote our brands across their respective sales organizations. These sales organizations consist of varying combinations of our own internal direct
sales people as well as exclusive and non-exclusive manufacturers' representative organizations.

We operate large distribution facilities in Plainfield, Indiana; EI Paso and McAllen, Texas; LaVergne, Tennessee; Florence, Kentucky; and Monterrey and Chihuahua, Mexico which serve as hubs for our North American distribution and logistics
operations. Products are shipped from these facilities to our customers utilizing common carriers. We also operate or partner with numerous warehouse and distribution facilities in our global markets to service the needs of our customers. In
addition, we have select manufacturer representatives' warehouses located in specific geographic areas to serve local customers.



We derive a significant portion of revenue from our OEM customers. Certain portions of our sales are to key OEM customers which makes our relationship with each of these customers important to our business. We have long standing
relationships with these customers and we expect these customer relationships will continue for the foreseeable future. Despite this relative concentration, we had no customer that accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net sales in
2024, 2023 or 2022.

Competition
Industrial Powertrain Solutions and Automation & Motion Control Segments

These markets are fragmented. Many competitors in these markets offer limited product lines or serve specific applications, industries or geographic markets. Other larger competitors offer broader product lines that serve multiple end uses in
multiple geographies. Competition in these segments is based on several factors including quality, lead times, custom engineering capability, pricing, reliability, and customer and engineering support.

Power Efficiency Systems

Electric motor and electronic drive manufacturing is a highly competitive global industry in which there is emphasis on quality, reliability, systems integration and technological capabilities such as energy efficiency, delivery performance, price and
service. We compete with a large number of domestic and international competitors due in part to the nature of the products we manufacture and the wide variety of applications and customers we serve. Many manufacturers of electric motors and
drives operate production facilities globally, producing products for both the US domestic and export markets. Global electric motor manufacturers, particularly those located in Europe, Japan, China, India and elsewhere in Asia, compete with us as
they attempt to expand their market penetration around the world, especially in North America.

ing, and D

We believe that innovation is critical to our future growth and success and are committed to investing in new products, technologies and processes that deliver real value to our customers. Our research and development expenses consist primarily
of costs for (i) salaries and related personnel expenses; (ii) the design and development of new energy efficiency products and enhancements; (iii) quality assurance and testing; and (iv) other related overhead. Our research and development efforts
tend to be targeted toward developing new products that would allow us to gain additional market share, whether in new or existing segments.

We believe the key driver of our innovation strategy is the development of products that include energy efficiency, embedded intelligence and variable speed technology solutions. Each of our business units has its own, as well as shared, product
development and design teams that continuously work to enhance our existing products and develop new products for our growing base of customers that require custom and standard solutions. We believe we have state-of-the-art product
development and testing laboratories. We believe these capabilities provide a significant competitive advantage in the development of high quality motors, electric generators, and mechanical products incorporating leading design characteristics
such as low vibration, low noise, improved safety, reliability, sustainability and enhanced energy efficiency. Increasingly, our research and development and other engineering efforts have focused on smart products that communicate and allow for
monitoring, diagnostics and predictive maintenance.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses
With our emphasis on product development and innovation, our businesses maintain the proprietary nature of our technologies and manufacturing processes through a combination of trademark, patent and trade secret protection. We own a
number of US patents and foreign patents relating to our businesses. While we believe that our patents provide certain competitive advantages, we do not consider any one patent or group of patents essential to our business as a whole. We also

use various registered and unregistered trademarks, and we believe these trademarks are significant in the marketing of most of our products. However, we believe the successful manufacture and sale of our products generally depends more upon
our technological, manufacturing and marketing skills.
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Manufacturing and Operations

We have developed and acquired global operations in locations such as Mexico, China, India and Europe so that we can sell our products in these markets, follow our multinational customers, take advantage of global talent and complement our
flexible, rapid response operations in the US and Canada. Our vertically integrated manufacturing operations, including our own aluminum die casting and steel stamping operations, are an important element of our rapid response capabilities. In
addition, we have an extensive internal logistics operation and a network of distribution facilities with the capability to modify stock products to quickly meet specific customer requirements. This gives us the ability to efficiently and promptly deliver a
customer's unique product to the desired location.

We manufacture a majority of the products that we sell, but also strategically source components and finished goods from an established global network of suppliers. We strategically leverage a global supply chain to reduce our overall costs and
lead-time. We generally maintain a dual sourcing capability to ensure a reliable supply source for our customers, although we do depend on a limited number of single source suppliers for certain materials and components. We regularly invest in
machinery and equipment to improve and maintain our facilities. Base materials for our products consist primarily of steel, copper and aluminum. Additionally, significant components of our product costs consist of bearings, plastic, electronic
assemblies, electronic components, permanent magnets and ferrous and non-ferrous castings.

The Regal Rexnord Business System is our enterprise-wide framework for continuous improvement. With our corporate values as its foundation, the Regal Rexnord Business System enables effective goal alignment, collaborative problem solving
and sharing of best practices, tools, skills and expertise to achieve our objectives. Through relentless commitment to continuous improvement, we strive to elevate safety, quality, delivery, cost and growth performance of the business with the goal
of exceeding the ions of our customers, our i and our shareholders.

Facilities

We have manufacturing, sales and service facilities in the US, Mexico, China, Europe, India, and Australia, as well as a number of other locations throughout the world. Refer to Item 2 - Properties for further information on our facilities by segment.
Our corporate offices are located in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in an approximately 142,000 square foot rented office building and in Rosemont, lllinois in an approximately 20,000 square foot rented office building. We believe our equipment and
facilities are well maintained and adequate for our present needs. However, we continuously evaluate our property portfolio, including properties that have been or will be transferred to us pursuant to acquisitions, to ensure that our facilities are
being used efficiently.

Backlog

Our backlog represents the estimated remaining value of work to be performed under firm contracts. As of December 31, 2024, our backlog was $1,707.0 million, as compared to $1,884.4 million on December 31, 2023. We expect to ship the
majority of the backlog in 2025 and the remaining balance thereafter.

Human Capital Management

As of December 31, 2024, we employed approximately 30,800 associates worldwide, of whom approximately 30,300 were full-time. Of those associates, approximately 8,900 were located in the US, 8,900 in Mexico, 3,700 in China, 3,800 in India
and 5,000 in the rest of the world.

We believe that our associates are our most valuable assets and consider our associate relations to be good. Our objective is to create a high-performing organization by attracting and retaining high-quality, diverse talent and fostering an
environment in which our associates have the opportunity to contribute to the Company’s success, while generating personal satisfaction in their roles. The Company offers market competitive compensation, health and well-being programs,
retirement and other benefits, based on the markets in which we operate to motivate high performance. The Company also provides robust training and professional development opportunities designed to help employees achieve their career
objectives.

A core goal of our performance management process is to develop and maintain a high-performing organization that is well-positioned to meet our business objectives. Creating a high-performing organization requires associates and managers to

exhibit transparency in their day-to-day interactions, and use data to drive decision-making and accountability. In 2024, over 95% of full-time professional associates (excluding those governed by a collective bargaining agreement) participated in
the
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performance management process. Our performance management process focuses on enabling associates and managers to gain alignment through:

« astructured annual goal-setting process where managers and associates work collaboratively to develop specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and time bound ("SMART") goals that align with our overarching business objectives and
our Company values;

«  clear, organization-wide expectations that managers and associates monitor progress toward completion of their SMART goals with regular coaching sessions and periodic evaluations; and
«  anannual performance assessment that provides a direct link between the associate’s pay and performance.

In addition to our focus on performance, we also have a strong commitment to our Company values:

* Integrity
+  Responsibility
+ Diversity, Engagement and Inclusion
*  Customer Success
+  Innovation with Purpose
+  Continuous Improvement
+ Performance
+ Passion to Win
...with a sense of urgency.

We strive to promote these values from the top down. In addition to emphasizing our corporate values as a key part of associate life, we promote a commitment to ethics and compliance among our workforce through our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics (our "Code"). In 2024, 97.2% of our global employees completed training on our Code during our annual training period.

Diversity, engagement and inclusion are rooted in our Company values. We believe that we are at our best when we bring to bear the unique perspectives, experiences, backgrounds and ideas of our associates. We seek a workforce that reflects
the communities in which we operate, and strive to create diverse, engaged and inclusive workplaces where all of our associates have the opportunity to contribute to the Company's success and achieve their professional aspirations.

In late 2023, we conducted an employee engagement survey, and in 2024, we executed a robust communication plan to update our associates on the action plans being taken in response to the results of the survey. Action plans have been
developed at the local level in locations around the globe as we strive to further engage our employees. Additionally, our talent acquisition, development, succession and diversity, engagement and inclusion strategies are critical components of our
people and culture strategy.

As a Company, we believe that our value of responsibility requires community engagement, and we encourage our associates to share in our commitment to the communities where we operate. In addition to the numerous local community service
projects in which our associates participate, we have established a charitable foundation for the purpose of coordinating financial donations to local charities. Our annual charitable giving is administered by an advisory board comprised of our
associates. In 2024, the Company and the Company's Charitable Foundation allocated $1.1 million to support charitable organizations in the communities where our associates live and work across the US, Mexico and Canada.

Environmental Matters

We believe that positive environmental, social and governance ("ESG")-related business practices strengthen our Company by helping us better serve our customers, delivering higher returns for our shareholders, creating more opportunities for our
associates, and making meaningful contributions to the communities in which we operate. In the realm of environmental impact, we have committed to setting both near-term emissions reduction targets, and net-zero targets. In 2022, we announced
our commitment to achieving carbon emission neutrality in our operations across scopes 1 and 2 by 2032, and net-zero across scopes 1, 2, and 3 by 2050. Our focus has been on improving our environmental data reporting and accuracy, outlining
a strategy to achieve our environmental impact goals, defining the relevant metrics to track our progress, and establishing a robust governance structure to help drive accountability.



Information About Our Executive Officers

The names, ages, and positions of our executive officers as of February 21, 2025 are listed below along with their business experience during the past five years. Officers are elected annually by the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board").
There are no family relationships among these officers, nor any arrangements or understanding between any officer and any other persons pursuant to which the officer was elected.

Position

Business Experience and Principal Occupation

Executive Officer Age
Louis V. Pinkham 53
Robert J. Rehard 56
Hugo Dubovoy Jr. 45
Tim A. Dickson 54

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer

Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

Senior Vice President, Chief Digital &
Information Officer

Joined the Company in April 2019, as Chief Executive Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Pinkham was Senior Vice
President of Crane Co. from 2016-2019; prior thereto he served in other leadership roles at Crane Co. from 2012-2016. Prior
to joining Crane Co., Mr. Pinkham was Senior Vice President at Eaton Corporation. From 2000-2012, he held successive and
increasing roles of global responsibility at Eaton. Prior to joining Eaton, Mr. Pinkham held an Engineering and Quality
Manager position at ITT Sherotec and a Process Design Engineer position with Molecular Biosystems, Inc. Mr. Pinkham
serves as a member of the Board of Trustees for the University of Chicago Medical Center, the Museum of Science and
Industry in Chicago, the Manufacturers Alliance for Productivity and Innovation (MAPI), and as a director of Jacobs Solutions
Inc.

Joined the Company in January 2015, as Vice President, Corporate Controller and Principal Accounting Officer and became
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer in April 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Rehard was a Division Controller for
Eaton Corporation and held several other financial leadership positions throughout his career with Baxter, Emerson, Masco
and Cooper. Mr. Rehard started his career with Deloitte & Touche in Costa Mesa, California.

Joined the Company in March 2024, as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Dubovoy was General Counsel of the North American consumer products business of Kimberly-Clark Corporation in his
capacity as Vice President, Deputy General Counsel, from 2022-2024. Previously, Mr. Dubovoy held roles of increasing
responsibility at W.W. Grainger, Inc. from 2013-2022, including, most recently from 2019-2022, Vice President, Corporate
Secretary & Chief Litigation Counsel while also leading the legal support of Grainger's eCommerce businesses in Europe.
Prior to Grainger, Mr. Dubovoy spent nearly a decade at both Baker McKenzie LLP, including as Partner, and Skadden, Arps,
Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, two leading global law firms.

Joined the Company in October 2023, as Vice President, Chief Digital Information Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Dickson was the Chief Information Officer at Generac Power Systems. Prior to that, he held successive and increasing roles
of responsibility such as Interim Chief Information Officer and Strategic Technology Consultant for Astreya, as well as Vice
President, Digital Business Platform with Laureate International Universities, Vice President, IT Operations — Digital
Innovation & Strategy with Motorola Solutions, and Divisional CIO, Emerging Technologies and User Experience with Dell.
Mr. Dickson began his career with IBM in the Raleigh-Durham area.



Cheryl A. Lewis

Brooke E. Lang

Jerrald R. Morton

Kevin J. Zaba

56

53

63

57

Executive Vice President, Chief Human
Resources Officer

Executive Vice President & President,
Power Efficiency Solutions Segment

Executive Vice President & President,
Industrial Powertrain Solutions

Executive Vice President & President,
Automation & Motion Control

Joined the Company in March 2020, as Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Lewis served as Segment Director, Human Resources for lllinois Tool Works Inc. from 2010-2020. Prior to joining lllinois Tool
Works Inc., Ms. Lewis was Vice President, Human Resources with Alcan Packaging from 2008-2010. From 1991-2008 she
held successive and increasing roles of responsibility, including Vice President, Human Resources at Panduit Corporation.

Joined the Company in July 2022 as Senior Vice President and General Manager of the Conveying and Power Management
Division. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lang was the Vice President and General Manager of the Power Components
Division with Eaton. Prior to this role, Mr. Lang held successive and increasing roles of responsibility with Eaton between 2008
and 2016, including Global Channel Marketing Manager, Director — Product Marketing, and as Vice President and General
Manager Critical Power Solutions APAC. Mr. Lang began his career with Booz Allen Hamilton in Mclean, VA.

Joined the Company in February 2015 and became President, Industrial Powertrain Solutions after the Company’s acquisition
of Altra Industrial Motion Corporation in March 2023. Prior to his current position, Mr. Morton served as President — Integration,
Motion Control Solutions from 2021-2023, President of Power Transmission Solutions Segment from 2019-2021, Vice
President, Business Leader of Power Transmission Solutions from 2017-2019, and led the global operations for the Company's
power transmission business from 2015-2017. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Morton spent 28 years with Emerson in a
variety of roles in Quality, Technology, and Operations and was Vice President, Global Operations of Emerson’s power
transmission business at the time the Company acquired that business.

Joined the Company in October 2021 as President, Motion Control Solutions Segment and became President, Automation &
Motion Control, after the Company’s acquisition of Altra Industrial Motion Corporation in March 2023. Previously, Mr. Zaba
served as Group Executive and President for Rexnord Process & Motion Control from 2014-2021. Prior to this, he held a
number of leadership roles with increasing responsibility during his 24 year tenure at Rockwell Automation, Inc., including Vice
President of Solutions, Services & Sales and Vice President and General Manager of the Control & Visualization products
business. Mr. Zaba's experience as a global business leader includes assignments across a variety of commercial, innovation
and operational roles, including a multiyear assignment leading an Asia-Pacific ETO solutions business while residing in
Shanghai, China.



Website Disclosure

Our Internet address is www.regalrexnord.com. We make available free of charge (other than an investor's own Internet access charges) through our Internet website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish such material to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, we have adopted a Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our officers, directors and associates which satisfies the requirements of the New York Stock Exchange regarding a “code of business conduct.” We have also adopted Corporate Governance
Guidelines addressing the subjects required by the New York Stock Exchange. In September 2024, we produced our updated Sustainability Report. We make copies of the foregoing, as well as the charters of our Board committees, available free of

charge on our website. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendments to, or waivers from, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on our web site at the address
stated above. We are not including the information contained on or available through our website as a part of, or incorporating such information by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

15



ITEM 1A - RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the risks described below, together with all of the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and our other SEC filings, before making an investment decision with respect to our securities.
The risks described below are not the only risks that could adversely affect our business; other risks currently deemed immaterial or additional risks not currently known to us could also materially and adversely affect us. If any of the following or
other risks develop into actual events, our business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow could be materially and adversely affected and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks ing to Our Op i and

We depend on certain key suppliers, and any loss of those suppliers or their failure to meet commitments may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We are dependent on a single or limited number of suppliers for some materials or components required in the manufacture of our products. If any of those suppliers fail to meet their commitments to us in terms of delivery or quality, including by
suffering any disruptions at its facilities or in its supply, we may experience cost increases or supply shortages that could result in our inability to meet our customers' requirements, or could otherwise experience an interruption in our operations that
could negatively impact our business and results of operations or in certain circumstances, our competitive position could be adversely affected, which may result in depressed sales and profitability.

Our dependence on, and the price of, raw materials may adversely affect our gross margins.

Many of the products we produce contain key materials such as steel, copper, aluminum and electronics. Market prices for those materials can be volatile due to changes in supply and demand, manufacturing and other costs, regulations and tariffs,
economic conditions and other circumstances. For example, the US has instituted or proposed changes in trade policies that include the negotiation or termination of trade agreements, the imposition of higher tariffs on imports into the US, and
other government regulations affecting trade between the US and other countries. In particular, the US government imposed or threatened to impose tariffs on imports from China, Canada and Mexico, among other proposed tariffs, and such
countries have taken or have threatened to take retaliatory actions. Even if we are able to successfully respond to increased commodity costs through pricing actions, our competitive position could be adversely affected, which may result in
depressed sales and profitability.

We may incur costs and charges as a result of restructuring activities and il imization initiati and i idati that may be disruptive to our il and may not result in anticipated cost savings.

We expect to continue reviewing our overall manufacturing footprint and margin improvement initiatives in our operations, in an effort to make our business more efficient. We have incurred and expect to continue to incur additional costs and
restructuring charges in connection with such consolidations, divestitures, workforce reductions and other cost reduction measures that could, in certain instances, adversely affect our future earnings and cash flows. Furthermore, such actions may
be disruptive to our business, and this may result in production inefficiencies, product quality issues, late product deliveries or lost orders as we begin production at consolidated facilities, which could adversely impact our sales levels, operating
results and operating margins. In addition, we may not realize the cost savings that we expect to realize as a result of such actions.

In addition, these activities require substantial management time and attention and may divert management from other important work or result in a failure to meet operational targets. Divestitures may also give rise to obligations to buyers or other
parties that could have a financial effect after the transaction is completed. Moreover, we could encounter changes to, or delays in executing, any restructuring or divestiture plans, any of which could cause disruption and additional unanticipated
expense.

Our ability to ish, grow and intail relati i in part on our ability to develop new products, new ing i and product based on ical i i such as
the Internet of Things ("loT") and Artificial i ("AI"), and mar of new and existing products, i ing p! related to y not yet or utilized in certain geographic locations in which
we do business.

The electric motor drives and controls, power generation and power transmission industries in recent years have seen significant evolution and innovation, particularly with respect to increasing energy efficiency and control enhancements. Our
ability to effectively compete in these industries depends in part on our ability to continue to develop new technologies and innovative products, new manufacturing techniques and product enhancements, including enhancements based on
technological innovation
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such as loT and Al. Further, many large customers in these industries generally desire to purchase from companies that can offer a broad product range, which means we must continue to develop our expertise in order to design, manufacture and
sell these products successfully. This requires that we make significant investments in engineering, manufacturing, customer service and support, research and development and intellectual property protection, and there can be no assurance that in
the future we will have sufficient resources to continue to make such investments. If we are unable to identify and predict customer needs and preferences or are unable to meet the needs of our customers for innovative and competitive products or
product variety, or if our products become technologically obsolete over time due to the development by our competitors of technological breakthroughs or otherwise, our revenues and results of operations may be adversely affected. In addition, we
may incur significant costs and devote significant resources to the development of products that ultimately are not accepted in the marketplace, do not provide anticipated enhancements, or do not lead to significant revenue, which may adversely
impact our results of operations.

Further, such new products and technologies may create additional exposure or risk. We cannot assure that we can adequately protect any of our own technological developments to produce a sustainable competitive advantage. Furthermore, we
could be subject to business continuity risk in the event of an unexpected loss of a material facility or operation. We cannot ensure that we can adequately protect against such a loss.

Certain portions of our revenue depend on several significant customers and distributors, and any loss, cancellation or reduction of, or delay in, purchases by these customers or distributors may have a material adverse effect on
our business.

We depend on, and expect to continue to depend on, revenues from several significant OEM customers and distributors, and any loss, cancellation or reduction of, or delay in, purchases by these customers or distributors may have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our success depends on our continued ability to develop and manage these relationships. We have longstanding relationships with these customers and distributors and we expect these relationships will continue for the foreseeable future. Our
reliance on these sales makes our relationships important to our business. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain these key customers and distributor relationships. Some of our customers or distributors may in the future shift some or
all of their purchases of products from us to our competitors or to other sources. The loss of one or more of our large customers or distributors, any reduction or delay in sales to these parties, our inability to develop relationships successfully with
additional customers or distributors, or future price concessions that we may make could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Goodwill and other long-lived assets could become impaired.

We have a material amount of goodwill and other long-lived assets, including intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and lease assets. We assess our goodwill at least annually for impairment. Our estimates of fair value are based on
assumptions about future operating cash flows, growth rates, discount rates applied to these cash flows and current market estimates of value. We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used whenever
events or circumstances indicating a potential impairment exist, such as, but not limited to, adverse market conditions or business climate, a change in the extent or manner in which assets are being used, or a negative long-term performance
outlook. An impairment would require us to reduce the carrying value of goodwill or other long-lived asset to fair value through a non-cash impairment charge in our results of operations, which could be material. See Note 4 — Goodwill and
Intangible Assets of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Portions of our total sales come directly from customers in key markets and industries, some of which may be highly cyclical. A significant or prolonged decline or disruption in one of those markets or industries could result in
lower capital i by such which could have a material adverse effect on our results of op i and fi i iti

Portions of our total sales are dependent directly upon the level of capital expenditures by customers in key markets and industries, such as HVAC, refrigeration, power generation, oil and gas, unit material handling, water heating and aerospace.
Some of these key markets and industries are inherently cyclical and can be impacted by governmental policy and the general macroeconomic climate. A significant or prolonged decline or disruption in one of those markets or industries may result
in some of such customers delaying, canceling or modifying projects, or may result in nonpayment of amounts that are owed to us. These effects could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
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We rely on estimated forecasts to meet s’ needs, and i ies in such could materially adversely affect our business.

In some instances, we rely on estimated demand forecasts, based upon input from our customers, to determine how much material to purchase and product to manufacture. We may have limited visibility regarding our customers’ actual product
needs. The quantities or timing required by our customers for our products could vary significantly. Also, from time to time, our customers may experience a deterioration of their businesses and may not be able to accurately estimate forecasted
demand. Whether in response to changes affecting the industry or a customer’s specific business pressures, any cancellation, delay, inability to fulfill customer obligations, or other modification in our customers’ orders could significantly reduce our
revenue, impact our working capital, cause our operating results to fluctuate from period to period and make it more difficult for us to predict our revenue. In the event of a cancellation or reduction of an order, we may not have enough time to
reduce operating expenses to minimize the effect of the lost revenue on our business and we may purchase too much inventory and spend more capital than expected, which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

We sell certain products for high volume applications, and any failure of those products to perform as anticipated could result in significant liability and expenses that may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We manufacture and sell a number of products for high volume applications, including electric motors used in pools and spas, residential and commercial heating, ventilation and air conditioning and refrigeration equipment. Any failure of those
products to perform as anticipated could result in significant product liability, product recall or rework, or other costs. The costs of product recalls and reworks are not generally covered by insurance.

If we were to experience a product recall or rework in connection with products of high volume applications, our financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

One of our subsidiaries that we acquired in 2007 is subject to numerous claims filed in various jurisdictions relating to certain sub-fractional motors that were primarily manufactured through 2004 and that were included as components of residential
and commercial ventilation units manufactured and sold in high volumes by a third party. These ventilation units are subject to regulation by government agencies such as the US Consumer Product Safety Commission (“CPSC"). The claims
generally allege that the ventilation units were the cause of fires. Based on the current facts, we cannot assure you that these claims, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our subsidiary's results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. We cannot reasonably predict the outcome of these claims, the nature or extent of any CPSC or other remedial actions, if any, that our subsidiary or we on their behalf may need to undertake with respect to motors
that remain in the field, or the costs that may be incurred, some of which could be significant. See Note 11 — Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Our business may not generate cash flow from operations in an amount sufficient to enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs, we could b incr il to general adverse
economic and industry conditions and interest rate trends, and our ability to obtain future financing may be limited.

As of December 31, 2024, we had approximately $5.5 billion in aggregate debt outstanding under our various financing arrangements, including a substantial amount of debt incurred in connection with the Altra Transaction. If we are unable to
generate sufficient cash flows to service our debt, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected. See Note 6 — Debt and Bank Credit Facilities of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information.

Our ability to make required payments of principal and interest on our debt levels will depend on our future performance, which, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive and other factors that are beyond our control.
Our substantially increased indebtedness has the effect, among other things, of reducing our flexibility to changing business and economic conditions. We cannot assure you that our business will generate cash flow from operations or that future
borrowings will be available under our current credit facilities in an amount sufficient to enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs on a timely basis or at all. Our indebtedness may have important consequences, for
example, it could:

« make it more challenging for us to obtain additional financing to fund our business strategy and acquisitions, debt service requirements, capital expenditures and working capital;

« increase our vulnerability to interest rate changes, including with respect to certain of our financing arrangements that bear interest at variable rates, and general adverse economic and industry conditions;
+  require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to finance acquisitions and to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
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manufacturing capacity expansion, business integration, research and development efforts and other general corporate activities;
« require us to dispose of significant assets in order to satisfy our debt service and other obligations if we are not able to satisfy these obligations from cash from operations or other sources;
< limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and our markets; and/or
«  place us at a competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors that have less debt.

A portion of our indebtedness bears interest at variable rates that are linked to changing market interest rates. As a result, an increase in market interest rates would increase our interest expense and our debt service obligations on the variable rate
indebtedness, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, will correspondingly decrease. We utilize interest rate swaps that involve the exchange of floating for fixed rate interest payments to reduce
interest rate volatility. However, we may not maintain interest rate swaps with respect to all of our variable rate indebtedness, and any swaps we enter into may not fully mitigate interest rate risk.

Further, the availability and terms of future financing may depend upon our ability to maintain or achieve certain credit ratings on our senior debt. The credit rating process is contingent upon our credit profile and other factors, many of which are
beyond our control, including methodologies established and interpreted by third-party rating agencies. If we are unable to maintain or achieve certain credit ratings in the future, our interest expense could increase or our ability to obtain financing
on favorable terms could be adversely affected.

Our credit facilities contain financial and restrictive covenants, which require us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy certain financial condition tests. These covenants could limit our ability to, among other things, borrow additional funds
or take advantage of business opportunities, and may require that we take action to reduce our debt or to act in a manner contrary to our business strategies. An event of default under our debt agreements, if not cured or waived, could result in the
acceleration of our indebtedness or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or debt service capability. See Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information.

Sales of products incorporated into HVAC sy and other resi i icati are and by the weather; mild or cooler weather could have an adverse effect on our operating performance.

Many of our motors are incorporated into HVAC systems and other residential applications that OEMs sell to end users. The number of ir ions of new and r 1t HVAC systems or components and other residential applications is higher
during the spring and summer seasons due to the increased use of air conditioning during warmer months. Mild or cooler weather conditions during the spring and summer season often result in end users deferring the purchase of new or
replacement HVAC systems or components. As a result, prolonged periods of mild or cooler weather conditions in the spring or summer season in broad geographical areas could have a negative impact on the demand for our HVAC motors and,
therefore, could have an adverse effect on our operating performance. In addition, due to variations in weather conditions from year to year, our operating performance in any single year may not be indicative of our performance in any future year.

Global climate change and related legal and y could negatively affect our

The effects of climate change could create financial, reputational, or other risks to our business. For example, the effects of climate change could disrupt our operations by impacting the availability and the cost of materials needed for
manufacturing, exacerbate existing risks to our supply chain and increase insurance and other operating costs, including energy costs impacted by carbon prices or offsets. These factors may impact our decisions to construct new facilities or
maintain existing facilities in areas most prone to physical climate risks. We could also face indirect financial risks passed through the supply chain and disruptions that could result in increased prices for our products and the resources needed to
produce them. Additionally, we are subject to environmental laws that could impose significant costs on us. See "We are subject to environmental laws that could impose significant costs on us and the failure to comply with such laws could subject
us to sanctions and material fines and expenses" for more information.

There continues to be a lack of consistent climate regulation, which creates economic and regulatory uncertainty. Increased international, regional, state, and/or federal requirements or other stakeholder expectations have and could further
mandate more restrictive or expansive standards, more prescriptive reporting of environmental, social and governance metrics than the voluntary commitments we have adopted, or require related changes on a more accelerated time frame than
we anticipate. For example, we are subject to the European Union's Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (‘CSRD") and California’s climate disclosure rules, among others. These regulations are inconsistent, and are rapidly emerging and
evolving, and have increased, and are expected to continue to increase, our compliance costs. For example, the CSRD has established extensive

19



ESG-related disclosure requirements based on the European Sustainability Reporting Standards, including certain assurance obligations. The standards used to identify and collect the information and data required pursuant to the CSRD are still
developing and uncertain, and this lack of certainty could result in increased costs related to complying with our reporting obligations under the CSRD. In addition, a number of governmental bodies have finalized, proposed or are contemplating
legislative and regulatory changes in response to the potential effect of climate change. These regulations may affect our operations, supply chain, and overall business strategy, potentially leading to increased expenses, operational disruptions or
limitations on our ability to compete in certain markets. If our product portfolio does not align with these regulations, we may be required to make increased research and development and other capital expenditures to improve our product portfolio in
order to meet new regulations and standards. Further, our customers and the markets we serve may impose emissions or other environmental standards through regulation, market-based emissions policies or consumer preference that we may not
be able to meet due to the level of capital investment or technological advancement. While we are committed to continuous improvements to our product portfolio to meet and exceed anticipated regulations and preferences, there can be no
assurance that our commitments will be successful, that our products will be accepted by the market, that proposed regulation or deregulation will not have a negative competitive impact, or that economic returns will reflect our investments in new
product development.

As of the date of this filing, we have made several public commitments regarding our intended reduction of carbon emissions, including cc 1ts to achieve Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon emission neutrality by 2032, and net zero across Scope
1, 2 and 3 emissions by 2050. Although we intend to meet these commitments, we have expended resources and we may be required to further expend significant resources to do so, which could increase our operational costs. If we either are
unable to meet these commitments, or progress toward our commitments more slowly than expected, or if such commitments are criticized by certain groups, then we could incur adverse publicity and reaction from investors, activist groups and
other stakeholders, which could adversely impact the perception of our brands and our products by current and potential customers, as well as investors, which would in turn adversely impact our results of operations.

Our is highly on ified and sufficient staffing. Our failure to attract or retain ified personnel, i ing our senior team, could lead to a loss of revenue or profitability.

Our success depends, in part, on the efforts and abilities of our senior management team and key associates and the contributions of talented associates in various operations and functions, such as engineering, finance, sales, marketing,
manufacturing, etc. The skills, experience and industry contacts of our senior management team significantly benefit our operations and administration. The failure to attract or retain members of our senior management team and key talent could
have a negative effect on our operating results.

Risks Related to gers, isitic and Di

costs and integration of our past isitions and any future isitions into our busi within exp i could adversely affect our future results and the market price of our common stock.

The Company has incurred, and may continue to incur, significant one-time costs in connection with the integration of past acquisitions and any future acquisitions, including the cost of financing, transaction costs and integration costs. Incurring
these costs may have an adverse effect on the Company'’s liquidity, cash flows and operating results.

The success of our acquisitions, including the Altra Transaction, depends, in large part, on our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of such acquisition and on our sales and profitability following such acquisition. The integration of our
acquisitions is complex and time-consuming, and is subject to a number of uncertainties, and no assurance can be given that any anticipated benefits will be realized or, if realized, the timing of their realization. The failure to successfully integrate
and manage the challenges presented by the integration process may result in our failure to achieve some or all of the anticipated benefits of these acquisitions.

Potential difficulties that may be encountered in the integration process of potential acquisitions include, among others:

+ the failure to implement our business plan following such acquisitions;

« lost sales and customers as a result of customers deciding not to do business with the Company;

« risks associated with managing our larger and more complex company following an acquisition;

« integrating personnel while maintaining focus on providing consistent, high-quality products and service to customers;
« the loss of key employees;

« unanticipated issues in integrating manufacturing, logistics, information, communications and other systems;

* unexpected liabilities of such acquisitions;

« possible inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures, policies and compensation structures; and
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« the impact on our internal controls and compliance with the regulatory requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
If any of these events were to occur, our ability to maintain relationships with customers, suppliers and employees or our ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of any acquisition could be adversely affected, or could reduce our sales or earnings
or otherwise adversely affect our business and financial results after such acquisition and, as a result, adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

As part of our growth strategy, we expect to continue to make acquisitions. Our continued growth may depend on our ability to identify and acquire companies that complement or enhance our business on acceptable terms, but we may not be able
to identify or complete future acquisitions. We may not be able to integrate successfully our recent acquisitions, or any future acquisitions, operate these acquired companies profitably, or realize the potential benefits from these acquisitions.

Businesses that we have acquired or that we may acquire in the future may have liabilities which are not known to us.

We have assumed liabilities of acquired businesses and may assume liabilities of businesses that we acquire in the future. There may be liabilities or risks that we fail, or are unable, to discover, or that we underestimate, in the course of performing
our due diligence investigations of acquired businesses. Additionally, businesses that we have acquired or may acquire in the future may have made previous acquisitions, and we will be subject to certain liabilities and risks relating to these prior
acquisitions as well. We cannot assure you that our rights to indemnification, if any, contained in definitive acquisition agreements that we have entered or may enter into will be sufficient in amount, scope or duration to fully offset the possible
liabilities associated with the business or property acquired. Any such liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. As we operate acquired businesses,
we may learn additional information about them that adversely affects us, such as unknown or contingent liabilities, issues relating to compliance with applicable laws or issues related to ongoing customer relationships or order demand, or issues
related to compliance with prior commercial agreements.

In ion with the PMC isiti the ization and the Distributi could result in significant tax liability, including as a result of an error in the determination of Overlap Shar or
acquisitions of stock of Zurn or us. Under certain circumstances, Land (our wholly owned idiary) may be obli toi ify Zurn for any such taxes imposed on Zurn.

In connection with our merger with the Rexnord PMC business, Zurn received a tax opinion from its tax counsel (the “Rexnord Tax Opinion”) that includes an opinion to the effect that the Reorganization and the Distributions will qualify as tax-free to
Zurn, Land and the Zurn stockholders, as applicable, for US federal income tax purposes except, in the case of Zurn, to the extent Land's payment to a subsidiary of Zurn under the terms of the Separation Agreement (the “Land Cash Payment”)
exceeds RBS Global Inc.’s adjusted tax basis in Land common stock. The Rexnord Tax Opinion is based on, among other things, certain representations and assumptions as to factual matters and certain covenants made by us, Land and Zurn.
Although we believe the representations, assumptions and covenants in the Rexnord Tax Opinion to be true, the failure of any such factual representation, assumption or covenant to be true, correct and complete in all material respects could
adversely affect the validity of the opinion. The Rexnord Tax Opinion is not binding on the IRS or the courts, and it is possible that the IRS or the courts may not agree with the opinion. In addition, the Rexnord Tax Opinion is based on current law,
and the conclusions in the opinion cannot be relied upon if current law changes with retroactive effect.

The Spin-Off will be taxable to Zurn pursuant to Section 355(e) of the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended if there is a 50% or greater change in ownership of either Zurn or Land, directly or indirectly, as part of a plan or series of related
transactions that include the Spin-Off. For this purpose, any acquisitions of Land or Zurn stock or our stock within the period beginning two years before the Spin-Off and ending two years after the Spin-Off are presumed to be a part of such plan,
although we and Zurn may be able to rebut that presumption. Zurn received a private letter ruling from the US Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) (the “IRS Ruling”) with respect to certain tax aspects of the Rexnord PMC transactions, including
matters relating to the nature and extent of shareholders who may be counted for tax purposes as “Overlap Shareholders” (as such term is defined in the Rexnord PMC Merger Agreement) for purposes of determining the exchange ratio for the
transaction in the Rexnord PMC Merger Agreement and the overall percentage change in the ownership of Land resulting from the merger of our subsidiary with and into Land. The continuing validity of the IRS Ruling is subject to the accuracy of
factual representations and assumptions made in the ruling request. Moreover, the IRS Ruling only describes the time, manner and methodology for measuring Overlap Shareholders and may be subject to varying interpretations.

The actual determination and calculation of Overlap Shareholders was made by us, Zurn and our respective advisors based on the IRS Ruling, but no assurance can be given that the IRS will agree with these determinations or calculations. If the
IRS were to determine that the merger of our subsidiary with and into Land, as a result of an error in the determination of Overlap Shareholders, or other acquisitions of Land, Zurn, or our stock, either before or after the Spin-Off, resulted in a 50%
or greater change in ownership and were part of a plan or series of related transactions that included the Spin-Off, such determination

21



could result in significant tax liability to Zurn. In certain circumstances and subject to certain limitations, under the Tax Matters Agreement, Land is required to indemnify Zurn for 100% of the taxes that result if the Distributions become taxable as a
result of certain actions by us or Land and for 90% of the taxes that result as a result of a miscalculation of the Overlap Shareholders. If this occurs and Land is required to indemnify Zurn, this ir ification ion could be st and
could have a material adverse effect on us and Land, including with respect to our financial condition and results of operations given that we have guaranteed the indemnification obligations of Land.

We face risks associated with the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses, which comprised a majority of our Industrial Systems operating segment.

We are subject to risks in connection with the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses (the "Sale"), including the inability to eliminate certain corporate overhead costs that were previously allocated to the Industrial Systems segment.
In addition, the Company may face financial and commercial challenges associated with brand transitions and the disposition of certain proprietary assets that were transferred in the Sale. Any or all of these risks could impact the Company's
financial results.

Risks Relating to Our Global Footprint
We operate in highly competitive global industries and markets.

We encounter a wide variety of domestic and international competitors due in part to the nature of the products we manufacture and the wide variety of applications and customers we serve. In order to compete effectively, we must retain
relationships with major customers and establish relationships with new customers, including those in developing countries. Moreover, in certain applications, customers exercise significant power over business terms. It may be difficult in the short-
term for us to obtain new sales to replace any decline in the sale of existing products that may be lost to competitors. Our failure to compete effectively may reduce our revenues, profitability and cash flow, and pricing pressures resulting from
competition may adversely impact our profitability.

We have continued to see a trend with certain customers who are attempting to reduce the number of vendors from which they purchase product in order to reduce their costs. As a result, we may lose market share to our competitors in some of the
markets in which we compete.

In addition, some of our competitors are larger and have greater financial and other resources than we do. There can be no assurance that our products will be able to compete successfully with the products of these other companies.

There is substantial and continuing pressure on major OEMs and larger distributors to reduce costs, including the cost of products purchased from outside suppliers. As a result of cost pressures from customers, our ability to compete depends in
part on their ability to generate production cost savings and, in turn, to find reliable, cost-effective outside suppliers to source components or manufacture their products. If we are unable to generate sufficient cost savings in the future to offset price
reductions, then our gross margin could be materially adversely affected.

We manufacture a significant portion of our products outside the US, and political, societal or economic instability or public health crises may present additional risks to our business.

As of December 31, 2024, approximately 21,400 of our approximate 30,300 total full-time associates and 96 of our principal manufacturing and warehouse facilities were located outside the US. International operations generally are subject to
various risks, including political, societal and economic instability, local labor market conditions, public health crises, breakdowns in trade relations, the imposition of tariffs and other trade restrictions, lack of reliable legal systems, ownership
restrictions, the impact of government regulations, the effects of income and withholding taxes, governmental expropriation or nationalization, and differences in business practices. We may incur increased costs and experience delays or
disruptions in product deliveries and payments in connection with international manufacturing and sales that could cause loss of revenue.

Unfavorable changes in the political, regulatory and business climates in countries where we have operations could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, including, for example, the

uncertainty surrounding trade relations between the US and China, Mexico, Canada and other countries. In particular, the US government imposed or threatened to impose tariffs on imports from China, Canada and Mexico, among other proposed
tariffs, and such countries have taken or have threatened to take retaliatory actions.
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Moreover, ongoing geopolitical conflicts including those between Russia and Ukraine and those occurring in the Middle East and similar conflicts, have negatively impacted the global economy and in some instances, have led to various economic
sanctions being imposed by the US, United Kingdom, European Union, and other countries. While the impacts of the conflict have not been material on our operating results to date, it is not possible to predict the broader or longer-term
consequences of these conflicts or new conflicts that may arise in the future. Continued escalation of geopolitical tensions related to the conflict could also result in the loss of property, supply chain disruptions, significant inflationary pressure on
raw material prices and cost and supply of other resources (such as energy and natural gas), fluctuations in our customers’ buying patterns, credit and capital market disruption which could impact our ability to obtain financing, increase in interest
rates and adverse foreign exchange impacts. These broader consequences could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Such sanctions and other measures, as well as the existing and
potential further responses to such sanctions, tensions and military actions, could adversely affect the global economy and financial markets and could adversely affect the operations of our subsidiaries in impacted regions as well as our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, our international operations are governed by various US laws and regulations, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other similar laws, that prohibit us and our business partners from making improper payments or offers of
payment to foreign governments and their officials and political parties for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Any alleged or actual violations of these regulations may subject us to government scrutiny, severe criminal or civil sanctions

and other liabilities.

Disruptions caused by labor disputes or organized labor activities could ly affect our il or fil ial results.

We have a significant number of employees in Europe and other jurisdictions where trade union membership is common. Although we believe that our relations with our employees are strong, if our unionized workers were to engage in a strike, work
stoppage or other slowdown in the future, we could experience a significant disruption of our operations, which could interfere with our ability to deliver products on a timely basis and could have other negative effects, such as decreased

productivity and increased labor costs. In addition, if a greater percentage of our workforce becomes unionized as a result of legal or regulatory changes which may make union organizing easier, or otherwise, our costs could increase and our

efficiency may be affected in a material adverse manner, negatively impacting our business and financial results. Further, many of our direct and indirect customers and their suppliers, and organizations responsible for shipping our products, have

unionized workforces and their businesses may be impacted by strikes, work stoppages or slowdowns, any of which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Economic and Financial Risks

Commodity, currency and interest rate hedging activities may adversely impact our financial performance as a result of changes in global commodity prices, interest rates and currency rates.

We use derivative financial instruments in order to reduce the substantial effects of currency and commodity fluctuations and interest rate exposure on our cash flow and financial condition. These instruments may include foreign currency and
commodity forward contracts, currency swap agreements and currency option contracts, as well as interest rate swap agreements. We have entered into, and may continue to enter into, such hedging arrangements. By utilizing hedging instruments,
we may forgo benefits that might result from fluctuations in currency exchange, commodity and interest rates. We are also exposed to the risk that counterparties to hedging contracts will default on their obligations. Any default by such
counterparties might have an adverse effect on us.

We may suffer losses as a result of foreign currency fluctuations.

The net assets, net earnings and cash flows from our foreign subsidiaries are based on the US Dollar equivalent of such amounts measured in the applicable functional currency.

These foreign operations have the potential to impact our financial position due to fluctuations in the local currency arising from the process of re-measuring the local functional currency in US Dollars. Any increase in the value of the US Dollar in

relation to the value of the local currency, whether by means of market conditions or governmental actions such as currency devaluations, will adversely affect our revenues from our foreign operations when translated into US Dollars. Similarly, any
decrease in the value of the US Dollar in relation to the value of the local currency will increase our operating costs in foreign operations, to the extent such costs are payable in foreign currency, when translated into US Dollars.
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Worldwide economic conditions may adversely affect our industry, business and results of operations.

General economic conditions and conditions in the global financial markets can affect our results of operations. Deterioration in the global economy could lead to higher unemployment, lower consumer spending and reduced investment by
businesses, and could lead our customers to slow spending on our products or make it difficult for our customers, our vendors and us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities. Worsening economic conditions could also affect the
financial viability of our suppliers, some of which could be considered key suppliers. Additionally, our stock price could decrease if investors have concerns that our business, financial condition and results of operations will be negatively impacted by
a worldwide economic downturn.

We are subject to tax laws and i in many jurisdicti and the inability to successfully defend claims from taxing authorities related to our current and/or acquired businesses could adversely affect our operating results
and financial position.

A ssignificant amount of our revenue is generated from customers located outside of the US, and a substantial portion of our assets and associates are located outside of the US which requires us to interpret the income tax laws and rulings in each
of those taxing jurisdictions. Due to the subjectivity of tax laws between those jurisdictions as well as the subjectivity of factual interpretations, our estimates of income tax liabilities may differ from actual payments or assessments. Claims from taxing
authorities related to these differences could have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial position.

Our requil cash ibuti to our ion plans may increase further and we could experience a change in the funded status of our pension plans and the amount recorded in our consolidated balance sheets related to such
plans. iti y, our ion costs could i in future years.

The funded status of our defined benefit pension plans depends on such factors as asset returns, market interest rates, legislative changes and funding regulations. If the returns on the assets of any of our plans were to decline in future periods, if
market interest rates were to decline, if the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation were to require additional contributions to any such plans as a result of acquisitions or if other actuarial assumptions were to be modified, our future required cash
contributions and pension costs to such plans could increase. Any such increases could impact our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. The need to make contributions to such plans may reduce the cash available to
meet our other obligations, including our obligations under our borrowing arrangements or to meet the needs of our business.

Risks Relating to the Legal and Regulatory Environment

We are subject to in i ive, r

g\ y and legal dev: i lving income and other taxes.

We are subject to US federal, state, and international income, payroll, property, sales and use, fuel, and other types of taxes. Changes in tax rates, enactment of new tax laws, revisions of tax regulations, and claims or litigation with taxing
authorities, including claims or litigation related to our interpretation and application of tax laws and regulations, could result in substantially higher taxes, could have a negative impact on our ability to compete in the global marketplace, and could
have a significant adverse effect on our results or operations, financial conditions and liquidity. The impact of these factors referenced above may be substantially different from period to period. Final laws enacting the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development's global minimum tax framework ("Pillar Two Laws") became effective in 2024 in the European Union and other countries where we do business. The Company faces uncertainty related to the potential
implementation of Pillar Two Laws in countries where we operate. We are continuing to monitor the legislative process and evaluate the potential impact of implementation of Pillar Two Laws by other countries.

It is difficult to predict the timing and effect that future tax law changes could have on our earnings both in the US and in foreign jurisdictions. Such changes could cause us to experience an effective tax rate significantly different from previous
periods or our current estimates. If our effective tax rate were to increase, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Changes to and uncertainty in US trade policy, tariff and import/export i and foreign g i or other trade restrictions imposed by the US or other governments could adversely affect our business,
operating results, foreign i ing and fi i iti

Changes to tariffs and uncertainty in US and international trade policy have the potential to adversely impact our business, the global economy or certain sectors thereof, including our industry, and could have a material adverse effect on our
business,
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operating results and financial condition. For example, the United States has instituted or proposed changes in trade policies that include the negotiation or termination of trade agreements, the imposition of higher tariffs on imports into the United
States and other government regulations affecting trade between the United States and other countries where we conduct our business. In particular, the United States government imposed or threatened to impose tariffs on imports from China,
Canada and Mexico, among other proposed tariffs, and such countries have taken or have threatened to take retaliatory actions. We cannot predict what changes to trade policy will be made in the future, which may have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, and results of operations and could also provide our competitors with an advantage over us or increase our costs. We believe that the issue of U.S. and foreign governmental regulations that would impact our
arrangements with our foreign manufacturing sources is of particular concern with regard to countries such as China due to the less mature nature of the Chinese market economy and the historical involvement of the Chinese government in
industry.

Our business is also subject to risks associated with US and foreign legislation and regulations relating to imports, including quotas, duties, fees. tariffs or taxes, and other charges or restrictions on imports, which could adversely affect our
operations and our ability to import products at current or increased levels, and substantially all of our import operations are subject to customs duties or fees on imported products imposed by the governments where our production facilities are
located, including raw materials. We cannot predict whether additional US and foreign customs quotas, duties, tariffs, fees, taxes or other charges or restrictions, requirements as to raw materials, reporting obligations pertaining to “conflict minerals”
and polyfluoroalkyl substances (commonly referred to as “PFAS”), or other restrictions will be imposed in the future or adversely modified, or what effect such actions would have on our costs of operations. Future trade agreements, quotas, duties,
fees, tariffs or the imposition of import requirements may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are subject to litigation, including product liability, asbestos and warranty claims that may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We are, from time to time, a party to litigation that arises in the normal course of our business operations, including product warranty and liability claims, contract disputes and environmental, asbestos, employment and other litigation matters. We
face an inherent business risk of exposure to product liability, asbestos and warranty claims in the event that the use of our products is alleged to have resulted in injury or other damage. As described above, one of our subsidiaries that we acquired
in 2007 is subject to numerous claims filed in various jurisdictions relating to certain sub-fractional motors that were primarily manufactured through 2004 and that were included as components of residential and commercial ventilation units
manufactured and sold in high volumes by a third party. In addition, certain subsidiaries of ours are co-defendants in various lawsuits in a number of US jurisdictions alleging personal injury as a result of exposure to asbestos that was used in
certain components of legacy Rexnord PMC business products. The uncertainties of litigation and the uncertainties related to insurance and indemnification coverage make it difficult to accurately predict the ultimate financial effect of these claims. If
our insurance or indemnification coverage is not adequate to cover our potential financial exposure, our insurers or indemnitors dispute their obligations to provide coverage, or the actual number or value of claims differs materially from our existing
estimates, we could incur material costs that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

While we maintain general liability and product liability insurance coverage in amounts that we believe are reasonable, we cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain this insurance on acceptable terms or that this insurance will provide
sufficient coverage against potential liabilities that may arise. Any product liability claim may also include the imposition of punitive damages, the award of which, pursuant to certain state laws, may not be covered by insurance. Any claims brought
against us, with or without merit, may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations as a result of potential adverse outcomes, the expenses associated with defending such claims, the diversion of our management's resources
and time and the potential adverse effect to our business reputation. See Note 11 — Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Infringement of our intellectual property by third parties may harm our competitive position, and we may incur significant costs associated with the protection and preservation of our intellectual property.

We own or otherwise have rights in a number of patents and trademarks relating to the products we manufacture, which have been obtained over a period of years, and we expect to actively pursue patents in connection with new product
development and to acquire additional patents and trademarks through the acquisitions of other businesses. These patents and trademarks have been of value in the growth of our business and may continue to be of value in the future.

Our inability to protect this intellectual property generally, or the illegal breach of some or a large group of our intellectual property rights, would have an adverse effect on our business. In addition, there can be no assurance that our intellectual
property will not be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or designed-around, particularly in countries where intellectual
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property rights are not highly developed or protected. We have incurred in the past, and expect to incur in the future, significant costs associated with defending challenges to our intellectual property or enforcing our intellectual property rights,
which could adversely impact our cash flow and results of operations.

Third parties may claim that we are infringing their intellectual property rights and we could incur signifi costs and

p orbe p from selling certain products.

We may be subject to claims from third parties that our products or technologies infringe on their intellectual property rights or that we have misappropriated intellectual property rights. If we are involved in a dispute or litigation relating to
infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, we could incur significant costs in defending against those claims. Our intellectual property portfolio may not be useful in asserting a counterclaim, or negotiating a license, in response to a claim
of infringement or misappropriation. In addition, as a result of such claims of infringement or misappropriation, we could lose our rights to technology that is important to our business, or be required to pay damages or license fees with respect to the
infringed rights or be required to redesign our products at substantial cost, any of which could adversely impact our cash flows and results of operations.

We may incur costs or suffer reputational damage due to improper of our i agents or il partners.

We are subject to a variety of domestic and foreign laws, rules and regulations relating to improper payments to government officials, bribery, anti-kickback and false claims rules, competition, export and import compliance, money laundering and
data privacy. If our associates, agents or business partners engage in activities in violation of these laws, rules or regulations, we may be subject to civil or criminal fines or penalties or other sanctions, may incur costs associated with government
investigations, or may suffer damage to our reputation.

Our operati are highly on information technology infrastructure, and failures, attacks or breaches could signifi affect our b

We depend heavily on our information technology infrastructure in order to achieve our business objectives. If we experience a problem that impairs this infrastructure, such as a computer virus, a problem with the functioning of an important IT
application, or an intentional disruption of our IT systems by a third party, the resulting disruptions could impede our ability to record or process orders, manufacture and ship in a timely manner, or otherwise carry on our business in the ordinary
course. Any such events could cause us to lose customers or revenue and could require us to incur significant expense to eliminate these problems and address related security concerns, including costs relating to investigation and remediation
actions.

IT security threats via computer malware, social engineering and other “cyber-attacks,” which are increasing in both frequency and sophistication, could also result in unauthorized disclosures of information, such as customer data, personally
identifiable information or other confidential or proprietary material, and create financial liability, subject us to legal or regulatory sanctions, or damage our reputation. We attempt to mitigate these risks by implementing measures that aim to help us
to continuously improve our cybersecurity posture and protect against evolving threats. For example, we regularly implement new IT systems and make enhancements to our existing Enterprise Resource Planning systems and other business and
financial systems (collectively referred to as “IT Systems”), with the aim of enabling management to achieve better control across our business operations. The cost and operational consequences of implementing, maintaining and enhancing our IT
Systems and the other measures we employ, could increase significantly to overcome increasingly intense, complex and sophisticated cybersecurity threats, and certain of our IT Systems and other measures may not perform as expected. There
can be no assurance that the enhancements to our IT Systems will be successfully implemented and failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our operations. Notwithstanding these IT Systems enhancements and the other measures
we employ, our systems, networks, products and services remain potentially vulnerable to known or unknown cybersecurity attacks and other threats, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flow.

We continuously monitor and develop our systems to protect our technology infrastructure and data from misappropriation or corruption. However, a cybersecurity attack could persist for an extended period of time before being detected, and,
following detection, it could take considerable time for us to obtain full and reliable information about the extent, amount and type of information compromised. During the course of an investigation, we may not know the full impact of the event and
how to remediate it, and actions, decisions and mistakes that are taken or made may further increase the negative effects of the event on our business, results of operations and reputation. Moreover, because the techniques used to gain access to
or sabotage systems often are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate the methods necessary to defend against
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these types of attacks, and we cannot predict the extent, frequency or impact these attacks may have. Although we maintain insurance coverage that may, subject to policy terms and conditions, provide coverage for certain aspects of cyber and
information security risks, dependent upon the nature, location and extent of an event, such insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover all losses. While we maintain robust information security mechanisms and controls in order to mitigate
these risks, the impact of a material IT event could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position, results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

Changes in data privacy laws and our ability to comply with them could have a material adverse effect on us.

We collect and store data that is sensitive to us and our employees, customers, dealers and suppliers. A variety of state, national, foreign and international laws and regulations apply to the collection, use, retention, protection, security, disclosure,
transfer and other processing of personal and other data. Many foreign data privacy regulations, including the General Data Protection Regulation (the “GDPR”) in the European Union, are more stringent than federal regulations in the US.
Additionally, many other jurisdictions are considering adopting, or have already adopted privacy regulations. The applicability of these laws to our business has increased due to our focus on expanding e-commerce offerings. These laws and
regulations are rapidly evolving and changing, and could have an adverse effect on our operations. Companies’ obligations and requirements under these laws and regulations are subject to uncertainty in how they may be interpreted by courts and
governmental authorities. The costs of compliance with, and the other burdens imposed by, these and other laws or regulatory actions may increase our operational costs. In the case of non-compliance with these laws, including the GDPR,
regulators have the authority to levy significant fines. In addition, if there is a material breach of privacy, we may face litigation or regulatory sanctions, or be required to make notifications pursuant to applicable regulations.

Although we have implemented plans to comply with these laws, GDPR and future laws and regulations could impose even greater compliance burdens and risks with respect to privacy and data security than prior laws. The EU (through the
GDPR) and a growing number of legislative and regulatory bodies elsewhere in the world have adopted consumer notification requirements in the event of unauthorized access to or acquisition of certain types of personal information. These breach
notification laws continue to evolve and may be inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another. Complying with these obligations could cause us to incur substantial costs, require significant management time and attention, and increase negative
publicity surrounding any incident that compromises personal information and the occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Changes in labor or employ laws could i our costs and may adversely affect our business.

Various federal, state and international labor and employment laws govern our relationship with employees and affect operating costs. These laws include minimum wage requirements, overtime, unemployment tax rates, workers’ compensation
rates paid, leaves of absence, mandated health and other benefits, and citizenship requirements. Significant additional government-imposed increases or new requirements in these areas could materially affect our business, financial condition,
operating results or cash flow. In the event our employee-related costs rise significantly, we may have to reduce the number of our employees or shut down certain manufacturing facilities. Any such actions would not only be costly but could also
materially adversely affect our business.

We are subject to environmental laws that could impose significant costs on us and the failure to comply with such laws could subject us to sanctions and material fines and expenses.

We are subject to a variety of federal, state, local, foreign and provincial environmental laws and regulations, including those governing the discharge of pollutants into the air or water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and
wastes, requiring permits for such activity and the responsibility to investigate and clean up contaminated sites that are or were owned, leased, operated or used by us or our predecessors. Fines and penalties and revocation of permits may be
imposed for non-compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations and the failure to have or to comply with the terms and conditions of required permits. The operation of manufacturing plants entails risks related to compliance with
environmental laws, requirements and permits, and a failure by us to comply with applicable environmental laws, regulations, or permits could result in civil or criminal fines, penalties, enforcement actions, third-party claims for property damage and
personal injury, requirements to clean up property or to pay for the costs of cleanup, or regulatory or judicial orders enjoining or curtailing operations or requiring corrective measures, including the installation of pollution control equipment or
remedial actions. Moreover, if applicable environmental laws and regulations, or the interpretation or enforcement thereof, become more stringent in the future, we could incur capital or operating costs beyond those currently anticipated.
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In addition, there are known environmental liabilities, and there may be environmental conditions currently unknown to us relating to our prior, existing or future sites or operations or those of predecessor companies whose liabilities we may have
assumed or acquired which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are being indemnified, or expect to be indemnified by third parties, subject to certain caps or limitations on the indemnification, for certain environmental costs and liabilities associated with certain owned or operated sites. We cannot assure
you that third parties who indemnify or who are expected to indemnify us for certain environmental costs and liabilities associated with certain owned or operated sites will in fact satisfy their indemnification obligations. If those third parties become
unable to, or otherwise do not, comply with their respective indemnity obligations, or if certain contamination or other liability for which we are obligated is not subject to these indemnities, we could become subject to significant liabilities. See Note
11 - Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

General Risks

Our i can be negatively i d by natural di terrorism, acts of war, internati conflict, i and political and governmental actions.

Natural disasters, acts or threats of war or terrorism, pandemic outbreaks such as COVID-19, international conflicts, and the actions taken by the US and other governments in response to such events could cause damage or disrupt our business
operations, our suppliers, or our customers, and could create political or economic instability, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business. Although it is not possible to predict such events or their consequences, these events could
decrease demand for our products, could make it difficult or impossible for us to deliver products, could disrupt our supply chain or could result in disruption of our manufacturing processes. We may also be negatively impacted by actions by the US
or foreign governments which could disrupt manufacturing and commercial operations, including policy changes affecting taxation, trade, immigration, currency devaluation, tariffs, customs, border actions and the like, including, for example, trade
relations between the US and China, and ongoing geopolitical tensions and conflicts.

Similarly, unplanned repairs or equipment outages, including those due to natural disasters, could result in the disruption of our manufacturing processes. Any interruption in our manufacturing processes would interrupt our production of products,
reduce our income and cash flow and could result in a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Our stock has been and may continue to be subject to significant fluctuations and volatility.

The market price of shares of our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile. Among the factors that could affect our common stock price are those discussed above under “Risk Factors” as well as:

« domestic and international economic and political factors unrelated to our performance;

« quarterly fluctuation in our operating income and earnings per share results;

+ decline in demand for our products;

« significant strategic actions by our competitors, including new product introductions or technological advances;
+ fluctuations in interest rates;

«  costincreases in energy, raw materials, intermediate components or materials, or labor; and

+ changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts.

In addition, stock markets have experienced and may continue to experience extreme volatility that may be unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations have adversely affected and may
continue to adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

ITEM 1B - UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 1C - CYBERSECURITY

Our executive leadership team is responsible for the global risk management framework and influences the culture of risk management within the Company. Additionally, our Board is responsible for oversight of the executive leadership team's
approach to risk management and cybersecurity strategy. The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining security and the trust of our customers, clients, business partners and associates. The Company has developed a cybersecurity
program founded on a strong management approach, policy driven governance, standards and procedures, and execution of a comprehensive strategy that adapts to changing risks. The Company’s cybersecurity policies and standards are fully
integrated into our overall risk management process and were created based upon the National Institute of Standards and Technology cybersecurity framework and other applicable industry standards. The Company endeavors to manage
cybersecurity risks through a comprehensive and multidisciplinary approach that emphasizes confidentiality, security, and availability of our information by deploying processes to support identification of cybersecurity threats and using tools for
prevention and mitigation of cybersecurity incidents. To the extent that cybersecurity incidents may occur, the Company has established cross functional procedures that enable a prompt and effective response to cybersecurity incidents.

Risk Management and Strategy

Our global risk management policy provides a uniform approach for monitoring, identifying, measuring and responding to enterprise-wide risk to minimize potential disruptions to business operations and harm to reputation. Our global risk
management policies framework encompasses, enterprise risk management, business continuity and cybersecurity. Cybersecurity risk is a key component of our overall global risk management policy. The Company’s cybersecurity program is
focused on the following areas:

+ Governance: In furtherance of the Board's risk management oversight objectives, the Company convenes a Risk Committee comprised of key functional and business leaders. Among other members, the Risk Committee includes our Chief
Information Security Officer (“CISO”), our Senior Director of Global Risk and Property Management, our Vice President, Internal Audit, our Vice President, Environmental, Health and Safety and members of the Legal and Compliance
teams. This diverse group supports a strong focus on cybersecurity, business continuity, and associated enterprise risks. The Risk Committee's members are charged with, among other things, identifying and assessing significant and
emerging risks, as well as working with executive leadership teams to develop and execute plans, responses and mitigation strategies to address significant cybersecurity risks, that could otherwise negatively impact our ability to achieve
our objectives. The Risk Committee’s cybersecurity management function addresses the Company’s information security challenges and risks from various IT-related sources.

+  Collaborative Approach: The Company has developed and implemented a robust approach to identify, prevent and mitigate cybersecurity threats and incidents. This is supported by clear and direct cross-functional escalation paths to
ensure proper handling and analysis so that decisions regarding response, materiality and any resulting disclosure and reporting of such incidents are clearly allocated and can be made in a timely manner.

+ Technical Safeguards: The Company employs industry accepted security tools, techniques, and system monitoring to protect the confidentiality of our systems and data. Maintaining the privacy and security of our associate, customer, and
third-party data is paramount. The Company deploys technical safeguards which include, but are not limited to, encryption, multi-factor authentication, network segmentation, privilege access management and, endpoint detection and
response. These safeguards are evaluated on a routine basis with the intention of identifying and remediating potential vulnerabilities and enhancing the overall security framework.

* Incident Response and Recovery Planning: The Company has established and maintains a comprehensive cyber incident response policy. This policy provides direction and guidance to address and manage security incidents, including
identification, classification, and response.

*  Third-Party Risk Management : The Company maintains a risk-based approach to third party engagement and the cybersecurity risks associated therewith. This approach adheres to Company-policy, which includes regularly evaluating
and identifying material risks from cybersecurity threats associated with third parties’ access to our systems, as well as the systems of third parties that could adversely impact our business in the event of a cybersecurity incident affecting
those third-party systems.

+  Education and Awareness: The Company provides annual mandatory global information security training and certification for personnel regarding cybersecurity threats. This training is offered in 20 languages to maximize associate
accessibility and comprehension. The Company administers monthly targeted trainings and phishing simulations for our associates. Training sessions and additional phishing simulations are automatically deployed based on success and
failure rates. In October 2024, the Company observed Cybersecurity Awareness Month with additional
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opportunities for engagement, interactive training and education. These activities are designed to develop a mature and vigilant, risk-aware culture among our associates.

The Company completes periodic assessments and testing of its practices addressing cybersecurity threats and incidents. These efforts include, but are not limited to, audits, assessments, tabletop exercises, and vulnerability testing and are
focused on evaluation of cybersecurity policy efficacy. These assessments and testing efforts are supported by third-party consultants who specialize in cyber-risk mitigation. The results of these third-party engagements are used to inform
enhancements and adjustments to our cybersecurity policies and practices.

Governance

Our full Board is responsible for the oversight of the Company's operational and strategic risk management processes. Our Board believes that oversight of risk management belongs at the full Board level rather than with any single committee,
primarily because of the importance of understanding and mitigating risk to the overall success of our Company. As part of its risk management responsibilities, our full Board provides oversight of the Company’s management and mitigation of
cybersecurity risks.

To gather information about risks to the organization, including cybersecurity, the Risk Committee identifies primary areas that generate enterprise risk and then distributes a survey to a group of our top leaders. The Risk Committee periodically
summarizes its activities and findings (including the results of its survey and heat map analysis) related to cybersecurity and other risks directly to our CEO, as well as the Audit Committee and our full Board. The Risk Committee's work is also used
by our management team as part of our disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information regarding material risks applicable to the Company are appropriately disclosed in our public filings.

While our Board maintains responsibility for oversight of all areas of risk management, it relies on our Audit Committee to address significant financial risk exposure we may face and the steps management has taken to monitor, control and report
such exposures. These risks are further reported to the full Board, as appropriate.

The Risk Committee receives prompt information regarding any cybersecurity incident in accordance with our cyber incident response policy and crisis communication procedures. The Risk Committee, in concert with the executive leadership team,
evaluate this information and escalates notice to the Board, as appropriate.

The CISO works collaboratively with the Risk Committee. The CISO has implemented and monitors a program designed to protect the Company’s information systems and to promptly respond to any cybersecurity incidents in accordance with the
documented incident response plans. To facilitate the success of the Company’s cybersecurity risk management program, multidiscipli teams are to identify, classify, and address cybersecurity threats and incidents. Through prompt
notifications and ongoing communications, the CISO and other key management personnel work to monitor, prevent, detect, mitigate and remediate cybersecurity threats and incidents.

The Company’s cybersecurity programs are supported by experienced and knowledgeable leaders. The CISO has served in various roles related to information technology and information security for over 20 years. The CISO maintains relevant
certifications, including Certified Information Systems Security Manager (“CISM") and Certified Information Systems Auditor (“CISA”). Additionally, several cybersecurity team members reporting directly to the CISO maintain certifications, including
CISM, CISA and Certified Information System Security Professionals (“CISSP”). The Company’s Chief Digital & Information Officer has over 30 years of experience with information technology and digital strategy. The Company’s CEO, CFO and
General Counsel each have over 20 years of experience managing risk at the Company or at similar companies or in related settings, including risks arising from cybersecurity threats.

Cybersecurity threats, including those resulting from previous cybersecurity incidents, have not materially affected and are not reasonably likely to materially affect the Company, including its business strategy, results of operations or financial
condition. condition. The cybersecurity threat environment is increasingly challenging. While we employ various measures to improve our cybersecurity posture and protect against evolving threats, we cannot guarantee that these measures will
always be successful. For more information, please refer to Part | - ltem 1A - Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Legal and Regulatory Environment — “Our operations are highly dependent on information technology infrastructure, and failures,
attacks or breaches could significantly affect our business” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 2 - PROPERTIES

Our corporate offices are located in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in an approximately 142,000 square foot rented office building and in Rosemont, lllinois in an approximately 20,000 square foot rented office building. We have manufacturing, sales and
service facilities throughout the US and in Mexico, China, Europe and India as well as a number of other locations throughout the world.

Our IPS segment currently includes 143 facilities, of which 50 are principal manufacturing facilities and 26 are principal warehouse facilities. The Industrial Powertrain Solutions segment's present operating facilities contain a total of approximately
10.4 million square feet of space, of which approximately 31% are leased.

The following represents our principal manufacturing and warehouse facilities in the Industrial Powertrain Solutions segment (square footage in millions):

Square Footage

Location Facilities Total Owned Leased

us 29 3.6 218 1.3
Mexico 5 0.7 0.4 0.3
China 4 0.8 = 0.8
India 5 0.2 0.1 0.1
Europe 23 1.4 1.2 0.2
Other 10 0.4 0.3 0.1
Total 76 7l 4.3 2.8

Our PES segment currently includes 56 facilities, of which 19 are principal manufacturing facilities and 8 are principal warehouse facilities. The Power Efficiency Solutions segment's present operating facilities contain a total of approximately 4.7
million square feet of space, of which approximately 28% are leased.

The following represents our principal manufacturing and warehouse facilities in the Power Efficiency Solutions segment (square footage in millions):

Square Footage

Location Facilities Total Owned Leased

us 7 0.9 0.7 0.2
Mexico 7 13 0.9 0.4
China 6 1.0 0.8 0.2
India 3 0.4 0.4 -
Europe 2 0.1 0.1 —
Other 2 0.3 0.2 0.1
Total 27 4.0 3.1 0.9
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Our AMC segment currently includes 72 facilities, of which 29 are principal manufacturing facilities and 15 are principal warehouse facilities. The Automation & Motion Control segment's present operating facilities contain a total of approximately 3.2
million square feet of space, of which approximately 58% are leased.

The following represents our principal manufacturing and warehouse facilities in the Automation & Motion Control segment (square footage in millions):

Square Footage

Location Facilities Total Owned Leased

us 15 1.3 0.6 0.7
Mexico 4 0.5 0.1 0.4
China 3 0.1 = 0.1
India 9 0.2 0.1 0.1
Europe 8 0.7 0.5 0.2
Other 5 0.1 — 0.1
Total 44 219] 13 1.6
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ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to a variety of litigation and other legal and regulatory claims incidental to our business. We cannot predict the outcome of these lawsuits, legal proceedings and claims with certainty. See Note 11 - Contingencies of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

ITEM 4 - MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5 - MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
General
Our common stock, $0.01 par value per share, is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “RRX.” The number of registered holders of common stock as of February 19, 2025 was 235.

Under our equity incentive plans, participants may pay the exercise price or satisfy all or a portion of the federal, state and local withholding tax obligations arising in connection with plan awards by electing to (a) have the Company withhold shares
of common stock otherwise issuable under the award, (b) tender back shares received in connection with such award or (c) deliver other previously owned shares of common stock, in each case having a value equal to the exercise price or the
amount to be withheld. During the quarter ended December 31, 2024, we did not acquire any shares in connection with transactions pursuant to equity incentive plans.

Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain information relating to our equity compensation plans.
Share Repurchase Program

At a meeting of the Board of Directors on October 26, 2021, the Company's Board of Directors approved the authorization to purchase up to $500.0 million of shares under the Company's share repurchase program. The authorization has no
expiration date. Management is authorized to effect purchases from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions and may enter into Rule 10b5-1 trading plans to enact purchases on behalf of the Company. During
2024, we purchased 332,439 shares or $50.0 million in shares pursuant to the r epurchase authorization. During 2023, we did not repurchase any shares. During 2022 , we purchased 1,698,227 shares or $239.2 million in shares pursuant to the
repurchase authorization. The maximum value of shares of our common stock available to be purchased as of December 31, 2024 is $145.0 million.

There were no repurchases of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2024.
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Stock Performance

The following information in this Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) or
to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act.

The following graph compares the hypothetical total shareholder return (including reinvestment of dividends) on an investment in (1) our common stock, (2) the Standard & Poor's MidCap 400 Index, and (3) the Standard & Poor's 400 Industrials
Index, for the period December 28, 2019 through December 31, 2024. In each case, the graph assumes the investment of $100.00 on December 28, 2019.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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INDEXED RETURNS

Years Ended

Company / Index 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Regal Rexnord Corporation $ 14585 $ 21375 $ 15230 $ 189.70 $ 200.59
S&P MidCap 400 Index 113.73 141.88 123.35 143.63 163.63
116.23 149.30 132.13 173.66 197.08

S&P 400 Industrials Index

First Quarter 2025 Dividend
On January 27, 2025, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.35 per share. The dividend is payable on April 14, 2025, to shareholders of record at the close of business on March 31, 2025.

ITEM 6 - [RESERVED]
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ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars In Millions Except Per Share Data, Unless Otherwise Noted)

Overview

General

Regal Rexnord Corporation (NYSE: RRX) (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) and its associates around the world help create a better tomorrow by providing sustainable solutions that power, transmit and control motion. The Company’s electric
motors and air moving subsystems provide the power to create motion. A portfolio of highly engineered power transmission components and subsystems efficiently transmits motion to power industrial applications. The Company's automation
offering, comprised of controllers, drives, precision motors, and actuators, controls motion in applications ranging from factory automation to precision tools used in surgical applications. We are headquartered in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and have
manufacturing, sales and service facilities worldwide.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company, including its subsidiaries, employed approximately 30,300 full-time people in its global manufacturing, sales, and service facilities and corporate offices. For the year ended December 31, 2024, we reported
annual net sales of $6.0 billion compared to $6.3 billion for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Our company is comprised of three operating segments: Industrial Powertrain Solutions ("IPS"), Power Efficiency Solutions ("PES") and Automation & Motion Control ("AMC").
A description of our three operating segments is as follows:

+ The IPS segment designs, produces and services a broad portfolio of highly-engineered transmission products, including mounted and unmounted bearings, couplings, mechanical power transmission drives and components, gearboxes
and gear motors, clutches, brakes, and industrial powertrain components and solutions. Increasingly, the segment produces industrial powertrain solutions, which are integrated sub-systems comprised of Regal Rexnord motors plus the
critical power transmission components that efficiently transmit motion to power industrial applications. The segment serves a broad range of markets that include metals and mining, general industrial, energy, alternative energy, machinery
1 off-highway, discrete automation and other markets.

« The PES segment designs and produces fractional to approximately 5 horsepower AC and DC motors, electronic variable speed controls, electronic drives, fans and blowers, as well as integrated subsystems comprised of two or more of
these components. The segment's products are used in residential and commercial HVAC, water heaters, commercial refrigeration, commercial building ventilation, pool and spa, irrigation, dewatering, agricultural, conveying and other
applications.

+ The AMC segment designs, produces and services conveyor products, conveying automation subsystems, aerospace components, precision motion control solutions, high-efficiency miniature servo motors, controls, drives and linear
actuators, as well as power management products that include automatic transfer switches and paralleling switchgear. The segment sells into markets that include industrial automation, robotics, food and beverage, aerospace, medical,
agricultural and construction, general industrial, data center, and other markets.

On September 23, 2023, we signed an agreement to sell our industrial motors and generators businesses which represented the substantial majority of the Industrial Systems operating segment. The transaction closed on April 30, 2024. See Note
3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures and Note 5 - Segment Information of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information and a description of the Company's operating segments, respectively.

We have omitted discussion of trends from 2022 to 2023 as this information has been previously disclosed within Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of our 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023 filed with the SEC on February 26, 2024.

Components of Profit and Loss
Net Sales. We sell our products to a variety of manufacturers, distributors and end users. Our customers consist of a large cross-section of businesses, ranging from Fortune 100 companies to small businesses. A number of our products are sold to

OEMs, who incorporate our products into products they manufacture, and many of our products are built to the requirements of our
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customers. The majority of our sales are derived from direct sales to customers by sales personnel employed by the Company, however, a significant portion of our sales are derived from sales made by manufacturer's representatives. Our product
sales are made via purchase order, long-term contract, and, in some instances, one-time purchases. Many of our products have broad customer bases, with the levels of concentration of revenues varying from business unit to business unit.

Our level of net sales for any given period is dependent upon a number of factors, including (i) the demand for our products; (ii) the strength of the economy generally and the end markets in which we compete; (i) our customers’ perceptions of our
product quality at any given time; (iv) our ability to meet customer demands in a timely manner; and (v) the selling price of our products. As a result, our total revenue has tended to experience quarterly variations and our total revenue for any
particular quarter may not be indicative of future results.

We use the term “organic sales” to refer to sales from existing operations excluding (i) sales from acquired businesses recorded prior to the first anniversary of an acquisition (“Acquisition Sales”), (ii) less the amount of sales attributable to any
businesses divested/to be exited, and (jii) the impact of foreign currency translation. The impact of foreign currency translation is determined by translating the respective period’s organic sales using the same currency exchange rates that were in
effect during the prior year periods. We use the term “organic sales growth” to refer to the increase in our sales between periods that is attributable to organic sales. We use the term “acquisition growth” to refer to the increase in our sales between
periods that is attributable to Acquisition Sales. Organic sales, organic sales growth and acquisition growth are non-GAAP financial measures. See reconciliation of these measures to GAAP net sales in the section entitled "Non-GAAP Measures"
below.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit is impacted by our levels of net sales and cost of sales. Our cost of sales consists of costs for, among other things (i) raw materials, including copper, steel and aluminum; (ii) components such as castings, bars, tools,
bearings and electronics; (iii) wages and related personnel expenses for fabrication, assembly and logistics personnel; (iv) manufacturing facilities, including depreciation on our manufacturing facilities and equipment, insurance and utilities; and (v)
shipping. The majority of our cost of sales consists of raw materials and components. The price we pay for commodities and components can be subject to commodity price fluctuations. We attempt to mitigate portions of the commodity price
fluctuations through fixed-price agreements with suppliers and our hedging strategies. When we experience commodity price increases, we have tended to announce price increases to our customers, with such increases generally taking effect a
period of time after the public announcements. For those sales we make under long-term arrangements, we tend to include material price formulas that specify quarterly or semi-annual price adjustments based on a variety of factors, including
commodity prices.

Outside of general economic cyclicality, our business units experience different levels of variation in sales from quarter to quarter based on factors specific to each business. For example, a portion of our PES segment manufactures products that
are used in air conditioning applications. As a result, our sales for that business tend to be lower in the first and fourth quarters and higher in the second and third quarters. In contrast, our IPS and AMC segments each have a broad customer base
and a variety of applications, thereby helping to mitigate large quarter-to-quarter fluctuations outside of general economic conditions.

Operating Expenses. Our operating expenses consist primarily of (i) general and administrative expenses; (i) sales and marketing expenses; (iii) general engineering and research and development expenses; and (iv) handling costs incurred in
conjunction with distribution activities. Personnel related costs are our largest operating expense.

Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of costs for (i) salaries, benefits and other personnel expenses related to our executive, finance, human resource, information technology, legal and operations functions; (ii) occupancy
expenses; (iii) technology related costs; (iv) depreciation and amortization; and (v) corporate-related travel. The majority of our general and administrative costs are for salaries and related personnel expenses. These costs can vary by business
given the location of our different manufacturing operations.

Our sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of costs for (i) salaries, benefits and other personnel expenses related to our sales and marketing function; (ii) internal and external sales commissions and bonuses; (iii) travel, lodging and other
out-of-pocket expenses associated with our selling efforts; and (iv) other related overhead.

Our general engineering and research and development expenses consist primarily of costs for (i) salaries, benefits and other personnel expenses; (ii) the design and development of new products and enhancements to existing products; (jii) quality

assurance and testing; and (iv) other related overhead. Our research and development efforts tend to be targeted toward developing new products that would allow us to maintain or gain additional market share, whether in new or existing
applications. In particular, a large driver of our research and development efforts is to raise the energy efficiency, and lower the environmental impact of our products and sub-systems.
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Goodwill & Other Asset

The following table presents impairments by segment as of December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022:

Industrial Powertrain Automation & Motion
Solutions Power Efficiency Solutions Control Industrial Systems® Total

December 31, 2024
Goodwill Impairments $ — 3 — 8 — % ] —
Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets ) 1.1 1.1 1.8 — 4.0
Loss on Sale of Businesses 17 14 11 4.3 8.5
Total Impairments $ 28 % 25 $ 29 % 43 3% 125

December 31, 2023
Goodwill Impairments $ — $ — $ — 3 573 $ 57.3
Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets (2 25 1.5 3.4 0.4 7.8
Loss on Sale of Businesses ) — — — 87.7 87.7
Total Impairments $ 25 $ 15 $ 34 % 1454  $ 152.8

December 31, 2022
Goodwill Impairments $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets ) 0.9 — — — 0.9
$ 09 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 0.9

Total Impairments

(1) The goodwill impairment in 2023 was in the global industrial motors reporting unit. See Note 4 — Goodwill and Intangible Asserts in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
(2) Related to assets held for sale.
(3) Primarily related to the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for additional information.

Income (Loss) from Operations. Our income (loss) from operations consists of segment gross profit less segment operating expenses. In addition, there are shared operating costs that cover corporate, engineering and IT expenses that are
consistently allocated to the operating segments and are included in segment operating expenses. Income (loss) from operations is a key metric used to measure year-over-year performance of the segments.

Altra Transaction

On March 27, 2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Altra Merger Agreement, by and among us, Altra, and Merger Sub, pursuant to the satisfaction of specified conditions, Merger Sub merged with and into Altra, with Altra
surviving the Altra Merger as our wholly owned subsidiary. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the Altra Transaction.

In connection with the Altra Transaction, we entered into certain financing arrangements, which are described within Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities.
2025 Outlook

In 2025, we expect diluted earnings per share to be $4.42 to $5.22. Our 2025 diluted earnings per share guidance is based on an effective tax rate of 21.5%.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected information for the years indicated:

2024 2023
Net Sales: Amount Percent of Net Sales Amount Percent of Net Sales
Industrial Powertrain Solutions $ 2,598.1 $ 2,403.5
Power Efficiency Solutions 1,644.1 1,808.9
Automation & Motion Control 1,633.8 1,516.8
Industrial Systems® 157.8 5215
Consolidated $ 6,033.8 $ 6,250.7
Gross Profit
Industrial Powertrain Solutions $ 1,051.5 40.5 % $ 844.1 35.1%
Power Efficiency Solutions 458.7 279 % 524.9 29.0%
Automation & Motion Control 641.6 39.3 % 582.4 38.4 %
Industrial Systems® 39.2 24.8 % 115.9 222 %
Consolidated $ 2,191.0 36.3 %$ 2,067.3 33.1%
Operating Expenses
Industrial Powertrain Solutions $ 728.8 281 %$ 692.3 28.8 %
Power Efficiency Solutions 296.1 18.0 % 307.5 17.0 %
Automation & Motion Control 497.2 304 % 443.4 29.2%
Industrial Systems® 38.9 24.7 % 247.0 47.4%
Consolidated $ 1,561.0 259 %$ 1,690.2 27.0%
Income (Loss) from Operations
Industrial Powertrain Solutions $ 322.7 124 %$ 151.8 6.3%
Power Efficiency Solutions 162.6 9.9 % 217.4 12.0%
Automation & Motion Control 144.4 8.8 % 139.0 92%
Industrial Systems® 0.3 0.2 % (131.1) (25.1)%
Consolidated $ 630.0 104 % $ 377.1 6.0 %
Interest Expense 399.7 431.0
Interest Income (18.8) (43.6)
Other Expense (Income), Net 1.1 (8.7)
Income (Loss) before Taxes 248.0 (1.6)
Provision for Income Taxes 49.6 52.7
Net Income (Loss) 198.4 (54.3)
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 2.2 3.1
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation $ 196.2 $ (57.4)

(1) Results for the Industrial Systems segment covers results through the close of the sale on April 30, 2024.
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Year Ended December 31, 2024 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2023

Net sales for 2024 were $6,033.8 million, a decrease of $216.9 million, or 3.5% as compared to 2023. The decrease consisted of an organic sales decline of 5.0% and a negative foreign currency translation impact of 0.3%, partially offset by
acquisition growth of 7.5%. In addition, the decrease includes a negative impact of $342.7 million related to the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses, which closed on April 30, 2024. The acquisition growth of $442.5 million relates
to the acquisition of Altra. The $295.9 million organic sales decline was due to lower organic sales of $158.1 million within PES, $77.2 million within AMC, $41.0 million within IPS, and $19.6 million within Industrial Systems. Gross profit increased
$123.7 million or 6.0% as compared to the prior year due to $175.2 million from the acquisition of Altra, the absence of $53.6 million of acquisition-related inventory step-up amortization at IPS and AMC in 2024, and the benefits of productivity and
acquisition-related cost synergies, partially offset by a decrease of $66.2 million within PES and a decrease of $76.7 million due to the divestiture of the industrial motors and generators businesses. Total operating expenses for 2024 were $1,561.0
million, a decrease of $129.2 million, or 7.6% as compared to 2023. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction of $208.1 million from the divestiture of the industrial motors and generators businesses which included an $83.4 million decrease to
loss on the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses, the impact of a $57.3 million goodwill impairment recorded during 2023 in connection with the sale, and a decrease of $63.0 million in transaction and integration related costs,
offset by an increase of $122.0 million from the acquisition of Altra.

IPS net sales for 2024 were $2,598.1 million, an increase of $194.6 million or 8.1% as compared to 2023. The increase consisted of acquisition growth of 10.1%, partially offset by an organic sales decline of 1.7% and a negative foreign currency
translation impact of 0.3%. The acquisition growth of $243.2 million relates to the acquisition of Altra. The $41.0 million decrease in organic sales was due to weakness in machinery/off-highway, alternative energy and general industrial markets,
partially offset by strength in the energy and aerospace markets, and gains from cross-selling synergies. Gross profit increased $207.4 million or 24.6% due to $92.4 from the acquisition of Altra, the absence of $39.6 million of acquisition-related
inventory step-up amortization in 2024, and the benefits of productivity and acquisition-related cost synergies. Total operating expenses for 2024 were $728.8 million, an increase of $36.5 million, or 5.3% as compared to 2023. The increase was due
to $60.0 million from the acquisition of Altra, partially offset by a decrease of $37.6 million in transaction and integration costs.

PES net sales for 2024 were $1,644.1 million, a decrease of $164.8 million or 9.1% as compared to 2023. The decrease consisted of an organic sales decline of 8.8% and a negative foreign currency translation impact of 0.2%. The $158.1 million
decrease in organic sales was due to declines in residential HVAC, general commercial, and non-U.S. commercial HVAC markets, partially offset by strength in the commercial HVAC market in North America. Gross profit decreased $66.2 million or
12.6% due to lower sales volumes, partially offset by management's control over discretionary spending and lower freight costs. Total operating expenses for 2024 were relatively consistent with 2023.

AMC net sales for 2024 were $1,633.8 million, an increase of $117.0 million or 7.7% as compared to 2023. The increase consisted of acquisition growth of 13.1% offset by an organic sales decline of 5.1% and a negative foreign currency translation

impact of 0.3%. The acquisition growth of $199.3 million relates to the acquisition of Altra. The $77.2 million decrease in organic sales was due to weakness in discrete automation and general industrial markets, partially offset by strength in the

aerospace, data center, medical, and food and beverage markets. Gross profit increased $59.2 million or 10.2% due to $82.8 million from the acquisition of Altra, the absence of $14.0 million of acquisition-related inventory step-up amortization in

2024, and the benefits of productivity and acquisition-related cost synergies, partially offset by the organic sales decline. Total operating expenses for 2024 increased $53.8 million, or 12.1% as compared to 2023. The increase in operating expenses
was due to $62.0 million from the acquisition of Altra, partially offset by a decrease of $25.5 million in transaction and integration costs.

On April 30, 2024, the Company completed the sale of its industrial motors and generators businesses, which represented the substantial majority of the Industrial Systems segment, and recognized a $4.3 million loss on the sale during 2024. The
changes in Industrial Systems sales, gross profit and other operating expenses were due to timing of the sale.

The effective tax rate for 2024 was 20.0% compared to (3,293.8)% for 2023. The effective tax rate in 2024 reflects lower US tax on foreign earnings and discrete tax benefits associated with a reduction in withholding taxes, while the effective tax
rate in 2023 was largely driven by the impact of the nondeductible goodwill impairment and held for sale loss related to the divestiture of the industrial motors and generators businesses.

Non-GAAP Measures
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As noted above, we disclose organic sales, organic sales growth and acquisition growth non-GAAP financial measures, and we reconcile these measures in the table below to GAAP net sales. We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures
are useful measures for providing investors with additional information regarding our results of operations and for helping investors understand and compare our operating results across accounting periods and compared to our peers. This
additional non-GAAP information is not meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the Company's results of operations prepared and presented in accordance with GAAP.

Industrial Powertrain Automation & Motion
Solutions Power Efficiency Solutions Control Industrial Systems Total
Net Sales for Year Ended December 31, 2024 $ 2,598.1 $ 1,644.1 $ 1,633.8 $ 157.8 $ 6,033.8
Acquisition Sales (243.2) — (199.3) — (442.5)
Impact of Foreign Currency Translation 7.6 4.6 5.1 14 18.7
Organic Sales for Year Ended December 31, 2024 $ 2,362.5 $ 1,648.7 $ 1,439.6 $ 159.2 $ 5,610.0
Organic Sales Growth for Year Ended December 31, 2024 1.7% (8.8)% 5.1)% (11.00% (5.00%
Acquisition Growth for Year Ended December 31, 2024 10.1 % —% 131 % — % 75%
Impact from Foreign Currency Exchange Rates (0.3)% (0.2)% 0.3)% 0.7)% (0.3)%
Net Sales for Year Ended December 31, 2023 $ 2,403.5 $ 1,808.9 $ 1,516.8 $ 5215 $ 6,250.7
Net Sales from Businesses Divested — (2.1) — (342.7) (344.8)
Adjusted Net Sales for Year Ended December 31, 2023 $ 2,403.5 $ 1,806.8 $ 1,516.8 $ 178.8 $ 5,905.9

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Our principal source of liquidity is cash flow provided by operating activities. In addition to operating income, other significant factors affecting our cash flows include working capital levels, capital expenditures, dividends, share repurchases,
acquisitions, and divestitures, availability of debt financing, and the ability to attract long-term capital at acceptable terms.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $609.4 million in 2024, a $105.9 million decrease from 2023. This decrease was driven primarily by working capital changes.

Our working capital was $1,535.6 million and $2,057.6 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The prior year included $257.8 million net assets held for sale related primarily to the industrial motors and generators
businesses. The remaining decline in working capital was primarily due to the timing of payments and collections on accounts payable and accounts receivable, as well as improvements in managing inventory levels.

Cash flow provided by investing activities was $275.4 million in 2024, compared to cash flow used in investing activities of $4,983.0 million in 2023. The change was driven primarily by the use of $4,870.2 million of cash to acquire Altra in 2023 and
$374.8 million in proceeds received from the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses in 2024. Capital expenditures were $109.5 million in 2024, compared to $119.1 million in 2023.

In 2025, we anticipate capital spending for property, plant and equipment to be approximately $120 million. We believe that our present manufacturing facilities will be sufficient to provide adequate capacity for our operations in 2025. We anticipate
funding 2025 capital spending with operating cash flows.
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Cash flow used in financing activities was $1,095.8 million in 2024, compared to $4,203.6 million cash flow provided by financing activities in 2023. Net debt repayments totaled $938.3 million in 2024, compared to net debt borrowings of $4,372.5
million in 2023. The net debt repayments in the current year primarily resulted from payments of $388.5 million on the term loan, $486.8 million on the land term loan and $58.1 million net repayments made on the revolver. The net borrowings in
the prior year were primarily the result of the $4.7 billion of Senior Notes issued in January 2023 and the $840.0 million upsize of the unsecured term loan facility in March 2023, partially offset by the repayment in January 2023 of the $500.0 million
3.90% notes originally issued on April 7, 2022, payments of $322.8 million on the term loan and $330.9 million net repayments made on the revolver. The Company repurchased and retired $50.0 million of common stock during the year ended
December 31, 2024 to partially offset the dilutive impact of share-based compensation awards. There were no share repurchases in 2023. We paid $93.0 million in dividends to shareholders in 2024 compared to $92.8 million in 2023. In 2024, we
paid distributions of $3.3 million to noncontrolling interests compared to $16.2 million in 2023.

The following table presents selected financial information and statistics as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 393.5 $ 574.0
Trade Receivables, Net 842.8 921.6
Inventories 1,227.5 1,274.2
Accounts Payable 542.8 549.4
Working Capital 1,535.6 2,057.6
Current Ratio 231 2.6:1

As of December 31, 2024, $383.9 million of our cash was held by foreign subsidiaries and could be used in our domestic operations if necessary. We anticipate being able to support our short-term liquidity and operating needs largely through cash
generated from operations. We regularly assess our cash needs and the available sources to fund these needs, which includes repatriation of foreign earnings that may be subject to withholding taxes. Under current law, we do not expect
restrictions or taxes on repatriation of cash held outside of the US to have a material effect on our overall liquidity, financial condition or the results of operations for the foreseeable future. We repatriated approximately $773.4 million of foreign cash
in 2024 to support the repayment of debt. We are continuing to evaluate opportunities to repatriate additional foreign cash in 2025.

We will, from time to time, maintain excess cash balances which may be used to (i) fund operations, (ii) repay outstanding debt, (jii) fund acquisitions, (iv) pay dividends, (v) make investments in new product development programs, (vi) repurchase
our common stock, or (vii) fund other corporate objectives.

In May 2024, the Company completed transactions to exchange the unregistered Senior Notes for the registered New Notes, which are described within Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities.

The Company plans to use cash generated from operations to fund its interest obligations and reduce the principal balance of its debt over time. The Company also used the net proceeds from the sale of its industrial motors and generators
businesses to repay outstanding debt.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had $665.0 million of borrowings under the Term Facility and no borrowings under Land Term Facility. As of December 31, 2024 we had $40.0 million of borrowings under the Multicurrency Revolving Facility
and $1,530.0 million of available borrowing capacity. The Company pays a non-use fee on the aggregate unused amount of the Multicurrency Revolving Facility at a rate determined by reference to its consolidated funded debt to consolidated
EBITDA ratio.

See Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities and Note 3 — Acquisitions and Divestitures of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Litigation

See Part 1 - Item 3 - Legal Proceedings and Note 11 — Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Guarantor Information
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Regal Rexnord Corporation (the “Parent”) is the issuer of the Senior Notes, which are guaranteed by each of its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries that is a borrower or guarantor under the Credit Agreement (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”
and, each, a “Guarantor Subsidiary”). The Senior Notes are jointly and severally unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Guarantor Subsidiaries. The guarantees are subject to release in limited circumstances upon the
occurrence of certain customary conditions. For example, a Guarantor Subsidiary may be released from its guarantee of the Senior Notes under certain circumstances, including following the Parent achieving certain corporate or similar credit
ratings. In addition, the guarantee of a Guarantor Subsidiary will automatically terminate under certain circumstances, including if such Guarantor Subsidiary is permanently released from its guarantee of, and is not a borrower under, the Credit
Agreement.

If any of the Parent's subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes (the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”) becomes insolvent, liquidates, reorganizes, dissolves or otherwise winds up, holders of its indebtedness and its trade creditors generally
will be entitled to payment on their claims from the assets of such subsidiary before any of those assets would be made available to the Parent or any Guarantor Subsidiary. Consequently, the claims of holders of the Senior Notes are structurally
subordinated to all of the existing and future liabilities, including trade payables, of the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries.

The following tables set forth financial information attributable to the Parent and the Guarantor Subsidiaries (collectively the “Obligor Group”). The financial information of the Obligor Group is presented on a combined basis, excluding intercompany
balances and transactions between entities in the Obligor Group which have been eliminated. The financial information of the Obligor Group excludes equity investments in, and equity income or loss from, subsidiaries that are not in the Obligor
Group. Material amounts due from, due to, and transactions with Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries which are included in the condensed financial information of the Obligor Group are presented with each table.

The following table sets forth summarized balance sheet information of the Obligor Group as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The December 31, 2023 balance sheet information includes balances of the industrial motors and
generators businesses which were classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at that time:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total Current Assets 1,132.2 1,285.0
Goodwill 4,220.9 4,262.6
Intangible Assets, Net of Amortization 2,178.3 2,374.0
Other Noncurrent Assets 863.3 1,062.8
Total Noncurrent Assets 7,262.5 7,699.4
Total Current Liabilities 658.0 697.0
Long-Term Debt 5,428.0 6,351.3
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 3,682.5 4,246.1
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 9,110.5 10,597.4
Due from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries 398.5 526.4
Due to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries 3,114.0 3,453.1

The following table sets forth summarized income statement information of the Obligor Group for the year ended December 31, 2024:
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Year Ended December 31, 2024

Net Sales

Gross Profit

Income from Operations

Interest Expense

Net Loss

Net Loss Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation
Net Sales to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries

Interest Expense Due to Non-Guarantors
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3,200.5
1,219.5
215.7
540.6
(299.2)

(299.2)

2553
151.0



Legislative Developments

Final laws enacting the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development's global minimum tax framework were in force beginning in 2024 in several countries where we do business, and similar laws could be enacted in other countries
where we operate. The Company continually monitors legislation updates and administrative guidance. The current impact of the global minimum tax framework is not material to the Company's resuits of operations.

Cash Requil for Other Fil ial C

The following is a summary of our future estimated cash payments by period as of December 31, 2024:

Debt Including Estimated Purchase and Other Total Contractual
Payments Due by Period @ Interest Payments Operating Leases Finance Leases Pension Obligations Obligations Obligations
Less than one year $ 3423 $ 454 $ 82 $ 157 $ 1,199.8 $ 1,611.4
1-3years 2,384.5 69.6 16.5 75 - 2,478.1
3-5years 1,649.1 30.2 14.2 6.2 — 1,699.7
More than 5 years 2,751.7 75.3 62.2 12.4 — 2,901.6
Total $ 71276 $ 2205 $ 1011 $ 418 $ 1,1998 $ 8,690.8

(1) The timing and future spot prices affect the settlement values of our hedge obligations related to commodities and currency exchange rates. Accordingly, these obligations are not included above in the table of contractual obligations (See also Item 7A and Note 12
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial The timing of of our tax contingent liabilities cannot be reasonably determined and they are not included in the table above. Future pension obligation payments include contributions and benefit
payments. Future pension contributions after 2024 are subject to revaluation based on changes in the benefit population and/or changes in the value of pension assets based on market conditions that are not determinable as of December 31, 2024.

(2) Variable rate debt interest is based on December 31, 2024 rates. See also Note 6- Debt and Bank Credit Facilities of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We utilize blanket purchase orders (“Blankets”) to communicate expected annual requirements to many of our suppliers. Requirements under Blankets generally do not become “firm” until a varying number of weeks before our scheduled production.
The purchase obligations shown in the above table represent the value we consider “firm”.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the US requires us to make estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses during the periods reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies could have the most significant effect on our
reported results.

Purchase Accounting and Business Combinations

Assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as part of a business combination are recognized separately from goodwill at their acquisition date fair values. Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration transferred
over the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. We, with the assistance of outside specialists as necessary, use estimates and assumptions to value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date as well as contingent consideration, where applicable. We may refine these estimates during the measurement period which may be up to one year from the acquisition date. As a result, during the measurement period, we record
adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes
first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to our Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).
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Goodwill

We test goodwill for impairment at least annually and perform our annual impairment test as of the end of October. We monitor for goodwill impairment triggering events at least quarterly, and if a trigger is identified we test goodwill for impairment
during the interim period. Factors that could trigger an impairment assessment include significant underperformance relative to historical or forecasted operating results, a significant decrease in the market value of an asset or significant negative
industry or economic trends. Reporting units with recent impairments or those with goodwill resulting from recent acquisitions generally present the highest risk of impairment.

When testing goodwill for impairment, we have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether a quantitative test is necessary. In performing qualitative assessments, we evaluate, among other things, actual and forecasted
operating results, certain market factors, including discount rates and peer company EBITDA multiples, and the passing margin of prior quantitative tests.

If a quantitative test is performed, we determine the fair value of each reporting unit utilizing an income approach (discounted cash flow method) weighted 75% and a market approach (consisting of a comparable public company multiples
methodology) weighted 25%. The assumptions that have the most significant effect on the fair value calculations are discount rates, market multiples, forecasted revenue and EBITDA and terminal growth rates. Discount rates are determined using
market and industry data and reflect the risks and uncertainties inherent to each reporting unit and our internally developed forecasts.

For the 2024 annual goodwill test, we performed a qualitative assessment to evaluate goodwill for each of our reporting units, except for two reporting units in the AMC segment which were quantitatively tested. For each of the reporting units we
qualitatively assessed, we concluded that it was more likely that not that the fair value exceeded the carrying value and thus a quantitative test was not necessary. For the two reporting units we quantitatively tested, the discount rate used in the
income approach was 12.5%. Based on the results of quantitative test, the fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its carrying value and thus no goodwill impairments were recorded. The fair value exceeded carrying value by more than 10% for
one of the two reporting units. There is inherent uncertainty included in the assumptions used in goodwill impairment testing and a change to any of the assumptions could lead to a future impairment, which could be material. See Note 4 — Goodwill
and Intangible Assets of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amount of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable through future cash flows. When applying the
accounting guidance, we use estimates to determine when an impairment is necessary. Factors that could trigger an impairment review include a significant decrease in the market value of an asset or significant negative or economic trends. For
long-lived assets, the Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows over the remaining life of the primary asset to estimate recoverability.

Other Disclosures

Dividends

Quarterly dividends declared by Regal Rexnord Corporation's Board of Directors during the year ended December 31, 2024 and for the first quarter of 2025 were as follows:

Period Declaration Date Shareholder of Record Date Dividend Payable Date Cash per Share
First Quarter 2024 January 29, 2024 March 28, 2024 April 12,2024 $ 0.35
Second Quarter 2024 April 22, 2024 June 28, 2024 July 12,2024 $ 0.35
Third Quarter 2024 July 22, 2024 September 27, 2024 October 11, 2024 $ 0.35
Fourth Quarter 2024 October 24, 2024 December 31, 2024 January 14, 2025 $ 0.35
First Quarter 2025 January 27, 2025 March 31, 2025 April 14,2025 $ 0.35
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ITEM 7A - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk relating to our operations due to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices of purchased raw materials. We manage the exposure to these risks through a combination of normal
operating and financing activities and derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, commodity cash flow hedges and foreign currency forward exchange contracts. All hedging transactions are authorized and executed pursuant to
clearly defined policies and procedures, which prohibit the use of financial instruments for speculative purposes.

All qualified hedges are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and are accounted for as cash flow hedges, with changes in fair value recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI") in each accounting period. An
ineffective portion of the hedges' change in fair value, if any, is recorded in earnings in the period of change.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk on certain of our short-term and long-term debt obligations used to finance our operations and acquisitions. As of December 31, 2024, we had $4,794.8 million of fixed rate debt and $705.0 million of variable rate
debt. As of December 31, 2023, we had $4,796.1 million of fixed rate debt and $1,638.4 million of variable rate debt. We utilize interest rate swaps to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from exposure to interest rate risk on forecasted
variable rate interest payments.

We have floating rate borrowings, which expose us to variability in interest payments due to changes in interest rates. A hypothetical 10% change in our weighted average borrowing rate on outstanding variable rate debt as of December 31, 2024
would result in a $3.8 million change in after-tax annualized earnings. We entered into two forward starting pay fixed/receive floating non-amortizing interest rate swaps in June 2020, with a total notional amount of $250.0 million to manage
fluctuations in cash flows from interest rate risk related to floating rate interest. These swaps were terminated in March 2022 upon closing the Credit Agreement. The cash proceeds of $16.2 million received to settle the terminated swaps will be
recognized into interest expense via the effective interest rate method through July 2025 when the terminated swaps were scheduled to expire. We also entered into two forward starting pay fixed/receive floating non-amortizing interest rate swaps
in May 2022, with a total notional amount of $250.0 million to manage fluctuations in cash flows from interest rate risk related to floating rate interest. Upon inception, the swaps were designated as a cash flow hedges against forecasted interest
payments with gains and losses, net of tax, measured on an ongoing basis, recorded in AOCI.

Details regarding the instruments as of December 31, 2024 are as follows (in millions):

Instrument Notional Amount Maturity Rate Paid Rate Received Fair Value
Swap $250.0 March 2027 3.0% SOFR (3 Month) $5.5

As of December 31, 2024, a $5.5 million interest rate swap was included in Other Noncurrent Assets. As of December 31, 2023, a $5.3 million interest rate swap was included in Other Noncurrent Assets. There was an unrealized gain of $6.4
million, net of tax, (a $2.2 million gain on the terminated swaps and a $4.2 million gain on the active swaps) for 2024 and an unrealized gain of $10.6 million, net of tax, (a $6.5 million gain on the terminated swaps and a $4.1 million gain on the
active swaps) for 2023 that were recorded in AOCI for the effective portion of the hedges.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risks that arise from normal business operations. These risks include the translation of local currency balances of foreign subsidiaries, intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries and transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. Our objective is to minimize our exposure to these risks through a combination of normal operating activities and the utilization of foreign currency exchange contracts to manage our exposure on the forecasted transactions
denominated in currencies other than the applicable functional currency. Contracts are executed with credit worthy banks and are denominated in currencies of major industrial countries. We do not hedge our exposure to the translation of reported
results of foreign subsidiaries from local currency to US dollars.

As of December 31, 2024, derivative currency assets (liabilities) of $1.0 million and $(13.6) million, are recorded in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets and Other Accrued Expenses, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, derivative

currency assets (liabilities) of $14.4 million, $0.2 million and $(6.9) million, are recorded in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets, Other Noncurrent Assets and Other Accrued Expenses, respectively. The unrealized loss on the effective
portions of the hedges of $5.7 million net of tax and unrealized gain of $9.3 million net of tax, as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
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respectively, are recorded in AOCI. As of December 31, 2024, we had $2.5 million, net of tax, of currency losses on closed hedge instruments in AOCI that will be realized in earnings when the hedged items impact earnings. As of December 31,
2023, we had $10.2 million, net of tax, of currency gains on closed hedge instruments in AOCI that will be realized in earnings when the hedged items impact earnings.

The following table quantifies the outstanding foreign exchange contracts intended to hedge non-US Dollar denominated receivables and payables and the corresponding impact on the value of these instruments assuming a hypothetical 10%
appreciation/depreciation of their counter currency on December 31, 2024 (dollars in millions):
Gain (Loss) From:

Notional Fair 10% Appreciation of 10% Depreciation of
Currency Amount Value Counter Currency Counter Currency
Mexican Peso $ 233.2 $ (7.1) $ 233 $ (23.3)
Chinese Renminbi 359.5 (0.2) 36.0 (36.0)
Indian Rupee 23.0 (0.4) 23 (2.3)
Euro 1,2215 (4.4) 1222 (122.2)
Canadian Dollar 52.2 (0.5) 5.2 (5.2)
British Pound 6.1 — 0.6 (0.6)

Gains and losses indicated in the sensitivity analysis would be largely offset by gains and losses on the underlying forecasted non-US Dollar denominated cash flows.
Commodity Price Risk

We periodically enter into commodity hedging transactions to reduce the impact of changing prices for certain commodities such as copper and aluminum based upon forecasted purchases of such commodities. Qualified hedge transactions are
designated as cash flow hedges and the contract terms of commodity hedge instruments generally mirror those of the hedged item, providing a high degree of risk reduction and correlation.

Derivative commodity assets (liabilities) of $0.1 million and $(4.4) million are recorded in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets and Other Accrued Expenses, respectively as of December 31, 2024. Derivative commodity assets (liabilities) of
$1.0 million, $0.1 million and $(0.6) million are recorded in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets, Other Noncurrent Assets and Other Accrued Expenses, respectively as of December 31, 2023. The unrealized loss on the effective portion of
the hedges of $3.2 million net of tax and unrealized gain of $0.3 million net of tax, as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, was recorded in AOCI. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had $0.5 million and
$1.6 million, respectively, net of tax derivative commodity losses on closed hedge instruments in AOCI that will be realized in earnings when the hedged items impact earnings.

The following table quantifies the outstanding commodity contracts intended to hedge raw material commodity prices and the corresponding impact on the value of these instruments assuming a hypothetical 10% appreciation/depreciation of their
prices on December 31, 2024 (dollars in millions):
Gain (Loss) From:

Notional Fair 10% Appreciation of 10% Depreciation of
Commodity Amount Value Commodity Prices Commodity Prices
Copper $ 41.7 $ (4.3) $ 4.2 $ “4.2)

Gains and losses indicated in the sensitivity analysis would be largely offset by the actual prices of the commodities.

The net AOCI balance related to hedging activities of a $(5.5) million loss as of December 31, 2024 includes $(9.8) million of net current deferred losses expected to be realized in the next twelve months.
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Counterparty Risk
We are exposed to credit losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to various financial agreements, including our interest rate swap agreements, foreign currency exchange contracts and commodity hedging transactions. We

manage exposure to counterparty credit risk by limiting our counterparties to major international banks and financial institutions meeting established credit guidelines and continually monitoring their compliance with the credit guidelines. We do not
obtain collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to credit risk. We do not anticipate non-performance by our counterparties, but cannot provide assurances.
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ITEM 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The management of Regal Rexnord Corporation (the “Company") is responsible for the accuracy and internal consistency of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and footnotes contained in this annual report.

The Company's management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company operates under a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of published financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal accounting control system is evaluated for effectiveness by management
and is tested, monitored and revised as necessary. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In making its assessment, the Company's management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013). Based on the results of its evaluation, the Company's management concluded that, as of December 31, 2024, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting is effective at the reasonable assurance level based on those criteria.

Our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein

February 21, 2025
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Regal Rexnord Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Regal Rexnord Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of income (loss), comprehensive income
(loss), equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures

that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

G il ion - Factory ion Reporting Unit — Refer to Notes 3 and 5 to the Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company performed an impairment evaluation of the gooduwill for the Factory Automation reporting unit by comparing the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value. In order to estimate the fair value of the reporting unit,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions related to the discount rate and forecasts of future revenues, which involve significant judgment. Changes in these assumptions could have a significant impact on either the fair value,
the amount of any goodwill impairment charge, or both. As of October 31, 2024, the Company’s measurement date, the Company determined that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value and therefore no impairment was
recognized.

We identified the impairment evaluation of goodwill for the Factory Automation reporting unit as a critical audit matter because of the inherent subjectivity involved in management's estimates and assumptions related to the discount rate and

forecasts of future revenues. The audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management's estimates and assumptions related to the
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selection of the discount rate and forecast of future revenues required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our fair value specialists.
How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures related to the selection of the discount rate and forecasts of future revenues for the Factory Automation reporting unit included the following, among others:
*  We evaluated the design and effectiveness of the controls over management's goodwill impairment evaluation, including those over the selection of the discount rate and forecast of future revenues.

* We evaluated the reasonableness of management's forecasts by comparing the forecasts to (1) historical results, (2) internal communications to management and the Board of Directors, and (3) forecasted information included in analyst
and industry reports for the Company and certain of its peer companies.

*  We assessed management's historical ability to accurately forecast the reporting unit's results of operations.
+  We assessed management'’s intent and/or ability to take specific actions included in management's forecasts.
+  With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rate by:

— Testing the source information underlying management’s determination of the discount rate

- Testing the mathematical accuracy of management's calculations

— Developing a range of independent estimates and compared those to the discount rate selected by management

Is/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
February 21, 2025

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Regal Rexnord Corporation

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Regal Rexnord Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in  Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria

established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, of the Company and
our report dated February 21, 2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Is/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin

February 21, 2025
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Net Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Operating Expenses
Goodwill Impairment
Asset Impairments
Loss on Sale of Businesses
Total Operating Expenses
Income from Operations
Interest Expense
Interest Income
Other Expense (Income), Net
Income (Loss) before Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income (Loss)

Less: Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation

Earnings (Loss) Per Share Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation:

Basic

Assuming Dilution

Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding:

Basic

Assuming Dilution

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 6,033.8 6,250.7 $ 5,217.9
3,842.8 4,183.4 3,548.2

2,191.0 2,067.3 1,669.7

1,548.5 1,537.4 978.4

— 57.3 —

4.0 7.8 0.9

8.5 87.7 —

1,561.0 1,690.2 979.3

630.0 377.1 690.4

399.7 4310 87.2

(1838) (436) (5.2)

11 (8.7) (5.4)

248.0 (16) 613.8

496 52.7 118.9

198.4 (54.3) 494.9

22 31 6.0

$ 196.2 (574) $ 488.9
$ 2.96 (0.87) $ 7.33
$ 2.94 (0.87) $ 7.29
66.4 66.3 66.7

66.7 66.3 67.1

See acc ying Notes to the Cor
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

Net Income (Loss)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income Net of Tax:
Translation:

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Reclassification of Foreign Currency Translation Losses to Earnings (see Note 3 - Acquisitions and

Divestitures)
Hedging Activities:

(Decrease) Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Activities, Net of Tax Effects of $(4.5) Million in 2024, $ 6.8

Million in 2023 and $ 1.5 Million in 2022

Reclassification of Gains Included in Net Income (Loss), Net of Tax Effects of $( 6.4 ) Million in 2024, $(

3.1) Million in 2023 and $( 2.6 ) Million in 2022
Pension and Post Retirement Plans:

Decrease (Increase) in Prior Service Cost and Unrecognized Loss, Net of Tax Effects of $ 1.2 million in

2024, $( 3.3 ) million in 2023 and zero in 2022

Amortization of Prior Service Cost and Unrecognized (Gain) Loss Included in Net Periodic Pension Cost,

Net of Tax Effects of $( 0.1 ) Million in 2024, $( 0.4 ) Million in 2023 and $ 0.2 Million in 2022
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Comprehensive Income

Less: Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation

$ 198.4 $ (543) $ 494.9
(251.6) 69.4 (157.9)
121.3 — —
$ (14.1) $ 214 $ 46
(202) (343) (9.9) 115 (83) (37)
37 (104) 0.1
(02) 35 (13) (11.7) 0.9 10
(161.1) 69.2 (160.6)
373 14.9 334.3
14 26 24
$ 35.9 $ 12.3 $ 331.9

See accc

ying Notes to the Cor
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REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 393.5 574.0
Trade Receivables, Less Allowances of $ 29.9 Million in 2024 and $ 30.3 Million in 2023 8428 921.6
Inventories 1,227.5 1,274.2
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 267.9 245.6
Assets Held for Sale 19.6 368.6
Total Current Assets 2,751.3 3,384.0
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 921.0 1,041.2
Operating Lease Assets 1413 172.8
Goodwill 6,458.9 6,553.1
Intangible Assets, Net of Amortization 3,664.5 4,083.4
Deferred Income Tax Benefits 30.0 338
Other Noncurrent Assets 66.7 69.0
Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale — 94.1
Total Assets $ 14,033.7 15,431.4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 542.8 549.4
Dividends Payable 232 232
Accrued Compensation and Benefits 191.3 198.7
Accrued Interest 84.0 85.1
Other Accrued Expenses 333.8 325.2
Current Operating Lease Liabilities 35.6 37.2
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 5.0 39
Liabilities Held for Sale — 103.7
Total Current Liabilities 1,215.7 1,326.4
Long-Term Debt 5,452.7 6,377.0
Deferred Income Taxes 815.5 1,012.7
Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefits 109.5 120.4
Noncurrent Operating Lease Liabilities 114.1 132.2
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 59.0 772
Noncurrent Liabilities Held for Sale = 204
C ies (see Note 11 - Cc
Equity:
Regal Rexnord Corporation Shareholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $ 0.01 Par Value, 150.0 Million Shares Authorized, 66.3 Million Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 0.7 0.7
Additional Paid-In Capital 4,658.0 4,646.2
Retained Earnings 2,043.8 1,979.8
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (442.7) (282.4)
Total Regal Rexnord Corporation Shareholders' Equity 6,259.8 6,344.3
Noncontrolling Interests 74 20.8
Total Equity 6,267.2 6,365.1
$ 14,033.7 15,431.4

Total Liabilities and Equity

See acc ying Notes to the Cor 1 Financial Statements.
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Balance as of January 1, 2022

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Loss

Dividends Declared ($ 1.38 Per Share)

Stock Options Exercised

Share-Based Compensation

Repurchase of Common Stock

Dividends Declared to Noncontrolling Interests
Balance as of December 31, 2022

Net (Loss) Income

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Dividends Declared ($ 1.40 Per Share)

Stock Options Exercised

Share-Based Compensation

Replacement Equity-Based Awards Granted
Dividends Declared to Noncontrolling Interests
Balance as of December 31, 2023

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Loss

Dividends Declared ($ 1.40 Per Share)

Stock Options Exercised

Repurchase of Common Stock

Businesses Divested

Share-Based Compensation

Dividends Declared to Noncontrolling Interests

Balance as of December 31, 2024

Common Stock $0.01 Par Value

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

Additional Paid-In Capital

Retained Eamings

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Noncontrolling

Interests

Equity

07 46518 19126 § (195.1) 382 6.408.2
— — 488.9 — 60 4949
- = = (157.0) (36) (1606)
- — (91.7) — - (91.7)
— (53) = = - (53)
- 25 — - - 25
- (59.4) (179.8) - - (239.2)
— — — — (62) (62)

07 46096 21300 S (3521) 344 64226
— — (57.4) - 31 (543)
— = - 69.7 (05) 692
— - (928) - - (928)
- (9.6) - - - (9.6)
- 416 - - - 416
— 46 = = - 46
_ _ _ — (162) (16.2)

07 4,646.2 19798 § (282.4) 208 6,365.1
— — 196.2 — 22 198.4
— - - (2816) (08) (2824)
— — (93.0) — - (93.0)
— (12.2) = = - (122)
— (108) (392) — — (500)
- = = 1213 (115) 1098
— 348 — — — 8
— — — — (33) (33)

07 4658.0 20438 S (442.7) 7.4 6,267.2

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (Net of Acquisitions and Divestitures):

Depreciation
Amortization

Goodwill Impairment

Asset Impairments

Loss on Sale of Businesses

Noncash Lease Expense
Share-Based Compensation Expense
Financing Fee Expense

Benefit from Deferred Income Taxes
Gain on Sale of Assets

Other Non-Cash Changes

Change in Operating Assets and Liabiliies, Net of Acquisitions and Divestitures.

Receivables
Inventories.
Accounts Payable
Other Assets and Liabiliies
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment
Business Acquisitions, Net of Cash Acquired
Proceeds Received from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds Received from Sale of Businesses, Net of Cash Transferred
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings Under Revolving Credit Facility
Repayments Under Revolving Credit Facility
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings
Repayments of Short-Term Borrowings
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings
Repayments of Long-Term Borrowings
Dividends Paid to Shareholders
Proceeds from the Exercise of Stock Options
Shares Surrendered for Taxes
Financing Fees Paid
Repurchase of Common Stock
Distributions to Noncontrolling Interests
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash Paid For
Interest
Income Taxes
Cash and Cash Equivalents Presentation
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Assets Held for Sale

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

See accc

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Millions)

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

B 1984 (543) 4949
1653 185.0 1219
3465 307.8 1855
- 57.3 —
40 78 09
85 87.7 -
435 429 319
348 58.2 225
131 328 196
(1523 (1153) 801)
(31 (0:6) (37)
89 26 64
230 517 (381)
29 2626 (174.4)
(04 (701) (1295)
(1047 (147.8) (216)
609.4 7153 4362
(1095 (119.1) (8338)
— (4870.2) (35.0)
49 63 55
3800 = —
275.4 (4,983.0) (113.3)
1,626.7 22041 21196
(1,684.8) (2,625.0) (2427.3)
— 58.0 102
- (612) (91)
— 5532.9 15368
(880.2) (8263) (11237)
(930) (928) (90.9)
49 33 51
(158) (121) (89)
(03) (511) (406)
(500) — (2392)
(33) (162) (62)
(1,095.8) 42036 (2742)
(308) 109 (33.0)
(241.8) (532) 157
6353 688.5 6728
s 3035 635.3 688.5
B 3803 3196 66.7
1771 206.9 187.6
B 3035 5740 688.5
= 613 —
s 3035 635.3 688.5
panying Notes to the Consolic 1 Financial Statements.
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Notes to the C

(Dollars In Millions Except Per Share Data, Unless Otherwise Noted)
(1) Nature of Operations
Regal Rexnord Corporation (the “Company”) is a United States-based multi-national corporation. The Company and its associates around the world help create a better tomorrow by providing sustainable solutions that power, transmit and control
motion. The Company’s electric motors and air moving subsystems provide the power to create motion. A portfolio of highly engineered power transmission components and subsystems efficiently transmit motion to power industrial applications.

Our automation offering, comprised of controls, actuators, drives, and small, precision motors control motion in applications ranging from factory automation to providing precision control in surgical tools. The Company operates through its three
segments: Industrial Powertrain Solutions ("IPS"), Power Efficiency Solutions ("PES") and Automation & Motion Control ("AMC"). See Note 5 - Segment Information.

The sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses, which closed on April 30, 2024 as further described in Note 3 — Acquisitions and Divestitures, did not represent a strategic shift that will have a major effect on the Company's operations
and financial results and, therefore, did not qualify for presentation as discontinued operations. The assets and liabilities related to these businesses were presented as Assets Held for Sale, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale, Liabilities Held for Sale
and Noncurrent Liabilities Held for Sale on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023. Results for the industrial motors and generators businesses are included in Regal Rexnord's results and related
disclosures through the close of sale on April 30, 2024.

(2) Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. In addition, the Company has joint ventures that are consolidated in accordance with consolidation accounting
guidance. All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”), which require the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses during the periods reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company uses estimates in accounting for, among
other items, allowance for credit losses; excess and obsolete inventory; share-based compensation; acquisitions; product warranty obligations; pension and post-retirement assets and liabilities; derivative fair values; goodwill and other asset
impairments; health care reserves; rebates and incentives; litigation claims and contingencies, including environmental matters; and income taxes. The Company accounts for changes to estimates and assumptions when warranted by factually
based experience.

Acquisitions

The Company recognizes assets acquired, liabilities assumed, contractual contingencies and contingent consideration at their fair value on the acquisition date. The operating results of the acquired companies are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred, restructuring costs are recognized as post-acquisition expense and changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after the measurement period are recorded in
Provision for Income Taxes. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for more information.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of premium-efficiency electric motors and air moving subsystems, highly engineered industrial power transmission components and subsystems, and a portfolio of discrete automation products that
include controls, actuators, drives, and high-precision servo motors. The Company recognizes revenue when control of the product passes to the customer or the service is provided. Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be received in exchange for such goods or services.
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For a limited number of contracts, the Company recognizes revenue over time in proportion to costs incurred. The pricing of products sold is generally supported by customer purchase orders, and accounts receivable collection is reasonably
assured. Estimated discounts and rebates are recorded as a reduction of gross sales in the same period revenue is recognized. Product returns and credits are estimated and recorded at the time of shipment based upon historical experience.
Shipping and handling costs are recorded as revenue when billed to the customers. The costs incurred from shipping are recorded in Cost of Sales and handling costs incurred in connection with selling and distribution activities are recorded in
Operating Expenses.

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from several original equipment manufacturing ("OEM") customers. Despite this relative concentration, there were no customers that accounted for more than 10% of consolidated net sales
in 2024, 2023 or 2022.

Nature of Goods and Services

The Company sells products with multiple applications as well as customized products that have a single application such as those manufactured for its OEM customers. Products include, but are not limited to, automation components and sub-
systems, bearings, air-moving systems, clutches and brakes, conveyor technologies, couplings, premium efficiency electric motors, electronic components, gearing, industrial powertrains, linear motion components, power transmission
components, switchgear, transfer switches and controls, and miniature servo motors.

Nature of Performance Obligations

The Company's contracts with customers typically consist of purchase orders, invoices and master supply agreements. At contract inception, across all three segments, the Company assesses the goods and services promised in its sales
arrangements with customers and identifies a performance obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a good or service that is distinct. The Company’s primary performance obligations consist of product sales and customized
systems/solutions.

Product:
The nature of products varies from segment to segment but across all segments, individual products are generally not integrated and represent separate performance obligations.
Customized systems/solutions:

The Company provides customized systems/solutions which consist of multiple products engineered and designed to specific customer specification, combined or integrated into one combined solution for a specific customer application. The goods
are transferred to the customer and revenue is typically recognized over time as the performance obligations are satisfied.

When Performance Obligations are Satisfied

For performance obligations related to st i all of the Company's product sales, the Company determines that the customer obtains control upon shipment and recognizes revenue accordingly. Once a product has shipped, the customer is
able to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the asset. The Company considers control to have transferred upon shipment because the Company has a present right to payment at that time, the customer has
legal title to the asset, the Company has transferred physical possession of the asset, and the customer has significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

For a limited number of contracts, the Company transfers control and recognizes revenue over time. The Company satisfies its performance obligations over time and the Company uses a cost-based input method to measure progress. In applying
the cost-based method of revenue recognition, the Company uses actual costs incurred to date relative to the total estimated costs for the contract in conjunction with the customer's commitment to perform in determining the amount of revenue to
recognize. The Company has determined that the cost-based input method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods to the customer.

Payment Terms

The arrangement with the customer states the final terms of the sale, including the description, quantity, and price of each product or service purchased. Payment terms vary by customer but typically range from due upon delivery to 120 days after
delivery . For contracts recognized at a point in time, revenue recognition and billing typically occur simultaneously. The Company generally has payment terms with its customers of one year or less and has elected the practical expedient
applicable to such contracts not to consider the time value of money. For contracts recognized using the cost-based input method, revenue recognized in excess of customer billings and billings in excess of revenue recognized are reviewed to
determine the contract asset or contract liability position and classified as such on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Returns, Refunds and Warranties

The Company's contracts do not explicitly offer a “general” right of return to its customers (e.g. customers ordered excess products and return unused items). Warranties are classified as either assurance type or service type warranties. A warranty
is considered an assurance type warranty if it provides the customer with assurance that the product will function as intended. A warranty that goes above and beyond ensuring basic functionality is considered a service type warranty. The Company
generally only offers limited warranties which are considered to be assurance type warranties and are not accounted for as separate performance obligations. Customers generally receive repair or replacement on products that do not function to
specification. Estimated product warranties are provided for specific product groups and the Company accrues for estimated future warranty cost in the period in which the sale is recognized. The Company estimates the accrual requirements based
on historical warranty loss experience and the cost is included in Cost of Sales. See Note 11 - Contingencies for more information.

Volume Rebates

In some cases, the nature of the Company’s contract may give rise to variable consideration including volume based sales incentives. If the customer achieves specific sales targets, it is entitled to rebates. The Company estimates the projected
amount of the rebates that will be achieved and recognizes the estimated costs as a reduction to Net Sales as revenue is recognized.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table presents the Company'’s revenues disaggregated by geographical region for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:

December 31, 2024 Industrial Powertrain Solutions Power Efficiency Solutions Automation & Motion Control Industrial Systems Total

North America $ 1,734.9 1,276.5 $ 1,088.8 79.4 4,179.6
Asia 172.7 167.7 915 443 476.2
Europe 482.0 133.9 372.7 17.6 1,006.2
Rest-of-World 208.5 66.0 80.8 16.5 3718
Total $ 2,598.1 1,644.1 $ 1,633.8 157.8 6,033.8
December 31, 2023 Industrial Powertrain Solutions Power Efficiency Solutions Automation & Motion Control Industrial Systems Total

North America $ 1,636.1 1,419.2 $ 1,006.3 274.6 4,336.2
Asia 168.9 178.7 76.1 146.6 570.3
Europe 420.5 149.7 342.6 55.8 968.6
Rest-of-World 178.0 61.3 91.8 445 375.6
Total $ 2,403.5 1,808.9 $ 1,516.8 521.5 6,250.7
December 31, 2022 Industrial Powertrain Solutions Power & Motion Control Industrial Systems Total

North America $ 1,232.2 1,766.9 $ 559.0 298.5 3,856.6
Asia 140.6 188.1 17.0 159.1 504.8
Europe 240.0 182.2 154.2 50.7 627.1
Rest-of-World 53.5 90.0 42.1 43.8 229.4
Total $ 1,666.3 2,227.2 $ 7723 552.1 5,217.9

and

The Company typically expenses incremental direct costs of obtaining a contract, primarily sales commissions, as incurred because the amortization period is expected to be 12 months or less. Contract costs are included in Operating Expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).
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Due to the short nature of the Company’s contracts, the Company has adopted a practical expedient to not disclose revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations as substantially all of its contracts have original terms of 12 months or
less.

The Company typically does not include in its transaction price any amounts collected from customers for sales taxes.

Research, Development and Engineering

The Company performs research, development and engineering activities relating to new product development and the improvement of current products. The Company's research, development and engineering expenses consist primarily of costs
for: (i) salaries and related personnel expenses; (ii) the design and development of new energy efficient products and enhancements; (jii) quality assurance and testing; and (iv) other related overhead. The Company's research, development and
engineering efforts tend to be targeted toward developing new products that would allow it to gain additional market share, whether in new or existing segments.

Research, development and engineering costs are expensed as incurred. The costs are primarily recorded in Operating Expenses and were as follows for the years noted in the table below:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Research, Development and Engineering Costs $ 176.4 $ 171.0 $ 106.6

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to cash, present insignificant risk of changes in value due to interest rate fluctuations and have original or purchased maturities of three months or less.
Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents. The Company has material deposits with global financial institutions. The Company performs periodic
evaluations of the relative credit standing of its financial institutions and monitors the amount of exposure.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion across many geographic areas. The Company monitors credit risk associated with its trade receivables.
Trade Receivables

The Company's policy for estimating the allowance for credit losses on trade receivables considers several factors including historical write-off experience, overall customer credit quality in relation to general economic and market conditions, and
specific customer account analyses to estimate expected credit losses. The specific customer account analysis considers such items as, credit worthiness, payment history, and historical bad debt experience. Trade receivables are written off after
exhaustive collection efforts occur and the receivable is deemed uncollectible. Adjustments to the allowance for credit losses are recorded in Operating Expenses. Trade receivables acquired in the Altra Transaction (see Note 3 - Acquisitions and
Divestitures) were recorded at fair value at the acquisition date in an amount that reflected expected credit losses, and accordingly, an allowance for credit losses was not separately presented and disclosed.

Inventories

The major classes of inventory at year end are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Raw Material and Work in Process 67.8 % 66.7 %
Finished Goods and Purchased Parts 322% 33.3%

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, using the FIFO cost method. Material, labor and factory overhead costs are included in the inventories.

The Company reviews inventories for excess and obsolete products or components. Based on an analysis of historical usage and management's evaluation of estimated future demand, market conditions and alternative uses for possible excess or
obsolete parts, the Company records an excess and obsolete reserve.

63



Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of plant and equipment is provided principally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives ( 3 to 50 years) of the depreciable assets. Accelerated methods are used for
income tax purposes.

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures which extend the useful lives of existing equipment are capitalized and depreciated.

Upon retirement or disposition of property and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the
lesser of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment by major classification was as follows:

Useful Life (In Years) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Land and Improvements $ 1345  $ 139.2
Buildings and Improvements 3-50 387.2 414.5
Machinery, Equipment and Other 3-15 1,189.8 1,219.4
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,711.5 1,773.1
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (790.5) (731.9)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 9210 $ 1,041.2

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, $ 44.7 million and $ 44.4 million of ROU assets (as defined in Note 8 - Leases) were included in Net Property, Plant and Equipment, respectively.

Goodwill

The Company evaluates the carrying amount of goodwill annually as of October or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired. Factors that could trigger an impairment review include significant
underperformance relative to historical or forecasted operating results, a significant decrease in the market value of an asset or significant negative industry or economic trends. Reporting units with recent impairments or those with goodwill
resulting from recent acquisitions generally present the highest risk of impairment.

When testing goodwill for impairment, companies have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether a quantitative test is necessary. In performing qualitative assessments, the Company evaluates, among other things, actual
and forecasted operating results, certain market factors, including discount rates and peer company EBITDA multiples, and the passing margin of prior quantitative tests. In performing quantitative tests, the Company uses a weighting of the market
approach and the income approach (discounted cash flow method). In the market approach, the Company applies performance multiples from comparable public companies, adjusted for relative risk, profitability, and growth considerations, to each
reporting unit's performance measure to estimate fair value. The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow method used to estimate fair value include discount rates, revenue and EBITDA margin projections and terminal value rates
because such assumptions are the most sensitive and susceptible to change as they require significant management judgment. Discount rates are determined by using market and industry data as well as Company-specific risk factors for each
reporting unit. The discount rate utilized for each reporting unit is indicative of the return an investor would expect to receive for investing in such a business. Terminal value rate determination follows common methodology of capturing the present
value of perpetual cash flow estimates beyond the last projected period assuming a constant discount rate and long-term growth rates.

For the 2024 annual goodwill test, the Company performed a qualitative assessment to evaluate goodwill for each of its reporting units, except for two reporting units in the Automation & Motion Control segment which were quantitatively tested. For
each of the reporting units qualitatively assessed, the Company concluded that it was more likely that not that the fair value exceeded the carrying value and thus a quantitative test was not necessary. For each of the two reporting units that were
quantitatively tested, the fair value exceeded the carrying value and thus no goodwill impairments were recorded. There were no goodwill impairments recorded as a result of the 2023 and 2022 annual tests. In 2023 and 2022, the Company
performed a quantitative test for all the reporting units. Some of the key considerations used in the Company's impairment testing included (i) market pricing of guideline publicly traded companies (i) cost of capital, including the risk-free interest
rate, and (iii) recent historical and projected operating results of the subject reporting unit. There is inherent uncertainty included in the assumptions

64



used in goodwill impairment testing. A change to any of the assumptions could lead to a future impairment that could be material. See Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets for more information.

During 2023, the prospective sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses triggered an interim goodwill impairment test. As a result, the Company recorded $ 57.3 million of goodwill impairment charges for its global industrial motors
reporting unit. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for further information. In 2023, the transaction price for the proposed sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses was used as a key input into testing each of the reporting units.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The Company evaluates amortizing intangibles whenever events or circumstances have occurred that indicate carrying values may not
be recoverable. If an indicator is present, the Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows over the remaining life of the primary asset to estimate recoverability of the asset group. If such estimated future cash flows are less
than carrying value, an impairment would be recognized. There was no impairment of intangible assets during 2024, 2023 or 2022.

Long-Lived Assets Impairment

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment assets (collectively, "long-lived assets") whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully
recoverable through future cash flows. Factors that could trigger an impairment review include a significant decrease in the market value of an asset or significant negative economic trends. For long-lived assets, the Company uses an estimate of
the related undiscounted cash flows over the remaining life of the primary asset to estimate recoverability of the asset group. If the asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to fair value. In 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company concluded it
had asset impairments of $ 4.0 million, $7.8 million and $ 0.9 million, respectively, which were related to assets held for sale, and a loss on sale of businesses of $ 8.5 million, $87.7 million and zero , respectively, which were primarily related to
the sale of the industrial motors and generators businesses.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Diluted earnings per share is computed based upon earnings applicable to common shares divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the effect of dilutive securities. Share based
compensation awards for common shares where the exercise price was above the market price have been excluded from the calculation of the effect of dilutive securities shown below; the amount of these shares were 0.3 million in 2024, 0.4
million in 2023 and 0.2 million in 2022. The following table reconciles the basic and diluted shares used in earnings (loss) per share calculations for the years ended:

2024 2023 2022
Denominator for Basic Earnings Per Share 66.4 66.3 66.7
Effect of Dilutive Securities® 0.3 — 0.4
Denominator for Diluted Earnings Per Share 66.7 66.3 67.1

(1) 2023 excludes 0.4 million of share based compensation awards as the Company had a net loss during the year.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The majority of the defined benefit pension plans covering the Company's domestic associates have been closed to new associates and frozen for existing associates. Most of the Company's foreign associates are covered by government
sponsored plans in the countries in which they are employed. The Company's obligations under its defined benefit pension plans are determined with the assistance of actuarial firms. The actuaries, under management's direction, make certain
assumptions regarding such factors as withdrawal rates and mortality rates. The actuaries also provide information and recommendations from which management makes further assumptions on such factors as the long-term expected rate of return
on plan assets, the discount rate on benefit obligations and where applicable the rate of annual compensation increases.

Based upon the assumptions made, the investments made by the plans, overall conditions and movement in financial markets, life-spans of benefit recipients and other factors, annual expenses and recorded assets or liabilities of these defined
benefit pension plans may change significantly from year to year.

The service cost component of the Company's net periodic benefit cost is included in Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses. All other components of net periodic benefit costs are included in Other (Income) Expenses, net on the Company's
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss). See Note 7 — Retirement Plans for more information.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Any fair value changes are recorded in Net Income (Loss) or Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) ("AOCI") as determined under accounting
guidance that establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of the hedging relationships. Cash inflows and outflows related to derivative instruments are included as a component of Operating, Investing, or Financing Cash Flows within the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in certain raw material commodity pricing, fluctuations in the cost of forecasted foreign currency transactions, and variability in interest rate exposure on floating rate
borrowings. The majority of derivative instruments have been designated as cash flow hedges. See Note 12 — Derivative Financial Instruments for more information.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 740, Accounting for Income Taxes (“ASC 740"). Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and consideration of operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred income taxes are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which
the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The impact on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are provided to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. This requires management to make judgments and estimates regarding the amount and timing of the reversal of taxable temporary differences, expected future taxable
income, and the impact of tax planning strategies.

Uncertainty exists regarding tax positions taken in previously filed tax returns which remain subject to examination, along with positions expected to be taken in future returns. The Company provides for unrecognized tax benefits, based on the
technical merits, when it is more likely than not that an uncertain tax position will not be sustained upon examination. Adjustments are made to the uncertain tax positions when facts and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit;
changes in applicable tax laws, including tax case rulings and legislative guidance; or expiration of the applicable statute of limitations. See Note 10 — Income Taxes for more information.

Foreign Currency Translation

For those operations using a functional currency other than the US Dollar, assets and liabilities are translated into US Dollars at year-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated at monthly average rates. The resulting
translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of Shareholders' Equity. Foreign currency remeasurement gains and losses are included in Operating Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

Product Warranty Reserves

The Company maintains reserves for product warranty to cover the stated warranty periods for its products. Such reserves are established based on an evaluation of historical warranty experience and specific significant warranty matters when they
become known and can reasonably be estimated. See Note 11 — Contingencies for more information.

A lated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments designated as hedges and pension and post retirement liability adjustments are included in Shareholders’ Equity under AOCI.

The components of the ending balances of AOCI are as follows:

2024 2023
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments $ (415.7) $ (286.2)
Hedging Activities, Net of Tax of $( 2.1 ) in 2024 and $ 8.8 in 2023 (55) 28.8
Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits, Net of Tax of $(6.7 ) in 2024 and $( 7.8 ) in 2023 (215) (25.0)
Total $ (442.7) 8 (282.4)

Legal Claims and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings, claims and regulatory matters, the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertainty and will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. Management conducts
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regular reviews, including updates from legal counsel, to assess the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of these contingencies. The Company records expenses and liabilities when the Company believes that an obligation of the
Company or a subsidiary on a specific matter is probable and there is a basis to reasonably estimate the value of the obligation, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise in judgment. This methodology is used for legal claims that are
filed against the Company or a subsidiary from time to time. The uncertainty that is associated with such matters frequently requires adjustments to the liabilities previously recorded. See Note 11 — Contingencies for more information.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash equivalents, term deposits, trade receivables and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to the short period of time to maturity. The fair value of fixed rate debt is estimated using discounted cash flows based
on rates for instruments with comparable maturities and credit ratings as further described in Note 6 — Debt and Bank Credit Facilities. The fair value of pension assets and derivative instruments is determined based on the methods disclosed in
Note 7 - Retirement Plans and Note 12 — Derivative Financial Instruments.

Supplier Finance Program

The Company's supplier finance program with Bank of America (the "Bank") offers the Company's designated suppliers the option to receive payments of outstanding invoices in advance of the invoice maturity dates at a discount. The Company's
payment obligation to the Bank remains subject to the respective supplier's invoice maturity date. The Bank acts as a payment agent, making payments on invoices the Company confirms are valid. The supplier finance program is offered for open
account transactions only and may be terminated by either the Company or the Bank upon 15 days notice. The Company has not pledged any assets under this program. The Company has not incurred any subscription, service or other fees
related to the Company's supplier finance program. The following information presents changes to the Company's outstanding obligations under the supplier finance program, which are classified within Accounts Payable, during the year ended
December 31, 2024:

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 60.8
Plus: Obligations Added 169.7
Less: Obligations Settled 189.5
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $ 41.0

New Accounting Standards

New Accounting Standards Adopted

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures . The ASU requires enhanced
segment disclosures, such as significant segment expenses, and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company adopted this new accounting
guidance in 2024, and has included the required disclosures within Note 5 - Segment Information.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilities - Supplier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50): Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program Obligations . The Company adopted this new accounting guidance during the first quarter of
2023, except that the requirement to include roll forward information became effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. The Company completed the adoption of this new accounting guidance in 2024, and has included the
required roll forward disclosures within this Note.

y Issued

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, | ncome Statement (Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Expenses . The ASU requires additional information about certain expenses in the notes to financial statements. The
new guidance will be effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026. The Company is evaluating the effect of adopting this new accounting guidance.

In December 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures . The ASU requires consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation, income taxes paid
disaggregated by jurisdiction and certain other amendments. The new guidance will be effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is evaluating the effect of adopting this new accounting guidance.
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(3) Acquisitions and Divestitures
Industrial Systems Divestiture
On September 23, 2023, the Company signed an agreement to sell its industrial motors and generators businesses which represented the substantial majority of the Industrial Systems operating segment.

The transaction closed on April 30, 2024 for a total purchase price of $ 444.0 million. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company recognized a Loss on Sale of Businesses related to the sale of the industrial
motors and generators businesses of $ 7.7 million and $ 87.7 million, respectively, in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss). The Company recognized a cumulative loss of $ 95.4 million on the sale of the industrial motors and generators
businesses, which was primarily related to foreign currency translation losses that were reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings at the closing of the transaction.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the sale proceeds received in connection with the divestiture:

April 30, 2024
Purchase price $ 400.0
Cash transferred to buyer 64.5
Estimated working capital and other adjustments (20.5)
Total purchase price 444.0
Direct costs to sell (7.3)
Fair value of sale consideration, net® $ 436.7
(1) The fair value of sale consideration, net includes an immaterial post-close adjustment to the purchase price for which cash was received in January 2025.
The following table summarizes the carrying value of the disposal group and resulting loss on sale:

April 30, 2024
Net assets sold $ 420.2
Noncontrolling Interest (9.2)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 121.3
Payables to seller (0.2)
Carrying value of disposal group $ 532.1
Loss on Sale of Businesses $ (95.4)
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The assets and liabilities related to these businesses were included in Assets Held for Sale, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale, Liabilities Held for Sale and Noncurrent Liabilities Held for Sale as of December 31, 2023, as shown in the table below:

December 31, 2023

Assets Held for Sale

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 61.3
Trade Receivables, Less Allowances 88.3
Inventories 199.7
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 12.2
Total Current Assets Held for Sale $ 361.5
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 96.0
Operating Lease Assets 18.0
Goodwill 54.7
Intangible Assets, Net of Amortization 21
Deferred Income Tax Benefits 11.0
Loss on Assets Held for Sale (87.7)
Total Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale $ 94.1

Liabilities Held for Sale

Accounts Payable $ 67.2
Accrued Compensation and Employee Benefits 113
Other Accrued Expenses 217
Current Operating Lease Liabilities 35

Total Current Liabilities Held for Sale $ 103.7
Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefits 0.9
Noncurrent Operating Lease Liabilities 16.2
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 3.3

Total Noncurrent Liabilities Held for Sale $ 20.4

In addition to the assets and liabilities of the industrial motors and generators businesses, there are other assets recorded in Assets Held for Sale on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023, which are not material.
Altra Transaction

On October 26, 2022, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Altra Merger Agreement”) by and among the Company, Altra Industrial Motion Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Altra”), and Aspen Sub, Inc., a Delaware
corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”). Altra is a leading global manufacturer of highly-engineered products and sub-systems in the factory automation and industrial power transmission markets. Regal Rexnord
entered into the Altra Merger Agreement because it believes it can recognize substantial revenue and cost synergies through the combination. In particular, Altra transforms Regal Rexnord's automation portfolio into a global provider with significant

sales into markets with secular growth characteristics. Altra also adds significant capabilities to Regal Rexnord's industrial power transmission portfolio, in particular in clutches and brakes, allowing it to provide a broader offering, and more robust
industrial powertrain solutions to its customers.

On March 27, 2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Altra Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Altra (the “Altra Merger"), with Altra surviving the Altra Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Altra Transaction”).

Pursuant to the Altra Merger Agreement, following the Altra Merger, each of Altra’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock were converted into $ 62.00 in cash, without interest (the “Altra Merger Consideration”). In addition, all Altra equity
awards outstanding immediately prior to the Altra Merger were converted into an award of cash or an award of restricted stock
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equal to the equivalent value of the original equity award with similar terms and conditions based on the Altra Merger Consideration.

The Company's management determined that the Company is the accounting acquirer in the Altra Transaction based on the facts and circumstances noted within this section and other relevant factors. As such, the Company applied the acquisition
method of accounting to the identifiable assets and liabilities of Altra, which have been measured at estimated fair value as of the date of the business combination.

The total purchase price to acquire Altra was $ 5.1 billion, which consisted of the following:

Cash paid for outstanding Altra Common Stock® $ 4,051.0
Stock based compensation® 23.1
Payment of Altra debt® 1,061.0
Pre-existing relationships(® (0.5)
Purchase price $ 5,134.6

(1) Cash paid for the common stock component of the purchase price was based on 65.3 million shares of outstanding Altra Common Stock as of March 27, 2023 at $ 62.00 per share, in accordance with the Altra Merger Agreement.

(2) Represents fair value of replacement equity-based awards and Company common stock issued in settlement of other Altra share based awards. The portion of the fair value attributable to pre-acquisition service was recorded as part of the consideration transferred
in the Altra Transaction of which $ 17.3 million was paid in cash during the second quarter of 2023.

(3) Cash paid by the Company to settle (a) the term loan facility, (b) the revolving credit facility and (c) 95.28 % of the 6.125 % senior notes due 2026 of Stevens Holding Company, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Altra (the "Altra Notes"). $ 18.1 million of the Altra
Notes remained outstanding following the closing of the Altra Transaction. See Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities for more information.

(4) Represents effective settlement of ot payables and between the Company and Altra. No gain or loss was recognized on this settlement.

Purchase Price Allocation

Altra’s assets and liabilities were measured at estimated fair values at March 27, 2023, primarily using Level 3 inputs. Estimates of fair value represent management's best estimate of assumptions about future events and uncertainties, including
significant judgments related to future cash flows, discount rates, competitive trends, margin and revenue growth assumptions, royalty rates and customer attrition rates and others. Inputs used were generally obtained from historical data
supplemented by current and anticipated market conditions and growth rates expected as of the acquisition date.

The Company estimated the fair value of net assets acquired based on information available during the measurement period and, as of March 31, 2024, the valuation process to determine the fair values of the net assets acquired during the
measurement period was complete. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets®?

Deferred Income Tax Benefits

Operating Lease Assets

Other Noncurrent Assets

Accounts Payable

Accrued Compensation and Benefits

Other Accrued Expenses®

Current Operating Lease Liabilities

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Long-Term Debt

Deferred Income Taxes

Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefits
Noncurrent Operating Lease Liabilities
Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Identifiable Net Assets

Goodwill

Purchase price

As Reported as of December 31, 2023

Measurement period adjustments

As of March 31, 2024

2501 — 259.1
258.1 (15) 256.6
387.5 (05) 387.0
324 — 324
403.0 (05) 4025
2,142.0 — 2,142.0
0.7 0.1 0.8
46.8 = 46.8
12.7 — 12.7
(183.3) — (1833)
(66.0) — (66.0)
(144.6) (0.7) (145.3)
(12.3) — (12.3)
(04) = (04)
(25.3) — (25.3)
(533.3) 8.2 (525.1)
(19.8) — (19.8)
(29.0) — (29.0)
(83) — (83)
2,520.0 5.1 2,525.1
2,614.6 (5.1) 2,609.5
51346 $ — 5,134.6

(1) Includes $ 60.1 million related to Altra Transaction costs paid by the Company at the closing of the Altra Transaction.
(2) Includes $ 1,710.0 million related to Customer Relationships, $ 330.0 million related to Trademarks and $ 102.0 million related to Technology.

Summary of Significant Fair Value Methods

The methods used to determine the fair value of significant identifiable assets and liabilities included in the allocation of purchase price are discussed below.

Inventories

Acquired inventory was comprised of finished goods, work in process and raw materials. The fair value of finished goods was calculated as the estimated selling price, adjusted for costs of the selling effort and a reasonable profit allowance relating
to the selling effort. The fair value of work in process inventory was primarily calculated as the estimated selling price, adjusted for estimated costs to complete the manufacturing, estimated costs of the selling effort, as well as a reasonable profit
margin on the remaining manufacturing and selling effort. The fair value of raw materials and supplies was determined based on replacement cost which approximates historical carrying value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The preliminary fair value of Property, Plant, and Equipment was determined using either the cost approach, which relies on an estimate of replacement costs of the new assets and estimated accrued depreciation, or the market approach.

Identifiable Intangible Assets
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The fair value and weighted average useful life of the identifiable intangible assets are as follows:

Fair Value Weighted Average Useful Life (Years)
Customer Relationships® $ 1,710.0 14.0
Trademarks® 330.0 10.0
Technology® 102.0 13.0
Total Identifiable Intangible Assets $ 2,142.0

(1) The fair value of Customer Relationships was valued using a multi-period excess earnings method, a form of the income approach, which incorporates the estimated future cash flows to be generated from Altra’s existing customer base.
(2) The Altra Trademarks were valued using the relief from royalty method, which considers both the market approach and the income approach.
(3) The Altra Technology was valued using the relief from royalty method, which considers both the market approach and the income approach.

The intangible assets related to definite-lived customer relationships, trademarks and technology are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Leases, including right-of-use ("ROU") assets and lease liabilities

Lease liabilities were measured as of the effective date of the acquisition at the present value of future minimum lease payments over the remaining lease term and the incremental borrowing rate of the Company as if the acquired leases were new
leases as of the acquisition date. ROU assets recorded within “Operating Lease Assets” are equal to the amount of the lease liability at the acquisition date adjusted for any off-market terms of the lease. The remaining lease term was based on the
remaining term at the acquisition date plus any renewal or extension options that the Company is reasonably certain will be exercised.

Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

The acquisition was structured as a merger, and therefore the Company assumed the historical tax basis of Altra’s assets and liabilities. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities include the expected future federal, state, and foreign tax
consequences associated with temporary differences between the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the respective tax bases. Tax rates utilized in calculating deferred income taxes generally represent the enacted
statutory tax rates at the effective date of the acquisition in the jurisdictions in which legal title of the underlying asset or liability resides. See Note 10 - Income Taxes for further information related to income taxes.

Other Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed (excluding Goodwill

The Company utilized the carrying values, net of allowances, to value accounts receivable and accounts payable as well as other current assets and liabilities, as it was determined that carrying values represented the fair value of those items at the
acquisition date. Accounts receivable reflect the best estimate at the acquisition date of the contractual cash flows expected to be collected.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration for the acquisition over the fair value of net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is attributable to expected synergies and expanded market opportunities from combining the Company’s

operations with those of Altra. The goodwill created in the acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Transaction and Integration Costs
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The Company incurred transaction and integration-related costs in connection with the Altra Transaction of approximately $ 23.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2024, which includes legal, professional service and integration costs
associated with the Altra Transaction. During the year ended December 31, 2023 the Company incurred $ 86.9 million of costs related to the Altra Transaction, which includes legal and professional services and certain employee compensation
costs, including severance and retention. These costs were recognized as Operating Expenses in the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

The Company also incurred $ 15.7 million of share-based compensation expense during the first quarter of 2023 related to the accelerated vesting of awards for certain former Altra employees. See Note 9 — Shareholders' Equity for additional
information.

In connection with the Altra Transaction, the Company incurred additional costs due to the entry into certain financing arrangements. Such financing arrangements are described in Note 6 — Debt and Bank Credit Facilities.

Unaudited Pro Forma Information

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information presents the Company's financial results for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, as if the Altra Transaction had occurred on January 2,
2022, the first day of the Company's year ended December 31, 2022. The pro forma financial information includes, where applicable, adjustments for: (i) additional amortization expense that would have been recognized related to the acquired
intangible assets, (i) additional interest expense on transaction related borrowings less interest income earned on the investment of proceeds from borrowings prior to the close of the Altra Transaction, (jii) additional depreciation expense that
would have been recognized related to the acquired property, plant, and equipment, (iv) transaction costs and other one-time non-recurring costs, including share-based compensation expense related to the accelerated vesting of awards for certain
former Altra employees, which reduced expenses by $ 102.6 million and increased expenses by $ 102.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, (v) additional cost of sales related to the inventory
valuation and lease ROU assets valuation adjustments which reduced expenses by $ 54.5 million and increased expenses by $ 54.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively and (vi) the estimated
income tax effect on the pro forma adjustments.

The pro forma financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have been achieved had the Altra Transaction been completed as of the date indicated or the results
that may be obtained in the future.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
Net Sales $ 6,701.8 $ 7,163.4
Net Income Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation $ 501 $ 131.1
Earnings Per Share Attributable to Regal Rexnord Corporation:
Basic $ 076 $ 1.97
Assuming Dilution $ 075 $ 1.95
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(4) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following information presents changes to goodwill during the periods indicated:

Industrial Powertrain

Power Efficiency

Automation & Motion

Total Solutions Solutions Control Industrial Systems
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 4,018.8 $ 2,290.0 $ 752.3 $ 865.0 $ 1115
Acquisitions 2,614.6 1,438.3 = 1,176.3 =
Reclassification to Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale (53.9) — — — (53.9)
Impairment Charges (57.3) — — — (57.3)
Translation and Other 30.9 18.7 1.6 10.9 (0.3)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 65531 $ 3,7470  $ 7539 $ 2,0522 $ =
Acquisitions (5.1) (5.8) — 0.7 —
Translation and Other (89.1) (44.0) (4.7) (40.4) —
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $ 6,458.9 $ 3,697.2 $ 7492 $ 2,012.5 $ —
Cumulative Goodwill Impairment Charges® $ 2236 % 181 $ 2004 $ 51 $ —
(1) Excludes impairment charges related to Industrial Systems, since it was sold in April 2024. See Note 3 - Acquisitions and Divestitures for more information.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of the following:
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Weighted Average

Amortization Period (Years) Gross Amount Accumulated Amortization Net Carrying Amount Gross Amount Accumulated Amortization  Net Carrying Amount
Customer Relationships 15 $ 3,8928 $ 9151 $ 29777 % 4,0285 $ 7462  $ 3,282.3
Technology 13 293.0 109.0 184.0 302.6 92.9 209.7
Trademarks 10 692.3 189.4 502.9 712.1 120.7 591.4
Total Intangibles $ 48781 $ 12135 $ 36646 $ 50432 $ 959.8 $ 4,083.4

While the Company believes its customer relationships are long-term in nature, the Company's contractual customer relationships are generally short-term. Useful lives are established at acquisition based on historical attrition rates.

Amortization expense was $ 346.5 million in 2024, $ 307.8 million in 2023 and $ 185.5 million

The following table presents estimated future amortization expense:

in 2022.

Year

Estimated Amortization

2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
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(5) Segment Information

The Company's operations are organized and managed based on similar product offerings and end markets in the following three reportable segments: Industrial Powertrain Solutions ("IPS"), Power Efficiency Solutions ("PES") and Automation &
Motion Control ("AMC").

The IPS segment designs, produces and services a broad portfolio of highly-engineered transmission products, including mounted and unmounted bearings, couplings, mechanical power transmission drives and components, gearboxes and gear
motors, clutches, brakes, and industrial powertrain components and solutions. Increasingly, the segment produces industrial powertrain solutions, which are integrated sub-systems comprised of Regal Rexnord motors plus the critical power
transmission components that efficiently transmit motion to power industrial applications. The segment serves a broad range of markets that include metals and mining, general industrial, energy, alternative energy, machinery / off-highway, discrete
automation and other markets.

The PES segment designs and produces fractional to approximately 5 horsepower AC and DC motors, electronic variable speed controls, electronic drives, fans and blowers, as well as integrated subsystems comprised of two or more of these
components. The segment's products are used in residential and commercial HVAC, water heaters, commercial refrigeration, commercial building ventilation, pool and spa, irrigation, dewatering, agricultural, conveying and other applications.

The AMC segment designs, produces and services conveyor products, conveying automation subsystems, aerospace components, precision motion control solutions, high-efficiency miniature servo motors, controls, drives and linear actuators, as
well as power management products that include automatic transfer switches and paralleling switchgear. The segment sells into markets that include industrial automation, robotics, food and beverage, aerospace, medical, agricultural and
construction, general industrial, data center, and other markets.

The Industrial Systems segment designed and produced integral motors, alternators for industrial applications, and sold aftermarket parts and kits to support such products. These products served the general industrial, metals and mining, and food
and beverage end markets. As described within Note 3 — Acquisitions and Divestitures, the sale of the industrial motors and generators business, which represented a substantial majority of the Industrial Systems operating segment, was
completed on April 30, 2024.

The chief operating decision maker ("CODM") of the Company is its chief executive officer. Among other considerations, the CODM evaluates performance and allocates resources based on the segment's income from operations. The Company
also regularly provides to the CODM information on adjusted cost of sales and adjusted engineering, selling and administration expenses, which are significant expenses.

The following sets forth certain financial information attributable to the Company's operating segments for the year ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
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December 31, 2024

Industrial Powertrain

Power Efficiency

Automation & Motion

Total Sales

Intersegment Sales

Net Sales®

Adjusted Cost of Sales @

Adjusted Engineering, Selling and Administration Expenses ()

Other Segment Items®

Income from Operations

Interest Expense

Interest Income

Other Expense, Net

Income before Taxes

Other Supplemental Disclosures

Amortization

Depreciation

Other significant noncash items:
Asset Impairment
Loss on Sale of Businesses

Capital Expenditures

Solutions Solutions Control Industrial Systems Eliminations Total
2,614.1 1,656.5 1,652.8 $ 158.3 (479) $ 6,033.8
16.0 12.4 19.0 0.5 (47.9) -
2,598.1 1,644.1 1,633.8 157.8 = 6,033.8
1,541.5 1,171.4 1,024.5 118.4 3,855.8
483.1 2732 3429 29.0 1,128.2
250.8 36.9 122.0 10.1 419.8
322.7 162.6 144.4 0.3 — 630.0
399.7
(18.8)
11
248.0
201.5 7.7 137.1 0.2 — 346.5
80.7 37.0 47.2 0.4 165.3
11 11 18 —_ —_ 4.0
17 14 11 43 — 8.5
50.3 25.0 29.9 43 - 109.5
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December 31, 2023

Industrial Powertrain

Power Efficiency

Automation & Motion

Total Sales
Intersegment Sales
Net Sales®
Adjusted Cost of Sales @
Adjusted Engineering, Selling and Administration Expenses ()
Other Segment Items®
Income (Loss) from Operations
Interest Expense
Interest Income
Other Income, Net
Loss before Taxes
Other Supplemental Disclosures
Amortization
Depreciation
Other significant noncash items:
Goodwill Impairment
Asset Impairments
Loss on Sale of Businesses

Capital Expenditures

Solutions Solutions Control Industrial Systems Eliminations Total

2,418.4 1,826.6 1,537.7 524.1 (56.1) $ 6,250.7
14.9 17.7 20.9 26 (56.1) -
2,403.5 1,808.9 1,516.8 521.5 = 6,250.7
1,516.9 1,293.4 950.7 414.1 — 4,175.1
433.2 279.5 291.1 84.8 = 1,088.6
301.6 18.6 136.0 153.7 — 609.9

151.8 217.4 139.0 (131.1) — 377.1
431.0

(43.6)

(87)

(1.6)
181.4 8.3 117.2 0.9 — 307.8
91.8 43.0 41.0 9.2 —_ 185.0
- —_ —_ 57.3 —_ 57.3
25 15 3.4 0.4 — 7.8
. — — 87.7 — 87.7
413 35.0 34.6 8.2 — 119.1
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Industrial Powertrain Power Efficiency Automation & Motion

Solutions Solutions Control Industrial Systems Eliminations Total

December 31, 2022
Total Sales $ 16736 $ 2,237.6 $ 788.1 $ 5540 $ (354) $ 5,217.9
Intersegment Sales 7.3 10.4 15.8 1.9 (35.4) —
Net Sales® 1,666.3 2,227.2 772.3 552.1 — 5207 %)
Adjusted Cost of Sales @ 997.7 1,610.0 498.7 422.7 — 3,529.1
Adjusted Engineering, Selling and Administration Expenses @) 276.4 269.0 131.1 84.2 — 760.7
Other Segment Items®) 150.0 21.3 64.3 2.1 — 237.7
Income from Operations 242.2 326.9 78.2 43.1 — 690.4
Interest Expense 87.2
Interest Income (5.2)
Other Income, Net (5.4)
Income before Taxes 613.8
Other Supplemental Disclosures
Amortization 1195 8.4 56.8 0.8 — 185.5
Depreciation 49.5 385 21.2 12.7 — 121.9
Other significant noncash items:

Asset Impairment 0.9 — — — — 0.9
Capital Expenditures 18.8 41.9 11.2 11.9 — 83.8

(1) Represents revenues from external customers.

(2) Adjusted Cost of Sales includes costs associated with producing goods for sale, such as materials, labor and overhead costs, and intercompany cost of sales. Adjusted Cost of Sales differs from Cost of Sales reported under US GAAP primarily because it includes

intercompany cost of sales and excludes certain costs, primarily restructuring and related expenses. The difference is included in Other Segment Items.

(3) Adjusted Engineering, Selling and Administration Expenses includes operating expenses such as engineering, selling and administration expenses, as well as hedging, foreign currency gains and losses and certain overhead expenses. Adjusted Engineering, Selling
and Administration Expenses differs from Operating Expenses reported under US GAAP primarily because it excludes costs such as significant noncash items, restructuring and related costs, and transaction and integration related costs. The difference is included in
Other Segment Items.

(4) Other Segment Items includes other significant noncash items, intangible amortization, as well as restructuring and related costs, transaction and integration related costs, certain overhead and the elimination of ir P cost of sales.

The following table presents total identifiable assets attributable to the Company's operating segments as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Industrial Powertrain Power Efficiency Automation & Motion
Solutions Solutions Control Industrial Systems Total
Identifiable Assets as of December 31, 2024 $ 7,528.8 $ 1,862.5 $ 4,642.4 $ = $ 14,033.7
Identifiable Assets as of December 31, 2023 8,009.4 2,036.4 4,909.2 476.4 15,431.4

The following sets forth net sales by country in which the Company operates for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively:
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us
Rest of the World

Total

US net sales for 2024, 2023 and 2022 represented 60.4 %, 61.4 % and 63.9 % of total net sales, respectively. No individual foreign country represented a material portion of total net sales for any of the years presented.

The following sets forth net property, plant and equipment by country in which the Company operates for 2024 and 2023, respectively:

us

Mexico

Germany

China

Rest of the World

Total

No other individual foreign country represented a material portion of net property, plant and equipment for any of the years presented.

(6) Debt and Bank Credit Facilities

The Company's indebtedness as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was as follows:

Senior Notes

Term Facility

Land Term Facility
Multicurrency Revolving Facility
Altra Notes

Finance Leases

Other

Less: Debt Issuance Costs
Total

Less: Current Maturities

Non-Current Portion

Credit Agreement

Net Sales

2024 2023 2022
3,644.0 $ 3,840.4 $ 3,332.5
2,389.8 2,410.3 1,885.4
6,033.8 $ 6,250.7 $ 5,217.9
Net Property, Plant and Equipment
2024 2023
$ 411.9 $ 441.1
154.2 203.8
92.7 113.0
50.9 45.8
2113 237.5
$ 921.0 $ 1,041.2

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

47000 $ 4,700.0
665.0 1,053.5
= 486.8
40.0 98.1
18.1 18.1
70.1 705
6.6 75
(42.1) (53.6)
5,457.7 6,380.9
5.0 3.9
54527 $ 6,377.0

On March 28, 2022, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent and the lenders named therein, which was subsequently
amended on November 17, 2022 (the "First Amendment") and November 30, 2022 (the "Assumption Agreement"), which in combination provide for, among other things:

i. an unsecured term loan facility in the initial principal amount of up to $ 550.0 million, maturing on March 28, 2027, which was upsized by $ 840.0 million on March 27, 2023 in connection with the Altra Transaction (the "Term Facility");
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ii. an unsecured term loan facility in the initial principal amount of $ 486.8 million, under which the Company's subsidiary Land Newco, Inc. remains the sole borrower, maturing on March 28, 2027 (the "Land Term Facility"); and
iii. an unsecured revolving loan in the initial principal amount of up to $ 1,000.0 million, maturing on March 28, 2027, which was upsized by $570.0 million on March 27, 2023 in connection with the Altra Transaction (the "Multicurrency
Revolving Facility").

The Term Facility requires quarterly amortization at 5.0 % per annum, unless previously prepaid. Per the terms of the Credit Agreement, prepayments can be made without penalty and be applied to the next payment due. Borrowings under the
Credit Agreement bear interest at floating rates based upon indices determined by the currency of the borrowing (SOFR or an alternative base rate for US Dollar borrowings) or at an alternative base rate, in each case, plus an applicable margin.

Weighted average interest rates on the Term Facility and Land Term facility are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Term Facility 7.0 % 70 %
Land Term Facility 71 % 68 %

As of December 31, 2024 the Company had no standby letters of credit issued under the Multicurrency Revolving Facility and $ 1,530.0 million of available borrowing capacity. The average daily balance in borrowings under the Multicurrency
Revolving Facility was $ 72.0 million and $ 283.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The Company paid a non-use fee of 0.25 % as of December 31, 2024 on the aggregate unused amount of the
Multicurrency Revolving Facility at a rate determined by reference to its consolidated funded debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio.

Weighted average interest rates on the Multicurrency Revolving Facility are as follows:
Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Multicurrency Revolving Facility 70 % 64 %

Senior Notes

On January 24, 2023, the Company issued $ 1,100.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.05 % senior notes due 2026 (the “2026 Senior Notes”), $ 1,250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.05 % senior notes due 2028 (the “2028
Senior Notes”), $ 1,100.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.30 % senior notes due 2030 (the “2030 Senior Notes”) and $ 1,250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.40 % senior notes due 2033 (the “2033 Senior Notes” and,
together with the 2026 Senior Notes, 2028 Senior Notes and 2030 Senior Notes, collectively, the “Senior Notes”). The 2026 Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on February 15, 2026, the 2028 Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on April 15,
2028, the 2030 Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on February 15, 2030, and the 2033 Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on April 15, 2033.

The rate of interest on each series of the Senior Notes is subject to an increase of up to 2.00 % in the event of certain downgrades in the debt rating of the Senior Notes. Interest on the 2026 Senior Notes and the 2030 Senior Notes is payable
semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on August 15, 2023. Interest on the 2028 Senior Notes and the 2033 Senior Notes is payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning on April 15,
2023.

The Company received $ 4,647.0 million in net proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes, after deducting the initial purchasers’ discounts and offering expenses. The Company used a portion of the net proceeds to repay the Company’s $ 500.0
million 3.90 % notes originally issued on April 7, 2022 and used the remaining net proceeds, together with the incremental term loan commitments under the Term Facility and cash on hand, to fund the consideration for the Altra Transaction, repay

certain of Altra’s outstanding indebtedness, and pay certain fees and expenses.

Prior to the consummation of the Altra Transaction, the Company used a portion of the proceeds to repay the outstanding borrowings under the Multicurrency Revolving Facility in January 2023 and invested the remaining net proceeds of
approximately $ 3.6 billion in interest bearing accounts. The Company recognized $ 29.4 million in Interest Income from the investment in interest bearing accounts prior to the close of the Altra Transaction.
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The Senior Notes were issued and sold in a private offering to persons reasonably believed to be qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and persons outside the
United States in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act. Pursuant to a registration rights agreement, the Company agreed to exchange the Senior Notes with registered notes with terms substantially identical to those of the Senior
Notes of the corresponding series (the “New Notes”) within 540 days from the date of issuance. The Company and certain subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Notes filed a registration statement on Form S-4 with the SEC on March 26, 2024,
registering an offer to exchange the Senior Notes validly tendered for New Notes of the corresponding series (the “Exchange Offer”). In May 2024, the Company and the guarantor subsidiaries completed the Exchange Offer, exchanging
approximately $4,697.1 million in aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes for approximately $ 4,697.1 million in aggregate principal amount of New Notes of the corresponding series. The aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes not
exchanged, approximately $ 2.9 million, remained outstanding across the four series of Senior Notes. The New Notes consist of approximately $ 1,099.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.050 % senior notes due 2026, $ 1,249.4 million
aggregate principal amount of 6.050 % senior notes due 2028, $ 1,099.4 million aggregate principal amount of 6.300 % senior notes due 2030 and $ 1,249.3 million aggregate principal amount of 6.400 % senior notes due 2033.

Altra Notes

On March 27, 2023, in connection with the Altra Transaction, the Company assumed $ 18.1 million aggregate principal amount of 6.125 % senior notes due 2026 (the “Altra Notes”). The Company repurchased 95.28 % of the outstanding Altra
Notes for total consideration of $ 382.7 million. See Note 3 — Acquisitions and Divestitures for more information.

The Altra Notes will mature on October 1, 2026. The Altra Notes may be redeemed at the option of the issuer on or after October 1, 2023. The Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by certain of the Company's domestic subsidiaries.
Compliance with Financial Covenants

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to meet specified financial ratios and to satisfy certain financial condition tests. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants as of December 31, 2024.

Finance Leases

See Note 8 - Leases for the weighted average discount rate associated with the Company's finance leases in 2024 and 2023.

Other Disclosures

The fair value of the Senior Notes is based on rates for instruments with comparable maturities and credit quality, which is considered a Level 2 fair value measurement (see also Note 13 — Fair Value). The approximate fair value of the Senior
Notes was $ 4,795.2 million and $ 4,802.4 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, compared to a carrying value of $ 4,700.0 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Company believes that the

fair value of all other debt instruments approximates their carrying value.

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2024, excluding debt issuance costs, are as follows:

Year Amount of Maturity
2025 $ 5.0
2026 1,123.1
2027 710.5
2028 1,260.9
2029 4.3
Thereafter 2,396.0
Total $ 5,499.8

(7) Retirement Plans

Retirement Plans
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The Company sponsors pension and other post-retirement benefit plans for certain associates. Most of the Company's associates are accumulating retirement income benefits through defined contribution plans. The majority of the Company's
defined benefit pension plans covering the Company's domestic associates have been closed to new associates and frozen for existing associates, however certain employees represented by collective bargaining continue to earn benefits. Certain

foreign associates are covered by government sponsored plans in the countries in which they are employed.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Benefits provided under defined benefit pension plans are based, depending on the plan, on associates' average earnings and years of credited service, or a benefit multiplier times years of service. Funding of these qualified defined benefit

pension plans is in accordance with federal laws and regulations. The actuarial valuation measurement date for pension plans is the calendar year end of each year.

The Company's target allocation, target return and actual weighted-average asset allocation by asset category are as follows:

Actual Allocation

Allocation Return 2024 2023
Equity Investments 20.6 % 52-75% 15.6 % 14.7 %
Fixed Income 66.8 % 3.7-70% 70.3 % 68.2 %
Other 12.6 % 05%-7.0% 14.1% 17.1%
Total 100.0 % 5.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

During 2024, the Company maintained its dynamic de-risking investment strategy designed to allow the plans to attain and/or maintain fully funded status levels while reducing volatility, in order to further increase the overall fixed income portfolio to
meet allocation targets in such a manner that its interest rate sensitivity correlates highly with that of the liabilities of the plans while other asset classes are intended to provide additional return with associated higher levels of risk. This strategy is
designed to result in improved funding levels and less required contributions over time. Allocation targets have been established to fit this strategy in response to increased funded ratio thresholds along a glidepath. The long-term rate of return
assumptions consider historic returns and volatilities adjusted for changes in overall economic conditions that may affect future returns and a weighting of each investment class.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the funded status of the defined benefit pension plans:
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2024 2023

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:

Obligation at Beginning of Period $ 483.1 $ 440.3
Service Cost 20 21
Interest Cost 213 22.8
Actuarial (Gain) Loss (25.8) 20.1
Less: Benefits Paid 34.3 34.4
Settlements (0.7) (3.9)
Foreign Currency Translation (83) 6.0
Other Events 13.8 =
(Divestitures) Acquisitions (1.1) 30.1
Obligation at End of Period $ 450.0 $ 483.1
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Period $ 367.7 $ 346.2
Actual Return on Plan Assets (19) 34.2
Employer Contributions 16.6 8.3
Less: Benefits Paid 343 34.4
Settlements (0.7) (39)
Foreign Currency Translation (33) 3.6
Other Events 21 —
(Divestitures) Acquisitions (11) 13.7
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Period $ 345.1 $ 367.7
Funded Status $ (1049) s (1154)

The actuarial gain for 2024 was primarily due to an increase in discount rates. The actuarial loss for 2023 was primarily due to a decrease in discount rates.

The funded status as of December 31, 2024 included domestic plans of $( 52.4 ) million and international plans of $( 52.5 ) million. The funded status as of December 31, 2023 included domestic plans of $( 64.5 ) million and international plans of $(
50.9 ) million.

Funded Status and Expense

The Company recognized the funded status of its defined benefit pension plans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

2024 2023
Other Noncurrent Assets $ 5.3 $ 4.1
Accrued Compensation and Benefits (76) (6.6)
Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefits @ (102.6) (112.9)
Total $ (1049) $ (115.4)
(@ Excludes post-retirement health care plans included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Net Actuarial Gain $ 320 % 35.6
Prior Service Cost 0.3 0.3
Total $ 323 $ 35.9

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $ 438.7 million and $ 475.6 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.
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Defined pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023
Projected Benefit Obligation $ 415.1 $ 445.7
Accumulated Benefit Obligation 408.5 442.1
Fair Value of Plan Assets 304.9 326.4
Defined pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023
Projected Benefit Obligation $ 415.1 $ 447.2
Accumulated Benefit Obligation 408.5 443.3
Fair Value of Plan Assets 304.9 327.7
The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively:

2024 2023

Discount Rate 5.4 % 47 %

The objective of the discount rate assumption is to reflect the rate at which the pension benefits could be effectively settled. In making the determination, the Company takes into account the timing and amount of benefits that would be available

under the plans. The methodology for selecting the discount rate was to match the plan’s cash flows to that of a theoretical bond portfolio yield curve.

Certain of the Company's defined benefit pension plan obligations are based on years of service rather than on projected compensation percentage increases. For those plans that use compensation increases in the calculation of benefit
obligations and net periodic pension cost, the Company used an assumed rate of compensation increase of 3.0 % and 2.8 % for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Net periodic pension benefit costs and the net actuarial loss and prior service cost recognized in OCI for the defined benefit pension plans were as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Service Cost $ 2.0 21 8 14
Interest Cost 21.3 22.8 14.0
Expected Return on Plan Assets (20.0) (27.1) (20.3)
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss (0.2) (18) 1.0
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 0.1 0.1 0.1
Curtailment Expense — 0.2 —
Net Periodic Benefit Cost $ 3.2 (37) $ (3.8)
Change in Obligations Recognized in OCI, Net of Tax

Prior Service Cost $ 0.1 01 $ 0.1

Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss (3.7) (14.4) 0.7
Total Recognized in OCI $ (36) (143) $ 0.8

The amortization of any prior service cost is determined using a straight-line amortization of the cost over the average remaining service period of associates expected to receive benefits under the plans. The amortization of the net actuarial loss is

determined using a straight-line amortization of the loss over the average remaining life of the associate: to receive benefits under the plans.
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The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension cost for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

2024 2023 2022
Discount Rate 47 % 52% 2.7%
Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Assets 51% 6.6 % 4.6 %

Pension Assets

The Company classifies its investments into Level 1, which refers to securities valued using quoted prices from active markets for identical assets, Level 2, which refers to securities not traded on an active market but for which observable market
inputs are readily available, and Level 3, which refers to securities valued based on significant unobservable inputs. Mutual funds are valued at the unadjusted quoted market prices for the securities. Common collective trust funds are valued based
on the net asset value (“NAV”) provided by the administrator of the fund as a practical expedient to estimate fair value. The NAV is based on the value of the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities, and then divided by the number
of shares outstanding. Investments in units of collective trust funds and short-term investment funds, comprised of cash and money market funds, are valued at their respective published market prices as reported by the funds daily. Certain
international plans hold insurance contracts. The fair value of these contracts is calculated by projecting expected future cash flows from the contract and discounting them to present value based on current market rates. The contracts are included
within Level 3 of the hierarchy as the assumptions used to project expected future cash flows are based on actuarial estimates and are unobservable.

Pension assets by type and level are as follows:

December 31, 2024

Total Level 1 Level 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4.3 $ 4.3 $ —
Mutual Funds:
International Equity Funds 6.0 6.0 —
Fixed Income Funds 10.2 10.2 —
Other EN ! 1.0 4.1
Insurance Contracts 21.1 — 21.1
$ 46.7 $ 215 $ 25.2
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value 298.4
Total $ 345.1

December 31, 2023

Total Level 1 Level 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 49 8 49 3 =
Mutual Funds:
US Equity Funds 1.8 18 —
International Equity Funds 9.5 9.5 —
Fixed Income Funds 3.8 3.8 —
Other 6.1 18 4.3
Insurance Contracts 23.7 = 23.7
$ 498 $ 218  $ 28.0
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value 317.9
Total $ 367.7
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The Company had no assets classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The following table sets forth additional disclosures for the fair value measurement of the fair value of pension plan assets that calculate fair value based on NAV per share practical expedient as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

2024 2023

Common Collective Trust Funds $ 2984 $ 317.9

The 2024 and 2023 common collective trust funds are investments in the following portfolios:

Mercer US Small/Midcap Equity Portfolio - seeks to provide long term total returns comprised primarily of capital appreciation by investing in equity securities issued by small to medium capitalization US companies;

Mercer Non-US Core Equity Portfolio - seeks to provide long term total return, which includes capital appreciation and income, by investing in equity securities of non-US companies;

Mercer Global Low Volatility Equity Portfolio - seeks to provide long term total return, which includes capital appreciation and income, by investing in equity securities of US and foreign issuers;

Mercer US Large Cap Passive Equity Portfolio - seeks to approximate, as closely as possible, the performance of the S&P 500 Index over the long term by investing in the equity securities comprising the index in approximately the same
proportions as they are represented in the index;

Mercer Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio - seeks to provide long term total return, which includes capital appreciation and income, by investing equity securities of companies that are located in emerging markets, other investments that are
tied economically to emerging markets, as well as in American, European and Global Depository Receipts;

Mercer Active Long Corporate Fixed Income Portfolio - seeks to maximize long term total return by investing on high quality US corporate bonds;

Mercer Opportunistic Fixed Income Portfolio - seeks to provide long term total return, which includes capital appreciation and income, by investing in high yield bonds and emerging markets debt;

Mercer Long Strips Fixed Income Portfolio - seeks to extend the duration of plan assets by investing in US Treasury STRIPS with a maturity of greater than 20 years;

Mercer Core Real Estate Portfolio - seeks to earn attractive risk-adjusted returns on a diversified portfolio of private real estate, by systematically favoring the market segments and opportunities believed to offer the most attractive relative
value at a given point in time;

Mercer Active Intermediate Credit Fixed Income Portfolio - seeks to maximize long-term total return relative to the Bloomberg Barclays US Intermediate Credit Index;

Mercer Long Duration Passive Fixed Income Portfolio - seeks to match the total return of the Bloomberg US Long Government Bond Index.

The 2024 and 2023 common collective trust funds are available for immediate redemption.

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the Company's Level 3 assets in its pension plan investments as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

2024 2023
Other Insurance Contracts Total Other Insurance Contracts Total
Beginning balance $ 43 % 237 $ 280 $ — 8 209 $ 209
Acquisition = = = 43 = 43
Net Sales — (0.3) (0.3) — (0.8) (0.8)
Net Gains (Losses) 0.1 (0.8) (0.7) — 2.7 27
Translation (0.3) (15) (18) — 0.9 0.9
Ending balance $ 41 8 211 8 252 $ 43 3 237 $ 28.0

The Company made contributions to its defined benefit plan of $ 16.6 million and $ 8.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The Company estimates that in 2025 it will make contributions in the amount of $ 14.7 million to fund its defined benefit pension plans.
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The following pension benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Year Expected Payments

2025 $ 38.4
2026 373
2027 36.5
2028 36.7
2029 36.0
2030-2034 176.1

Post-Retirement Health Care Plans

The Company's other post-retirement health care plans were not significant during 2024 and 2023.
Defined Contribution Plans

Company contributions to domestic defined contribution plans totaled $ 29.5 million, $ 24.3 million and $ 16.2 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Company contributions to non-US defined contribution plans were $ 14.0 million, $ 15.7
million and $ 7.8 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(8) Leases

The Company leases certain manufacturing facilities, warehouses/distribution centers, office space, machinery, equipment, IT assets, and vehicles. If the contract provides the Company the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset, it is considered to be or contain a lease. Right-of-use ("ROU") assets and lease liabilities are recognized at lease commencement date based on the present value of
the future lease payments over the expected lease term.

As most of the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company determines its incremental borrowing rate based on its unsecured borrowing rate, adjusted for collateralization and lease term, at the lease commencement date. For
leases denominated in a currency other than the US dollar, the incremental borrowing rate is estimated based upon the sovereign treasury rate for the currency in which the lease liability is denominated when the Company takes possession of the

leased asset, adjusted for various factors, such as term and internal credit spread. The ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and excludes lease incentive and initial direct costs incurred.

Leases entered into may include one or more options to renew. The renewal terms can extend the lease term from one to twenty-five years . The exercise of lease renewal options is at the Company's sole discretion. Renewal option periods are
included in the measurement of the ROU asset and lease liability when the exercise is reasonably certain to occur. Some leases include options to terminate the lease upon breach of contract and are remeasured at that point in time.

The depreciable life of leased assets and leasehold improvements are limited by the expected lease term, unless there is a transfer of title or purchase option reasonably certain of exercise.

Some of the Company's lease agreements include rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation or are based on an index rate. These increases are reflected as variable lease payments and are included in the measurement of the ROU asset
and lease liability. The Company's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Operating leases are included in the following asset and liability accounts on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets: Operating Lease Assets, Current Operating Lease Liabilities, and Noncurrent Operating Lease Liabilities. ROU assets and

liabilities arising from finance leases are included in the following asset and liability accounts on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets: Net Property, Plant and Equipment (see Note 2 - Accounting Policies), Current Maturities of Long-Term
Debt and Long-Term Debt (see Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities).
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Short-term and variable lease expense was immaterial. The components of lease expense were as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Operating Lease Cost $ 55.1 $ 56.1 $ 40.7
Finance Lease Cost:
Amortization of ROU Assets 36 3.2 3.2
Interest on Lease Liabilities 3.6 3.7 3.8
Total Lease Expense $ 623 $ 630 $ 41.7
Maturity of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2024 were as follows:
Operating Leases Finance Leases Total

2025 $ 45.4 $ 8.2 $ 53.6
2026 39.2 8.2 47.4
2027 30.4 8.3 38.7
2028 19.2 7.4 26.6
2029 11.0 6.8 17.8
Thereafter 75.3 62.2 137.5
Total Lease Payments $ 220.5 $ 101.1 $ 321.6
Less: Interest (70.8) (31.0) (101.8)
Present Value of Lease Liabilities $ 149.7 $ 701 $ 219.8
Other information related to leases was as follows:

Supplemental Cash Flow Information: 2024 2023 2022

Cash Paid for Amounts Included in the Measurement of Lease Liabilities:

Operating Cash Flows - Operating Leases $ 51.4 56.2 38.4
Operating Cash Flows - Finance Leases 3.6 3.7 3.8
Financing Cash Flows - Finance Leases 39 3.3 29
Leased Assets Obtained in Exchange for New Finance Lease Liabilities 39 0.6 —
Leased Assets Obtained in Exchange for New Operating Lease Liabilities 22.8 115.7 31.4
Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term (Years)

Operating Leases 7.3 years 7.2 years 5.5 years
Finance Leases 14.8 years 16.1 years 17.0 years
Weighted Average Discount Rate

Operating Leases 8.1 % 8.1 % 8.0 %
Finance Leases 52 % 52 % 52 %

The Company had no material operating or finance leases that have been entered into but not yet commenced as of December 31, 2024.
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(9) Shareholders' Equity
Repurchase of Common Stock
At a meeting of the Board of Directors on October 26, 2021, the Company's Board of Directors approved the authorization to purchase up to $ 500.0 million of shares under the Company's share repurchase program. The authorization has no

expiration date. In 2024, the Company acquired and retired 332,439 shares of its common stock at an average cost of $ 150.42 per share for a total cost of $ 50.0 million. In 2023, the Company did not acquire any shares of its common stock. In
2022, the Company acquired and retired 1,698,227 shares of its common stock at an average cost of $ 140.89 per share for a total cost of $ 239.2 million.

Based on share repurchase activity since the most recent authorization, as of December 31, 2024, the maximum value of shares of the Company's common stock available to be purchased was approximately $ 145.0 million.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognized approximately $ 34.8 million, $ 58.2 million and $ 22.5 million in share-based compensation expense in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. In connection with the Altra Transaction, the Company incurred $ 15.7 million of
share-based compensation expense during the first quarter of 2023 related to the accelerated vesting of awards for certain former Altra employees. The total income tax benefit recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for share-
based compensation expense was $ 4.8 million, $ 10.5 million and $ 5.4 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company recognizes compensation expense on grants of share-based compensation awards on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period of each award. The total fair value of shares and options vested was $ 46.2 million, $ 35.4 million and $ 25.6 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based compensation awards was approximately $ 39.3 million, net of estimated forfeitures, which the Company expects to recognize over a weighted average period of approximately 1.8
years as of December 31, 2024.

During 2023, the Company's shareholders approved the 2023 Equity Incentive Plan (“2023 Plan"). The 2023 Plan authorized the issuance of 5.6 million shares of common stock for equity-based awards and terminated any further grants under
prior equity plans. Approximately 5.0 million shares were available for future grant or payment under the 2023 Plan as of December 31, 2024.

Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

The Company uses several forms of share-based incentive awards including non-qualified stock options and stock settled stock appreciation rights (‘SARs"). SARs are the right to receive stock in an amount equal to the appreciation in value of a
share of stock over the base price per share. Shares granted generally vest over three years on the anniversary date of the grant date. Generally all grants expire 10 years from the grant date. All grants are made at prices equal to the fair market
value of the stock on the grant date. For the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, expired and canceled shares were immaterial.

The table below presents share-based compensation activity for 2024, 2023 and 2022:

2024 2023 2022
Total Intrinsic Value of Share-Based Incentive Awards Exercised $220 $6.2 $7.8
Cash Received from Stock Option Exercises 4.9 25 35
Income Tax Benefit from the Exercise of Stock Options 21.2 5:3 6.1
Total Fair Value of Share-Based Incentive Awards Vested 13.4 10.9 8.2

The weighted average assumptions used in the Company's Black-Scholes valuation related to grants for options and SARs were as follows:
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2024 2023 2022

Per Share Weighted Average Fair Value of Grants $62.85 $54.20 $42.21
Risk-Free Interest Rate 4.3 % 4.1% 18%
Expected Life (Years) 5.0 5.0 4.0
Expected Volatility 38.0 % 35.8% 35.3%
Expected Dividend Yield 0.8 % 0.9 % 0.9 %

The average risk-free interest rate is based on US Treasury security rates in effect as of the grant date. The expected dividend yield is based on the projected annual dividend as a percentage of the estimated market value of the Company's
common stock as of the grant date. The Company estimated the expected volatility using a weighted average of daily historical volatility of the Company's stock price over the expected term of the award. The Company estimated the expected term
using historical data.

Following is a summary of share-based incentive plan activity (options and SARs) for 2024:

Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in
Number of Shares Under Options and SARs Shares Weighted Average Exercise Price Contractual Term (years) millions)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2023 829,417 $ 101.44
Granted 98,998 168.43
Exercised (275,347) 85.85
Forfeited (24,574) 151.93
Outstanding as of December 31, 2024 628,494 $ 116.90 6.0 $ 252
Exercisable as of December 31, 2024 443,632 $ 99.47 5.0 $ 24.7

Compensation expense recognized related to options and SARs was $ 5.1 million, $ 7.4 million and $ 6.1 million for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, there was $ 5.6 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested options and SARSs that is expected to be recognized as a charge to earnings over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.
The amount of options and SARs expected to vest is materially consistent with those outstanding and not yet exercisable.

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock awards ("RSAs") and restricted stock units ("RSUs") consist of shares or the rights to shares of the Company's stock. The awards are restricted such that they are subject to substantial risk of forfeiture and to restrictions on their
sale or other transfer. As defined in the individual grant agreements, acceleration of vesting may occur under a change in control, or death, disability or normal retirement of the grantee.

Following is the summary of RSAs activity for 2024:

Weighted Average Fair Value at Grant

Shares Date igl gt ining C Term (years)
Unvested RSAs as of December 31, 2023 21,997 $ 133.41 0.9
Granted — —
Vested (18,451) 132.49
Forfeited (1,555) 135.50
Unvested RSAs as of December 31, 2024 1,991 $ 136.77 19
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There was no grant of RSAs in 2024. The weighted average grant date fair value of awards granted was $ 134.71 and $ 131.27 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Other than RSAs that were issued to replace equity awards held by employees of Altra at the time of the Altra acquisition in the prior year, RSAs vest on the one year anniversary of the grant date, provided the holder of the shares is continuously
employed by or in the service of the Company until the vesting date. Compensation expense recognized related to the RSAs was $ 0.9 million, $ 2.3 million and $ 1.4 million for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, there was $ 0.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested RSAs that is expected to be recognized as a charge to earnings over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.

Following is the summary of RSUs activity for 2024:

Weighted Average Fair Value at Grant i g ining Ci Term
Shares Date (years)
Unvested RSUs as of December 31, 2023 263,596 $ 143.43 .9
Granted 142,551 165.10
Vested (121,447) 143.18
Forfeited (42,527) 153.56
Unvested RSUs as of December 31, 2024 242,173 $ 154.79 1.8

The weighted average grant date fair value of awards granted was $ 165.10 , $ 141.89 and $ 147.70 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Other than RSUs that were issued to replace equity awards held by employees of Altra at the time of the Altra acquisition in the prior year, RSUs vest one third each year on the anniversary of the grant date, provided the holder of the shares is
continuously employed by the Company until the vesting date. Compensation expense recognized related to the RSUs was $ 17.3 million, $ 24.7 million and $ 10.3 million for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024, there was $ 18.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested RSUs that is expected to be recognized as a charge to earnings over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

Performance Share Units

Performance share unit awards ("PSUs") consist of shares or the rights to shares of the Company's stock which are awarded to associates of the Company. These shares are payable upon the determination that the Company achieved certain
established performance targets and can range from 0 % to 200 % of the targeted payout based on the actual results. PSUs have a performance period of 3 years, vest three years from the grant date and are issued at a performance target of 100
%. The PSUs have performance criteria based on a return on invested capital metric or they have performance criteria using returns relative to the Company's peer group. As set forth in the individual grant agreements, acceleration of vesting may
occur under a change in control, death or disability. There are no voting rights with these instruments until vesting occurs and a share of stock is issued. PSUs with a performance criteria using returns relative to the Company's peer group are

valued using a Monte Carlo simulation method as of the grant date while PSUs with a performance criteria based on a return on invested capital are valued using the closing market price less net present value of dividends as of the grant date.

The assumptions used in the Company's Monte Carlo simulation related to grants for PSUs were as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Risk-free interest rate 4.5 % 4.4 % 1.8%
Expected life (years) 3.0 3.0 3.0
Expected volatility 36.0 % 41.0 % 38.0 %
Expected dividend yield — % — % — %
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Following is the summary of PSUs activity for 2024:

Weighted Average Fair Value at ig| g ining C Term
Shares Grant Date (years)
Unvested PSUs as of December 31, 2023 125,902 $ 197.36 i
Granted 68,350 254.05
Vested (43,708) 151.05
Forfeited (8,458) 190.97
Unvested PSUs as of December 31, 2024 142,086 $ 229.60 18

The weighted average grant date fair value of awards granted was $ 254.05 , $ 235.77 and $ 151.27 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Compensation expense for PSUs is recognized based on the Monte Carlo simulation value or the expected payout ratio depending upon the performance criterion for the award, net of estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized
related to PSUs was $ 11.5 million, $ 8.1 million and $ 4.7 million for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Total unrecognized compensation expense for all PSUs granted as of December 31, 2024 was $ 15.2 million and it is expected to be
recognized as a charge to earnings over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

(10) Income Taxes

Income (loss) before taxes consisted of the following:

2024 2023 2022
us (169.2) $ (389.5) 2212
Foreign 417.2 387.9 392.6
Total 2480 $ (16) 613.8
The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:
2024 2023 2022
Current
US Federal 459  $ 39.6 101.6
US State 10.0 6.4 10.2
Foreign 146.0 122.0 87.2
201.9 $ 168.0 199.0
Deferred
US Federal (89.6) $ (84.3) (50.7)
US State (15.3) (9.4) (121)
Foreign (47.4) (21.6) (17.3)
(152.3) (115.3) (80.1)
Total 49.6 $ 52.7 118.9
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory expense (benefit) and the income tax expense reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) follows:

2024 2023 2022
Federal Statutory Expense (Benefit) $ 52.1 $ (04) $ 128.9
State Income Taxes, Net of Federal Benefit (32) (86) 3.2
Effect of Impairments and Divestitures 21.2 35.0 —
Foreign Rate Differential (83) (10.8) (14)
Research and Development Credit (8.7) (8.7) (9.7)
Valuation Allowance (6.6) 4.3 0.2
Tax on Repatriation 53 25.8 7.2
Transaction Costs — 6.9 —
US Tax on Foreign Operations (6.6) 14.2 6.7
Deferred Tax Remeasurement (11) 34 (2.4)
Other 55 (8.4) (13.8)
Income Tax Expense $ 496 $ 527  $ 118.9

Deferred taxes arise primarily from differences in amounts reported for tax and financial statement purposes. The Company's net deferred tax liability was $ 785.5 million as of December 31, 2024, classified on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a
net non-current deferred income tax benefit of $ 30.0 million and a net non-current deferred income tax liability of $ 815.5 million. As of December 31, 2023, the Company's net deferred tax liability was $ 978.9 million classified on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as a net non-current deferred income tax asset of $ 33.8 million and a net non-current deferred income tax liability of $ 1,012.7 million.

The components of this net deferred tax liability are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Accrued Benefits $ 53.1 $ 65.4
Bad Debt Allowances 7.4 7.9
Warranty Accruals 7.6 8.4
Derivative Instruments 2.6 —
Inventory 33.7 8.6
Tax Loss Carryforward 14.8 16.1
Operating Lease Liability 56.5 67.4
Deferred Interest 92.6 43.7
Other 35.0 32.3

Deferred Tax Assets before Valuation Allowance 303.3 249.8
Valuation Allowance (8.3) (11.0)

Total Deferred Tax Assets 295.0 238.8
Property Related (83.3) (925)
Intangible Items (936.4) (1,026.6)
Accrued Liabilities (11.8) (29.9)
Derivative Instruments — (83)
Operating Lease Asset (49.0) (60.4)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,080.5) (1,217.7)
Net Deferred Tax Liability $ (7855) $ (978.9)
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Following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits:

Unrecognized Tax Benefits, January 1, 2022 $ 8.8
Gross Increases from Current Period Tax Positions 0.6
Settlements with Taxing Authorities (2.0)
Lapse of Statute of Limitations (1.7)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits, December 31, 2022 $ 5.7
Gross Increases from Current Period Tax Positions 0.3
Gross Increases from Acquisitions 3.8
Lapse of Statute of Limitations (13)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits, December 31, 2023 $ 8.5
Gross Increases from Current Period Tax Positions 0.8
Acquisition Measurement Period Adjustment (28)
Lapse of Statute of Limitations (2.3)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits, December 31, 2024 $ 4.2

Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2024 amount to $ 4.2 million, all of which would impact the effective income tax rate if recognized.

Potential interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in income tax expense. During 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized approximately $( 0.3 ) million, $( 0.1 ) million and $( 0.1 ) million of net interest income,
respectively. The Company had approximately $ 0.7 million, $ 1.1 million and $ 1.2 million of accrued interest as of Di 31, 2024, Dy 31, 2023 and D 31, 2022, respectively.

Due to statute expirations, approximately $ 1.8 million of the unrecognized tax benefits, including accrued interest, could reasonably change in the coming year.

The Company conducts business globally and, as a result, files income tax returns in the US federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by taxing
authorities throughout the world. The US Internal Revenue Service is currently conducting an audit of the Company's 2022 income tax return. No material deficiencies have been assessed related to ongoing audits as of December 31, 2024. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to US federal and state/local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2021, and the Company is no longer subject to non-US income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years prior to 2020.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 the Company had approximately $ 14.8 million and $ 16.1 million, respectively, of tax effected net operating losses in various jurisdictions with a portion expiring over a period of up to 15 years and
the remaining without expiration.

Valuation allowances totaling $ 8.3 million and $ 11.0 million as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, have been established for deferred income tax assets primarily related to certain subsidiary loss carryforwards that may
not be realized. Realization of the net deferred income tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to their expiration. Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more-likely-than-not that the net deferred
income tax assets will be realized. The amount of the net deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, could change in the near term if future taxable income during the carryforward period fluctuates.

The Company continues to treat approximately $ 213.0 million of earnings from certain foreign entities as permanently reinvested and has not recorded a deferred tax liability for the local withholding taxes of approximately $ 16.9 million on those

earnings.
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(11) Contingencies

One of the Company's subsidiaries that it acquired in 2007 is subject to numerous claims filed in various jurisdictions relating to certain sub-fractional motors that were primarily manufactured through 2004 and that were included as components of
residential and commercial ventilation units manufactured and sold in high volumes by a third party. These ventilation units are subject to product safety requirements and other potential regulation of their performance by government agencies such
as the US Consumer Product Safety Commission (“CPSC"). The claims generally allege that the ventilation units were the cause of fires. The Company has recorded an estimated liability for incurred claims. Based on the current facts, the
Company cannot assure that these claims, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on its subsidiary's financial condition. The Company's subsidiary cannot reasonably predict the outcome of these claims, the nature
or extent of any CPSC or other remedial actions, if any, that the Company's subsidiary may need to undertake with respect to motors that remain in the field, or the costs that may be incurred, some of which could be significant.

As a result of the Company's acquisition of the Rexnord PMC business, it is entitled to indemnification from third parties to agreements with the Rexnord PMC business against certain contingent liabilities of the Rexnord PMC business, including
certain pre-closing environmental liabilities.

The Company believes that, pursuant to the transaction documents related to the Rexnord PMC business' acquisition of the Stearns business from Invensys plc ("Invensys"), Invensys (now known as Schneider Electric) is obligated to defend and
indemnify us with respect to the matters described below relating to the Ellsworth Industrial Park Site and to various asbestos claims. The indemnity obligations relating to the matters described below are subject, together with indemnity obligations
relating to other matters, to an overall dollar cap equal to the purchase price, which is an amount in excess of $ 900.0 million. In the event that the Company is unable to recover from Invensys with respect to the matters below, it may be entitled to
indemnification from Zurn, subject to certain limitations. The following paragraphs summarize the most significant actions and proceedings:

* In 2002, the Company's subsidiary, Rexnord Industries, LLC (“Rexnord Industries") was named as a potentially responsible party (“PRP"), together with at least ten other companies, at the Ellsworth Industrial Park Site, Downers Grove,
DuPage County, lllinois (the "Site"), by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("USEPA"), and the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency ("IEPA"). Rexnord Industries' Downers Grove property is situated within the Ellsworth
Industrial Complex. The USEPA and IEPA allege there have been one or more releases or threatened releases of chlorinated solvents and other hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants at the Site, allegedly including but not
limited to a release or threatened release on or from Rexnord Industries' property. The relief sought by the USEPA and IEPA includes further investigation and potential remediation of the Site and reimbursement of USEPA's past costs. In
early 2020, Rexnord Industries entered into an administrative order with the USEPA to do remediation work on its Downers Grove property. The soil excavation work and transporting and disposing of the excavated material was completed
in October 2020. The construction of an AS/SVE system was completed and became operational in February 2022. The system continues to operate pending the US EPA's approval of a pilot study work plan for an on site chemical
oxidation soil remediation system. Soil remediation is expected to continue for a minimum of three years . All previously pending property damage and personal injury lawsuits against Rexnord Industries related to the Site have been settled
or dismissed. Pursuant to its indemnity obligation, Invensys continues to defend Rexnord Industries in known matters related to the Site, including the costs of the remediation work pursuant to the 2020 administrative order, and has paid
100 % of the costs to date. This indemnification right would not protect Rexnord Industries against liabilities related to environmental conditions that were unknown to Invensys at the time of the acquisition of the Stearns business from
Invensys.

+  Multiple lawsuits (with over 350 claimants) are pending in state or federal court in numerous jurisdictions relating to alleged personal injuries due to the alleged presence of asbestos in certain brakes and clutches previously manufactured
by the Rexnord PMC business' Stearns brand of brakes and clutches and/or its predecessor owners. Invensys and FMC, prior owners of the Stearns business, have paid 100 % of the costs to date related to the Stearns lawsuits. Similarly,
the Rexnord PMC business' Prager subsidiary is the subject of claims by multiple claimants alleging personal injuries due to the alleged presence of asbestos in a product allegedly manufactured by Prager. However, all these claims are
currently on the Texas Multi-district Litigation inactive docket, and the Company does not believe that they will become active in the future. To date, the Rexnord PMC business' insurance providers have paid 100 % of the costs related to
the Prager ashestos matters. We believe that the combination of the Company's insurance coverage and the Invensys indemnity obligations will cover any future costs of these matters.

In connection with the Company's acquisition of the Rexnord PMC business, transaction documents related to the Rexnord PMC business’ acquisition of The Falk Corporation from Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation were assigned to Rexnord
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Industries, and provide Rexnord Industries with indemnification against certain products related asbestos exposure liabilities. The Company believes that, pursuant to such indemnity obligations, Hamilton Sundstrand is obligated to defend and
indemnify Rexnord Industries with respect to asbestos claims described below, and that, with respect to these claims, such indemnity obligations are not subject to any time or dollar limitations.

The following paragraph summarizes the most significant actions and proceedings for which Hamilton Sundstrand has accepted responsibility:

* Rexnord Industries is a defendant in multiple lawsuits pending in state or federal court in numerous jurisdictions relating to alleged personal injuries due to the alleged presence of asbestos in certain clutches and drives previously
manufactured by The Falk Corporation. The ultimate outcome of these lawsuits cannot presently be determined. Hamilton Sundstrand is defending Rexnord Industries in these lawsuits pursuant to its indemnity obligations and has paid 100
% of the costs to date.

The Company is, from time to time, party to litigation and other legal or regulatory proceedings that arise in the normal course of its business operations and the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertainty, including product warranty and
liability claims, contract disputes and environmental, asbestos, intellectual property, employment and other litigation matters. The Company's products are used in a variety of industrial, commercial and residential applications that subject the
Company to claims that the use of its products is alleged to have resulted in injury or other damage. Many of these matters will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. Management conducts regular reviews, including
updates from legal counsel, to assess the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of these contingencies, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise in judgment. The Company accrues for exposures in amounts that it believes are
adequate, and the Company does not believe that the outcome of any such lawsuit individually or collectively will have a material effect on the Company's financial position, its results of operations or its cash flows.

The Company recognizes the cost associated with its standard warranty on its products at the time of sale. The amount recognized is based on historical experience. The following is a reconciliation of the changes in accrued warranty costs for
2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Beginning Balance $ 345 $ 28.8
Less: Payments 219 234
Provisions 215 21.8
Acquisitions — 9.8
Reclassification to Liabilities Held for Sale — (3.4)
Translation Adjustments (0.7) 0.9
Ending Balance $ 334 $ 345

These liabilities are included in Other Accrued Expenses and Other Noncurrent Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(12) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are commodity price risk, currency exchange risk, and interest rate risk. Forward contracts on certain
commodities are entered into to manage the price risk associated with forecasted purchases of materials used in the Company's manufacturing process. Forward contracts on certain currencies are entered into to manage forecasted cash flows in
certain foreign currencies. Interest rate swaps are utilized to manage interest rate risk associated with the Company's floating rate borrowings.

The Company is exposed to credit losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to various financial agreements, including its commodity hedging transactions, foreign currency exchange contracts and interest rate swap

agreements. Exposure to counterparty credit risk is managed by limiting counterparties to major international banks and financial institutions meeting established credit guidelines and continually monitoring their compliance with the credit guidelines.
The Company does not obtain collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to credit risk. The Company does not anticipate non-performance by its counterparties, but cannot provide assurances.
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The Company recognizes all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company designates commodity forward contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted purchases of commodities,
currency forward contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted foreign currency cash flows and interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of forecasted SOFR-based interest payments. There were no significant collateral deposits on derivative
financial instruments as of December 31, 2024 or December 31, 2023.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of AOCI and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative
representing either hedge ineffectiveness or changes in market value of derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized in current earnings.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had $( 0.8 ) million and $ 15.1 million, net of tax, of derivative losses and gains, respectively, on closed hedge instruments in AOCI that will be realized in earnings when the hedged
items impact earnings.

The Company has commodity forward contracts to hedge forecasted purchases of commodities with maturities extending through December 2025. The notional amounts expressed in terms of the dollar value of the hedged item were as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Copper $ 417 $ 375
Aluminum — 14

The Company has currency forward contracts with maturities extending through December 2025. The notional amounts expressed in terms of the dollar value of the hedged currency were as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Mexican Peso $ 2332 $ 101.4
Chinese Renminbi 359.5 302.3
Indian Rupee 23.0 30.1
Euro 1,221.5 465.8
Canadian Dollar 52.2 —
British Pound 6.1 7.1

The Company entered into two receive variable/pay-fixed forward starting non-amortizing interest rate swaps in June 2020, with a total notional amount of $ 250.0 million which were subsequently terminated in March 2022. The cash proceeds of $
16.2 million received to settle the terminated swaps will be recognized as a reduction of interest expense via the effective interest rate method through July 2025 when the terminated swaps were scheduled to expire. The Company entered into
two additional receive variable/pay-fixed forward starting non-amortizing interest rate swaps in May 2022, with a total notional amount of $ 250.0 million to hedge the floating rate interest of the Term Facility. These swaps will expire in March 2027.
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Fair values of derivative instruments as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were:
December 31, 2024

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current

Assets Other Noncurrent Assets Other Accrued Expenses
Designated as Hedging Instruments:
Interest Rate Swap Contracts $ — $ 5.5 $ —
Currency Contracts 0.1 — 8.0
Commodity Contracts 0.1 — 4.4
Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:
Currency Contracts 0.9 — 5.6
Total Derivatives $ 11 $ 5.5 $ 18.0
December 31, 2023
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current
Assets Other Noncurrent Assets Other Accrued Expenses
Designated as Hedging Instruments:

Interest Rate Swap Contracts $ - $ 53 $ -

Currency Contracts 13.1 0.2 1.0

Commodity Contracts 1.0 0.1 0.6
Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

Currency Contracts 13 — 5.9
Total Derivatives $ 15.4 $ 5.6 $ 7.5
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedging Instruments
The effect of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for 2024, 2023 and 2022 were:

2024
Interest
Commodity Currency Rate
Forwards Forwards Swaps Total
(Loss) Gain Recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss $ (45) $ (143) $ 0.2 $ (186)
Amounts Reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
(Loss) Gain Recognized in Cost of Sales (1.3) 22.3 = 21.0
— 5.6 5.6

Gain Recognized in Interest Expense
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(Loss) Gain recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss

Amounts reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

(Loss) Gain recognized in Cost of Sales
Gain recognized in Interest Expense

(Loss) Gain recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss

Amounts reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Gain recognized in Net Sales
Gain recognized in Cost of Sales
Gain recognized in Interest Expense

2023

The ineffective portion of hedging instruments recognized was immaterial for all periods presented.

Derivatives Not Designated as Cash Flow Hedging Instruments

The effect of derivative instruments not designated as cash flow hedges on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for 2024, 2023 and 2022 were:

Gain recognized in Operating Expenses

Gain recognized in Cost of Sales

Loss recognized in Operating Expenses

Loss recognized in Cost of Sales

Gain recognized in Operating Expenses

Interest
Commodity Currency Rate
Forwards Forwards Swaps Total
(05) 312§ (25) $ 28.2
(136) 20.8 — 7.2
— — 5.9 59
2022
Interest
Commodity Currency Rate
Forwards Forwards Swaps Total
(235) 11.4 $ 182 $ 6.1
= 0.1 = 0.1
35 6.1 — 9.6
== = 13 13
2024
Commodity Forwards Currency Forwards Total
— 4.6 4.6
2023
Commodity Forwards Currency Forwards Total
0.3 $ — % 0.3
— (17.8) (17.8)
2022
Commodity Forwards Currency Forwards Total
(06) $ — (06)
—_ 10.2 10.2

The AOCI balance related to hedging activities of a $( 5.5 ) million loss net of tax as of December 31, 2024 includes $( 9.8 ) million of net current deferred losses expected to be reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss) in the next
twelve months. There were no gains or losses reclassified from AOCI to earnings based on the probability that the forecasted transaction would not occur.



The Company's commodity and currency derivative contracts are subject to master netting agreements with the respective counterparties which allow the Company to net settle transactions with a single net amount payable by one party to another
party. The Company has elected to present the derivative assets and derivative liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets on a gross basis for the periods ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The following table presents on a net basis the derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to right of offset under enforceable master netting agreements:

December 31, 2024

Gross Amounts as Presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets $ 6.6
Liabilities 18.0

Derivative Contract Amounts Subject to
Right of Offset

$ (11)

(11)

December 31, 2023

Derivative Contracts as Presented on a
Net Basis

$ 5.5
16.9

Gross Amounts as Presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets $ 15.7
Liabilities 7.5

(13) Fair Value

Derivative Contract Amounts Subject to
Right of Offset

$ (26)

(26)

Derivative Contracts as Presented on a
Net Basis

$ 13.1

4.9

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The inputs used to measure fair value are classified

into the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, or
Unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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The Company uses the best available information in measuring fair value. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The fair values of cash equivalents and short-term deposits approximate their carrying values as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, due to the short period of time to maturity and are classified using Level 1 inputs. The fair values of
trade receivables and accounts payable approximate the carrying values due to the short period of time to maturity. See Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities for disclosure of the approximate fair value of the Company's debt as of December 31,

2024 and December 31, 2023.

The following table sets forth the Company's financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Classification
Assets:
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets:
Derivative Currency Contracts $ 1.0 $ 14.4 Level 2
Derivative Commodity Contracts 0.1 1.0 Level 2
Other Noncurrent Assets:
Interest Rate Swap 55 53 Level 2
Assets Held in Rabbi Trust 14.6 127 Level 1
Derivative Currency Contracts — 0.2 Level 2
Derivative Commodity Contracts — 0.1 Level 2
Liabilities:
Other Accrued Expenses:
Derivative Currency Contracts 13.6 6.9 Level 2
Derivative Commodity Contracts 4.4 0.6 Level 2

Level 1 fair value measurements for assets held in a Rabbi Trust are unadjusted quoted prices.

Level 2 fair value measurements for derivative assets and liabilities are measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities. Interest rate swaps are valued based on the discounted cash flows using the SOFR forward
yield curve for an instrument with similar contractual terms. Foreign currency forwards are valued based on exchange rates quoted by domestic and foreign banks for similar instruments. Commodity forwards are valued based on observable market
transactions of forward commodity prices. Senior Notes are valued based on rates for instruments with comparable maturities and credit quality. See Note 6 - Debt and Bank Credit Facilities for further information.

(14) Restructuring Activities

The Company incurred restructuring and restructuring-related costs on projects during 2024, 2023 and 2022. The Company has initiated restructuring plans to achieve cost synergies from procurement, distribution efficiencies, footprint
rationalization and other general cost savings measures. Restructuring costs include employee termination and plant relocation costs. Restructuring-related costs include costs directly associated with actions resulting from the Company's
simplification initiatives, such as asset write-downs or accelerated depreciation due to shortened useful lives in connection with site closures, discretionary employment benefit costs and other facility rationalization costs. Restructuring costs for
employee termination expenses are generally recognized when the severance liability is determined to be probable of being paid and reasonably estimable while plant relocation costs and related costs are generally required to be expensed as
incurred.
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The following is a reconciliation of provisions and payments for the restructuring projects for 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Beginning Balance $ 291 % 15.1
Acquisition® — 0.2
Provision® 41.3 42.2
Less: Payments 54.1 28.4
Ending Balance $ 163 $ 29.1
(1) Excludes $ 12.4 million of severance related to the Altra Transaction, which was paid in the second quarter 2023.
(2) Excludes equipment related write-offs and restructuring related depreciation adjustments. The twelve month period ended December 31, 2023 excludes $ 19.3 million of accelerated depreciation.
The following is a reconciliation of expenses by type for the restructuring projects in 2024, 2023 and 2022:
2024 2023 2022
Restructuring Costs: Cost of Sales Operating Expenses Total Cost of Sales Operating Expenses Total Cost of Sales Operating Expenses Total
Severance Expense $ 112 $ 147 $ 259 $ 121 $ 152 $ 273 $ 251 $ 64 $ 315
Facility Related Costs 7.8 15 9.3 255 0.3 25.8 135 11 14.6
Other Expenses 6.5 2.4 8.9 78 0.6 8.4 0.3 0.4 0.7
Total Restructuring Costs $ 255 $ 186 $ 441 $ 454 $ 161 $ 615 $ 389 $ 79 $ 46.8
The following table shows the allocation of Restructuring Expenses by segment for 2024, 2023 and 2022:
Industrial Powertrain Automation & Motion
Total Solutions Power Efficiency Solutions Control Industrial Systems
Restructuring Expenses - 2024 $ 44.1 $ 217 $ 113 $ 10.1 $ 1.0
Restructuring Expenses - 2023 $ 61.5 $ 270 % 304 $ 32 $ 0.9
Restructuring Expenses - 2022 $ 46.8 $ 118 $ 194 $ 14.1 $ 5

The Company expects to record aggregate future charges of approximately $ 29.8 million in 2025. The Company continues to evaluate operating efficiencies and anticipates incurring additional costs in future periods in connection with these
activities.

ITEM 9 - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

In accordance with Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(d) and 15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the year ended December 31, 2024. Based upon their evaluation of these disclosure controls and procedures,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2024 to ensure that (a) information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under

the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and (b) information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.”

Report of gi Public ing Firm
The attestation report required under this Item 9A is contained in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control
over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B - OTHER INFORMATION

During our last fiscal quarter, no director or officer of the Company, as defined in Rule 16a-1(f), adopted or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” each as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9C - DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10 - DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information in the sections titled “Proposal 1: Election of Directors,” “Board of Directors,” "Other Matters-Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports" and “Stock Ownership” in the 2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein. Information
with respect to our executive officers appears in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (our “Code”) that applies to all our directors, officers and associates. Our Code is available on our website, along with our current Corporate Governance Guidelines, at
www.regalrexnord.com. Our Code and our Corporate Governance Guidelines are also available in print to any shareholder who requests a copy in writing from the Secretary of Regal Rexnord Corporation. We intend to disclose through our website
any amendments to, or waivers from, the provisions of these codes.

The Company has insider trading policies and procedures that govern transactions in its securities by directors, officers, and employees. We believe these policies and procedures are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading
laws, rules and regulations and applicable listing standards. A copy of our insider trading policy is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 19.

ITEM 11 - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information in the sections titled “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation,” “Report of the Compensation and Human Resources Committee,” “Director Compensation,” and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and

Insider Participation” in the 2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 12 - SECURITY O 1IP OF CERTAIN IAL O AND MAN T AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the sections titled “Stock Ownership” in the 2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2024.

Number of Securities to be Issued upon the Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future
Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Weighted-average Exercise Price of Issuance Under Equity Ce ion Plans
Rights (1) Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights securities reflected in the column 1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders 628,494 $ 116.90 5,020,002
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders — — —
Total 628,494 5,020,002

(1) Represents options to purchase our Common Stock and stock-settled appreciation rights granted under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, 2018 Equity Incentive Plan and 2023 Equity Incentive Plan.
ITEM 13 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information in the section titled “Board of Directors” in the 2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 14 - PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information in the section titled “Proposal 4: Ratification of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the Year Ending December 31, 2025" in the 2025 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference
herein.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 - EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(i) Financial Statements (Item 8):

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 34 )

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule Il -Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(i) Exhibits

Exhibit Number

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Description

21

22

23

24

31

32

4.1

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 26, 2022, by and among Regal Rexnord Corporation, Aspen Sub, Inc. and Altra Industrial Motion Corp. [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2022]

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly known as Rexnord Corporation), Land Newco, Inc., Regal Rexnord
Corporation and Phoenix 2021, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021]

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of April 5, 2005, by and among Rexnord Industries, LLC (as successor in interest to Rexnord. LLC), Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation and The Falk

Corporation. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]+

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of September 27, 2002, by and among Rexnord Industries, LLC (as successor in interest to RBS Acquisition Corporation), Invensys plc and the other
sellers identified therein. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]+

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Regal Rexnord Corporation, effective July 2 6, 2024 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Form 8-K, filed
on July 30, 2024

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Regal Rexnord Corporation, effective October 4, 2021 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed on November 10, 2021]

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2022, among Regal Rexnord Corporation, Land Newco, Inc., the other subsidiary borrowers party thereto, the
lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

March 31, 2022
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/82811/000008281122000069/exhibit22-hamiltonsunstr.htm
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000082811/000008281124000156/regalrexnordcorporation-am.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000082811/000008281124000156/regalrexnordcorporation-am.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000082811/000008281124000156/regalrexnordcorporation-am.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/82811/000008281121000161/phoenix-regalarbylawsoct.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/82811/000008281121000161/phoenix-regalarbylawsoct.htm
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Note Purchase Agreement, dated April 7, 2022, among Regal Rexnord Corporation and each of the Purchasers signatory thereto [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 11, 2022]+

Eirst Amendment, dated as of November 17, 2022, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2022. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal
Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 17, 2022]

Second Amendment, dated as of December 17, 2024, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2022 **

Assumption Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2022, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 28, 20 22 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2022

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2022, by and among Regal Rexnord Corporation and each of the Purchasers signatory thereto _[Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2022]+

Indenture, dated January 24, 2023, between Regal Rexnord Corporation, the Guarantors (as defined therein) and U.S. Bank Trust Company. National Association, as trustee, including the
Form of Note attached as an exhibit thereto [Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and 4.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2023]
Supplemental Indenture, dated March 27, 2023, by and among Regal Rexnord Corporation, the Additional Guarantors and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 27, 2023]

Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 24, 2023, between Regal Rexnord Corporation, the Regal Guarantors (as defined therein) and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC as representative of
the several initial purchasers listed in Schedule 1 to the purchase agreement relating to the Notes [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on
Eorm 8-K filed on January 24, 2023

Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of March 12, 2019, between Regal Rexnord Corporation and Louis V. Pinkham _[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2019.]

First Amendment, dated November 3, 2023, to the Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 12, 2019, between Louis V. Pinkham and Regal Rexnord Corporation [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 7, 2023.

Regal Rexnord Corporation Executive Severance Policy. effective November 3, 2023 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on November 7, 2023.

Regal Rexnord Corporation Amended and Restated Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective October 24, 2024 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal
Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2024.

Regal Rexnord Corporation Supplemental Defined Contribution Retirement Plan_[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on

Eebruary 26, 2020

Regal Rexnord Corporation Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan For Salary Level 27 & 30 Employees, (n/k/a Regal Beloit Restoration Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 26, 2020]
Target Supplemental Retirement Plan for designated Officers and Key Employees, as amended and restated [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on November 2, 2010]

Form of Participation Agreement for Target Supplemental Retirement Plan_[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
Eebruary 26, 2020]

Regal Beloit America, Inc. Pension Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2017, and subsequent amendments _[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Plan_[Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A for the Regal
Rexnord Corporation 2013 annual meeting of shareholders held April 29, 2013]
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10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Plan_[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2013]

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Pl Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2013]

Form of TSR Based Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Plan _[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2013]

Form of EBIT Based Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Pl _an [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2016]

Form of ROIC Based Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2013 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2017]

Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective October 4, 2021 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement (Stock Settled) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan _[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Regal
Rexnord Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 24, 2023]

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Stock Settled) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 24, 2023]

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Amended to Include Dividend Equivalent Units) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.24 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (Return on Invested Capital — Amended to Include Dividend Equivalent Units) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive
Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (Total Shareholder Return) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan_[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to
Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 24, 2023]

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Stock Settled — Replacement to Zurn RSU Award) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan__[Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Stock Settled — Replacement to Zurn PSU Award) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan _[Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (Replacement to Zurn Option Award — Non-US) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2018 Equity Incentive Plan [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.31 to Regal Rexnord Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2022]

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly Rexnord Corporation), Land Newco, Inc. and Regal Rexnord
Corporation [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly Rexnord Corporation), Land Newco, Inc. and Regal Rexnord Corporation
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021]

Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly Rexnord Corporation), Land _Newco, Inc. and Regal Rexnord
Corporation [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021]

Intellectual Property Matters Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly Rexnord Corporation), Land Newco, Inc. and Regal Rexnord
Corporation [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021]
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10.29 Real Estate Matters Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2021, by and among Rexnord Corporation Zurn Water Solutions Corporation (formerly Rexnord Corporation). Land Newco, Inc. and

Regal Rexnord Corporation [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2021

10.3* Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective April 25, 2023 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on April 28, 2023]

10.31* Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Registration 1t on Form S-8 filed on May 10, 2023]

10.32* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Stock Settled) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Regal

Rexnord Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on May 10, 2023]

10.33* Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (Return on Invested Capital) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7
to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on May 10, 2023]
10.34* Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (Total Shareholder Return) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan _ [Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit
10.40 to the Regal Rexnord Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 26, 2024]
10.35* Eorm of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Directors under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Regal Rexnord
Corporation’s Registration 1t on Form S-8 filed on May 10, 2023]
10.36* Regal Rexnord Supplemental Retirement Plan, as Amended and Restated Effective April 22, 2024 [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Regal Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2024]
10.37* Form of Restricted Share Unit Award for Agreement for Directors under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Regal
Rexnord Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2024]
10.38* Eorm of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan**
10.39* Eorm of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan**
10.40% Form of Restricted Share Unit Award for Agreement for Directors under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan**
191 Regal Rexnord Corporation Insider Prohibited Policy**
21.1 Significant Subsidiaries of Regal Rexnord Corporation**
22 List of Guarantor Subsidiaries of Guaranteed Securities**
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.**
311 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
31.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
32.1 Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
97 Regal Rexnord Corporation Recovery Policy *
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

* A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** Furnished herewith.

+ Schedules (or similar attachments) to this Exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Items 601(a)(5) and/or 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of all omitted schedules to the Securities
Exchange
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Commission on a confidential basis upon request.

(b) Exhibits- see (a)3., above.

(c) See (a)2., above.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 21st day of February 2025.
REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION

By: /sl ROBERT J. REHARD
Robert J. Rehard

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

By: /s/ ALEXANDER P. SCARPELLI

Alexander P. Scarpelli

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Is/ LOUIS V. PINKHAM

Louis V. Pinkham

Isl JAN A. BERTSCH

Jan A. Bertsch

/sl STEPHEN M. BURT

Stephen M. Burt

/s/ THEODORE D. CRANDALL

Theodore D. Crandall

/sl MICHAEL P. DOSS

Michael P. Doss

/sl MICHAEL F. HILTON

Michael F. Hilton

/sI RAKESH SACHDEV

Rakesh Sachdev

/s CURTIS W. STOELTING

Curtis W. Stoelting

/s ROBIN A. WALKER-LEE

Robin A. Walker-Lee

Director and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director, Chairman

Director

Director

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025

February 21, 2025



SCHEDULE Il
REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Balance Beginning of
Year Charged to D i (a) Adjustments (b) Balance End of Year

(Dollars in Millions)
Allowance for Credit Losses:

2024 $ 303 $ 34 3 (38) $ — 3 29.9
2023 309 (04) (41) 39 30.3
2022 18.7 29 (17) 11.0 309

(@ Deductions consist of write offs charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts.
® Adjustments for 2023 and 2022 consist of purchase i j and ion. See Note 2 - Policies for additional information. 2023 adjustments also include $ 5.8 million reclassified to Assets Held for Sale for the industrial motors and generators businesses within
the Industrial Systems segment. See Note 3 - and Di for more
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ITEM 16 - FORM 10-K SUMMARY

Not Applicable
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Execution Version

SECOND AMENDMENT

SECOND AMENDMENT, dated as of December 17, 2024 (this “Amendment™), to the
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2022 (as amended by the First
Amendment, dated as of November 17, 2022 and as modified by the Incremental Assumption Agreement,
dated as of November 30, 2022, the “Existing Credit Agreement”, and the Existing Credit Agreement as
amended by this Amendment, the “Amended Credit Agreement™), among Regal Rexnord Corporation, a
Wisconsin corporation (the “Parent”™), Land Newco, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the
Subsidiary Borrowers from time to time party thereto, the Lenders from time to time party thereto, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Existing Credit Agreement, the Lenders have agreed to make,
and have made, certain loans and other extensions of credit to the Borrowers;

WHEREAS, Parent has requested that certain amendments be made to the Existing Credit
Agreement pursuant to Section 14.1 as described herein;

WHEREAS, in furtherance thereof, each party hereto hereby consents to the modifications
to the Existing Credit Agreement as set forth in Section 2 below.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants hereinafter
set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1.  Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the
Amended Credit Agreement and used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Amended Credit
Agreement.

SECTION 2.  Amendments. Clause (h) of the definition of “EBITDA” is hereby
amended by deleting the words “within 24 months™ and replacing them with “within 36 months”.

SECTION 3.  Conditions to Effectiveness.

3.1. Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective as of the first date (the
“Amendment Effective Date™) on which the following conditions have been satisfied (or waived in
compliance with Section 14.1 of the Existing Credit Agreement):

(a) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received counterparts of this
Amendment duly executed by each of Parent, the Company, the Administrative Agent and the Required
Lenders.

(b) Parent shall have paid all fees (including pursuant to the fee letter entered into in
connection with this Amendment) and other amounts due and payable on or prior to the Amendment
Effective Date, including all reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable and
documented fees, charges and disbursements of counsel) required to be reimbursed or paid hereunder or
under any other Loan Document, in each case, for which invoices have been presented to the Borrower at
least one Business Day prior to the Amendment Effective Date.




SECTION 4.  Representations and Warranties.

4.1. Each of Parent and the Company represents and warrants to each of the Lenders and
the Administrative Agent that as of the Amendment Effective Date:

(a) The execution and delivery by each of Parent and the Company of this Amendment
and the performance by each of Parent and the Company of the Amended Credit Agreement are within the
organizational powers of each of Parent and the Company and have been duly authorized by all necessary
organizational action on the part of Parent or the Company, as applicable. Each of this Amendment and the
Amended Credit Agreement is the legal, valid and binding obligation of Parent and the Company,
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws
affecting the enforceability of creditors’ rights generally and to general principles of equity.

(b) The representations and warranties of Parent and the Company set forth in the
Amended Credit Agreement (excluding Section 9.5, Section 9.6 and Section 9.8) are true and correct in all
material respects with the same effect as if then made (except to the extent stated to relate to an earlier date,
in which case such representations and warranties were true and correct in all material respects as of such
earlier date).

(c) No Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.
SECTION 5.  Effect of Amendment.

5.1. Except as expressly set forth herein, this Amendment shall not by implication or
otherwise limit, impair, constitute a waiver of or otherwise affect the rights and remedies of the Lenders or
the Administrative Agent under the Amended Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document, and shall
not alter, modify, amend or in any way affect any of the terms, conditions, obligations, covenants or
agreements contained in the Amended Credit Agreement or any other provision of the Amended Credit
Agreement or of any other Loan Document, all of which are ratified and affirmed in all respects and shall
continue in full force and effect. The Company and each other Loan Party (i) acknowledges, renews and
extends its continued liability under the Amended Credit Agreement and any other Loan Document and (ji)
acknowledges and agrees that, after giving effect to this Amendment its guarantee continues in full force
and effect, unimpaired, uninterrupted and undischarged. Nothing herein shall be deemed to entitle the
Company to a consent to, or a waiver, amendment, modification or other change of, any of the terms,
conditions, obligations, covenants or agreements contained in the Amended Credit Agreement or any other
Loan Document in similar or different circumstances and nothing in this Amendment shall be deemed to
be a novation of any obligations under the Existing Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document.

5.2. On and after the Amendment Effective Date, each reference in the Amended Credit
Agreement to “this Agreement”, “hereunder”, “hereof”, “herein”, or words of like import, and each
reference to the Existing Credit Agreement in any other Loan Document shall be deemed a reference to the
Amended Credit Agreement as amended hereby. This Amendment shall constitute a “Loan Document” for
all purposes of the Amended Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

SECTION 6. General.

6.1, GOVERNING LAW, THIS AMENDMENT AND ANY CLAIMS,
CONTROVERSY, DISPUTE OR CAUSE OF ACTION (WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR
OTHERWISE) BASED UPON, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT SHALL
BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK.




6.2. Costs and Expenses. The Company agrees to reimburse the Administrative Agent for
its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with this Amendment, including the
reasonable and documented fees, charges and disbursements of Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP, primary
counsel for the Administrative Agent.

6.3. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by one or more of the parties to this
Amendment on any number of separate counterparts, and all of said counterparts taken together shall be
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,”
“delivery,” and words of like import in or relating to this Amendment and/or any document to be signed in
connection with this Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be deemed to include
Electronic Signatures (as defined below), deliveries or the keeping of records in electronic form, each of
which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature, physical
delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be. As used herein,
“Electronic Signatures” means any electronic symbol or process attached to, or associated with, any
contract or other record and adopted by a person with the intent to sign, authenticate or accept such contract
or record. Delivery of an executed signature page of this Amendment by email or facsimile transmission
(or other electronic transmission) shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart hereof.

6.4. Headings. The headings of this Amendment are used for convenience of reference
only, are not part of this Amendment and shall not affect the construction of, or be taken into consideration
in interpreting, this Amendment.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly
exccuted and delivered by their respective duly authorized officers as of the day and year first above
written.

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION, as Parent

: Hugo Dubovoy, Ji
Title: Executive Vice President, General Counsel &
Corporate Secretary

LAND NEWCO, Wy

Name: Alexander Scarpelli
Title: Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer

Signature Page to Second Amendment




JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, an Issuing Bank, a Swing Line Lender and a
Lender

By:

M
(/Name: Zachary Bfine
Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Bank of America, N.A., as a Lender

s —

By:

Name: Katherine L. Plotner
Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

M@W

Name ﬂry Ann Hawley
Title: 1ce President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

Name: JDSG]*‘[ Plantier
Title: Assistant Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




TRUIST BANK, as a Lender

By: %M;;

Name: Alexander Harrison
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




CITIBANK, N.A, as a Lender

sl [ e

Name: Matthew Anderson
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




MUFG Bank, Lid., as a Lender

By: \/
me: Jorge Georgalos
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a
Lender

By: Z —— %//?;‘/L
Name£Casey Klepéch

Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




TD Bank, N.A., as a Lender

W Benadetts (ollina

By:
Name: M. Bernadette Collins
Title:  Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




[REGIONS BANK], as a Lender

By: c&uﬁ/ofﬂz/b 9, 5)%

Name: Christopher J. Brearey v
Title: Director — Credit Products

Signature Page to Second Amendment
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BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA, S.A.
NEW YORK BRANCH, as a Lender

o Co P

Name: Cara Ytunger
Title: Managing Director

By:MééfrW

Name: Armen Semizian 7
Title: Managing Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




FIFTH THIRD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender

By: W@ ‘H’H/"\“‘/"/“

Name: Ann Harrington ¥
Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




CITIZENS BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By! , ’Z (&’t_ﬂd_

Name: Martin Rohan
Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




BARCLAYS BANK PLC, as a Lender

Y[ )
{ U:'VL, A rAAST

o

By:
Name: Charlene Saldanha
Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND
INVESTMENT BANK, as a Lender

By:d/\?’:gf

Name: David Sharp
Title: Managing Director

By: / s

Name: Gordon Yip
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




The Bank of East Asia, Limited, New York Branch, as a
Lender

By S N

Name: James Hua
Title: DGM & Head of Corporate Banking

By

.Name: Chong Tan
Title: DGM & Head of Risk Management

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, as a Lender
H?bu\ A—f_l ,\7
By:

Name: Jun Ashley
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




KeyBank National Association, as a Lender

" 'Name: Andrew Sennett \‘Q

Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amename:,




The Huntington National Bank, as a Lender

By: MMQM
Name: Neil G. Mésch
Title: Managing Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment

Internal Use




M&T Bank, as a Lender

By: AT WL LA WS

Name: Katfiryn Williams
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




CAPITAL ONE, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a
Lender

By:“\/\)(vv/

Name: William Panagis
Title: Duly Authorized Signatory

Signature Page to Second Amendment




THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA, as a Lender

AdeanOaman

By:
Name: Adnan Osman
Title: Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Associated Bank, N.A., as a Lender

Name: Corey Davis
Title:  Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




FIRST HAWAIIAN BANK, as a Lender

By: /&ML mﬂ»ﬂ

4
Derek Chang f
Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




BANCO DE SABADELL, S.A., MIAMI BRANCH,

as a Lender
By: __By: e
Name:
Name: Title Envlqus Castifo
h Head of Corporate Banking
Title:

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Mega International Commercial Bank Co. Ltd., New
York Branch, as a Lender

" vjf[

Name Tsung Yao Tshi
Title: AVP

Signature Page to Second Amendment




TAITWAN BUSINESS BANK, L.OS ANGELES
BRANCH, as a Lender

by Mebyn &7

-Na.met Melissa Chel
Title: V.P. & GenerallManager

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Trustmark National Bank, as a Lender

By:

Name: Mark Stubblefield
Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Second Amendment




Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as a Lender

By: 2[ y@
Name: Robert §. Valcq
Title: Executive Direcfor

Signature Page to Second Amendment




BMO Bank N.A., as a Lender

LA we

Anthony W, Bartell
Senior Vigé President & Director

Signature Page to Second Amendment




The Northern Trust Company, as a Lender

By:

Name: Lisa DeCristofaro
Title: SVP

Signature Page to Second Amendment

NTAC:3NS-20







Exhibit 10.38

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION - 2023 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AWARD

[Name]
[Address]

Dear
You have been granted an award of Performance Share Units (this “Award”) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) with the following terms and conditions:
Grant Date: , 20

Number of Performance Target PSUs:
Share Units (“PSUs”):  Maximum PSUs: [__] x Target

Performance Period: Fiscal Years -
Vesting: The number of PSUs which may vest under this Award will be determined based on the level of achievement of each of the following (the “Performance Metrics”):
(i) The Company’s total shareholder return relative to the designated peer group as set forth and modified from time to time by the Administrator (the “Peer Group”) (“Relative TSR");

(i) The Company’s return on invested capital (‘ROIC");

(iii) Contributions to the Company’s EBITDA from cross-marketing and cost savings (the “Synergies”) attributable to our 2021 combination with Rexnord Corporation’s Process & Motion
Control Business and our 2023 acquisition of Altra Industrial Motion Corp. (the “Acquisitions”); and

(iv) A performance multiplier (the “Revenue Multiplier”) based on the Company’s compounded annual growth rate (“‘CAGR”).

The total number of PSUs which may vest pursuant to this Award will equal the product of (A) the sum of the number of PSUs that vest under each of the Performance Metrics described
in clauses (i) through (iii) above and (B) the Revenue Multiplier. No more than 3x the Target PSUs may vest under this Award.

The calculations described below will be completed by the Administrator, in its discretion, on or after the end of the Performance Period, after which the Administrator, in its sole
discretion, will certify the achievement of applicable goal(s) and determine the number of PSUs that vest, if any. PSUs will be considered to have vested, if any, on the date the
Administrator certifies achievement of the applicable



Performance Metrics:

goal(s). Any PSUs that are not vested on such date shall be forfeited as of such date.

Relative TSR PSUs

One-third of the Target PSUs are subject to the Relative TSR Performance Metric (the “Target Relative TSR PSUs”). Relative TSR will be calculated by comparing the Company’s total
shareholder return (“TSR”) over the Performance Period relative to the TSR of the Company’s Peer Group. TSR shall be calculated using the comparatively determined trading prices
over equivalent measurement periods or points in time, both on or prior to the first day of the Performance Period and ending on or prior to the last day of the Performance Period. The
percentiles goals (including the minimum, target and maximum) will be communicated to you separately.

The number of Relative TSR PSUs which may vest for the Performance Period will be as follows:

* Relative TSR at or below minimum = Zero (0);
« Relative TSR at target = Target Relative TSR PSUs; or
« Relative TSR at or above maximum = [__]x Target Relative TSR PSUs.

For performance between minimum and target, and between target and maximum, straight-line interpolation will apply to determine the number of Relative TSR PSUs vested.

ROIC PSUs

One-third of the Target PSUs are subject to the ROIC Performance Metric (the “Target ROIC PSUs"). The number of ROIC PSUs which may vest will be based on the Company’s ROIC
and improvement in ROIC for one or more fiscal years in the Performance Period (each, an “ROIC Goal”). ROIC for each fiscal year in the Performance Period will be calculated as (i)
the Company’s adjusted net operating profit after tax, divided by (ii) the Company’s total invested capital as of the end of such fiscal year, in each case as determined by the
Administrator in its discretion.

The ROIC Goals applicable to each year (including the minimum, target and maximum) within the Performance Period will be communicated to you separately.
The number of ROIC PSUs which may vest for each ROIC Goal will be as follows:
+ ROIC Goal at or below minimum = Zero (0);

* ROIC Goal at target = 25% of Target ROIC PSUs; or
+ ROCI Goal at or above maximum = [__]x 25% of Target ROIC PSUs.



Synergy PSUs

Employment Termination:

For performance between minimum and target, and between target and maximum, straight-line interpolation will apply to determine the number of ROIC PSUs vested.

One-third of the Target PSUs are subject to the Synergies Performance Metric (the “Target Synergy PSUs”). The number of Synergy PSUs which may vest will be based on the
Synergies achieved during one or more years in the Performance Period (the “Synergy Goals”). The amount of Synergies achieved for each year in the Performance Period will be
calculated as the sum of the total EBITDA contributions from cross-marketing and cost savings attributable to the Acquisitions, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion.

The Synergy Goals for the Performance Period (including the minimum, target, above target and maximum) and the applicable periods for measurement of such goals will be
communicated to you separately.

The number of Synergy PSUs which may vest for the Performance Period will be as follows:

+ Synergy Goals below minimum = Zero (0);

* Synergy Goals at minimum = 25% of Target Synergy PSUs;

« Synergy Goals at target = Target Synergy PSUs; or

« Synergy Goals at or above maximum =[__]x Target Synergy PSUs.

For performance between minimum and target, and between target and maximum, interpolation as separately communicated to you will apply to determine the number of Synergy PSUs
which may vest.

Revenue Multiplier
The Revenue Multiplier is a single figure based on the achievement of the Company’s CAGR goal for the Performance Period, which goal will be communicated to you separately. The

Revenue Multiplier will be:

« CAGR goal at threshold = [__]x Revenue Multiplier
* CAGR goal at maximum = [__]x Revenue Multiplier

For performance between threshold and maximum, straight-line interpolation will apply to determine the Revenue Multiplier.
If your employment with the Company and its Affiliates terminates (i) due to Retirement before the date that PSUs vest, or (ii) due to death or Disability, you will continue to be eligible to

vest in the PSUs on a pro-rated basis by multiplying the total number of PSUs that vest based on the Performance Metrics, each determined after the end of the Performance Period, by
a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days you were employed during the Performance Period, and



the denominator of which is 1,095, subject to your compliance with the “Restrictive Covenants” provisions below.

For purposes hereof, you will be considered to have terminated due to “Retirement” if all of the following conditions have been met as of the date of your termination: (1) you have
remained in employment with the Company and its Affiliates for at least nine (9) months after the Grant Date; (2) you have provided the Company with at least six (6) months advance
written notice of your retirement date (unless waived in whole or part by the Company); (3) you have attained at least age 55 and your age plus years of service with Company and its
Affiliates is at least equal to 68; (4) you have cooperated, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Company, with respect to the transfer of your duties; and (5) your most recent performance
rating was not the lowest rating. For purposes of determining your years of service with the Company or an Affiliate, your service with an entity prior to its acquisition by the Company or
an Affiliate shall count, provided such service was continuous at the time of the acquisition.

For purposes hereof, a “Disability” means your physical or mental incapacity which qualifies you to collect a benefit under a long-term disability plan maintained by the Company or an
Affiliate, or any such similar mental or physical condition which the Administrator determines to be a disability, regardless of whether either you or your condition is covered by any such
long-term disability plan. You must provide proof of Disability if requested by the Administrator.

If your employment with the Company and its Affiliates terminates (voluntarily or involuntarily) before the date that PSUs vest in any circumstance not described above, then all of your
PSUs will be forfeited.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Award is terminated immediately if the Company or an Affiliate terminates your employment for Cause, or if your employment is
terminated at a time when you could be terminated for Cause. In addition, if you are not terminated for Cause but the Administrator later determines that you could have been terminated
for Cause if all facts had been known at that time, this Award will terminate immediately on the date of such determination. For purposes hereof, “Cause” means your act or omission that
the Administrator determines constitutes cause for termination, including but not limited to any of the following: (1) a material violation of any Company or Affiliate policy, including any
policy contained in the Company Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (2) embezzlement from, or theft of property belonging to, the Company or any Affiliate; (3) willful failure to
perform or gross negligence in the performance of assigned duties; or (4) other intentional misconduct, whether related to employment or otherwise, that has, or has the



potential to have, an adverse effect on the business conducted by the Company or its Affiliates.

Change of Control:  Upon a Change of Control, this Award will be treated as provided in the Plan. In addition, notwithstanding the definition of “Cause” above, during the twenty-four (24) month period following a
Change of Control, the definition of “Cause” for purposes of this Award shall be limited to (1) your engagement in intentional conduct not taken in good faith that the Company
establishes, by clear and convincing evidence, has caused demonstrable and serious financial injury to the Company, as evidenced by a determination in a binding and final judgment,
order or decree of a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, in effect after exhaustion or lapse of all rights of appeal, in an action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative; (2) your conviction of a felony (as evidenced by binding and final judgment, order or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, in effect after
exhaustion of all rights of appeal), which substantially impairs your ability to perform your duties or responsibilities; or (3) your continuing willful and unreasonable refusal to perform your
duties or responsibilities (unless significantly changed without your consent).

Issuance of Shares: As soon as reasonably practicable after any PSUs have vested, the Company will issue to you a number of Shares equal to the number of PSUs that have been vested. Any fractional Share
shall be cancelled. In all events such settlement of any vested PSUs shall occur no later than March 15 of the year following the year in which PSUs are no longer subject to a
substantial risk of forfeiture, unless delivery is deferred pursuant to a nonqualified deferred compensation plan, if allowed by the Company, in each case in accordance with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and subject to applicable withholding.

Transferability of Shares: By accepting this Award, you agree not to sell any Shares acquired under this Award at a time when applicable laws, Company policies or an agreement between the Company and its
underwriters prohibit a sale.

Rights as Shareholder:  You will not be deemed for any purposes to be a shareholder of the Company with respect to any PSUs unless and until Shares are issued therefor upon vesting of the units. Accordingly,
prior to Shares being issued to you upon vesting of PSUs, you may not exercise any voting rights and you will not be entitled to receive any dividends and other distributions paid with
respect to any such Shares underlying PSUs.

If, however, after the Grant Date and prior to the settlement date, both a record date and payment date with respect to a cash dividend (other than a special or extraordinary dividend,
including any dividend not paid as a regular quarterly dividend) on the Shares occurs, then on the date that such dividend is paid to Company shareholders you shall be credited with
“dividend equivalents” in an amount equal to the



dividends that would have been paid to you if you owned a number of Shares equal to the number of outstanding Target PSUs hereunder as of such record date. The dividend
equivalents will be deemed to be reinvested in additional Target PSUs (determined by dividing the cash dividends paid by the Fair Market Value of a Share on the dividend payment
date), which will be subject to the same terms and conditions and shall vest and be settled or be forfeited (if applicable) at the same time, as the Target PSUs to which they are
attributable.

Transferability of Award:  Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, you may not assign, alienate, sell or transfer this Award for any reason, other than under your will or as required by the laws of descent and
distribution. This Award also may not be pledged, attached or otherwise encumbered. Any purported assignment, alienation, sale, transfer, pledge, attachment or encumbrance of this
Award in violation of its terms shall be null and void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate.

Tax Withholding:  If vesting or settling PSUs results in income to you for Federal, state or local income tax purposes, or the Company is otherwise required to withhold amounts with respect to PSUs, you shall
deliver to the Company at the time the Company is obligated to withhold amounts, such amount as the Company requires to meet the statutory withholding obligation under applicable
tax laws or regulations, and if you fail to do so, the Company has the right and authority to deduct or withhold from payment under this Award or other compensation payable to you an
amount sufficient to satisfy its withholding obligations. You may satisfy the withholding requirement in connection with the vesting of PSUs, in whole or in part, in cash or by electing to
have the Company withhold for its own account that number of Shares otherwise deliverable to you upon the vesting of PSUs having an aggregate Fair Market Value sufficient to satisfy
the Company’s withholding obligation; provided that the amount to be withheld may not exceed the total maximum statutory tax withholding obligations associated with the transaction to
the extent needed for the Company to avoid an accounting charge. Your election must be irrevocable, in writing, and submitted to the Secretary of the Company before the date on
which the applicable withholding obligation arises.

Restrictive Covenants: By accepting this Award, you agree that this Award shall be subject to forfeiture, and any gains pursuant to this Award shall be subject to disgorgement, if (1) while you are employed by the
Company or any Affiliate, you compete with the Company or an Affiliate, participate in any enterprise that competes with the Company or an Affiliate or use or disclose, other than as
expressly authorized by the Company, any confidential business information or trade secrets that you obtain during the course of your employment with the Company or any Affiliate; or
(2) after you are no longer employed by the Company or any Affiliate, you are determined by the Administrator in its reasonable discretion (A) to be in breach of any confidentiality,
noncompetition,



nonsolicitation or similar agreement between you, on the one hand, and the Company or any Affiliate, on the other hand (your “Restrictive Agreement”), or (B) while this Award is in
effect, to have engaged in conduct that would have constituted a breach of your Restrictive Agreement if such Restrictive Agreement were then in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein or in any other agreement with the Company or an Affiliate, including the Restrictive Agreement, shall be applied or interpreted so as to impede you from reporting
possible violations of law to any government agency or entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress, and any
agency Inspector General, or making other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal or state law or regulation.

Recoupment:  As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this Award may be,
respectively, cancelled and recovered pursuant to (1) the Company’s Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) and/or the Company’s Supplemental
Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) (together, the “Company Policies”) and (2) any recoupment, clawback or similar requirements made applicable
by law, regulation or listing standards to the Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements). To the extent that a recoupment of this Award is required
pursuant to the Company Policies or other provisions above, you expressly authorize the Company to cancel any unpaid portion of the Award (whether vested or unvested) and to issue
instructions, on your behalf, to any stock plan administrator, brokerage firm or other third party service provider engaged by the Company to hold Shares and other amounts acquired
under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return to the Company any cash or Shares previously paid pursuant to the Award. You acknowledge and agree that the Company's
rights hereunder shall not be affected in any way by any subsequent change in your status, including retirement or termination of employment (including due to death or Disability). You
expressly agree to indemnify and hold the Company and its Affiliates harmless from any loss, cost, damage, or expense (including attorneys’ fees) that the Company or any Affiliate may
incur as a result of your actions or in the Company and any Affiliate’s efforts to recover such previously made payments or value pursuant to this “Recoupment” provision.

Miscellaneous: As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award and the Plan shall be interpreted by the Administrator and that any
interpretation by the Administrator of the terms of this Award or the Plan and any determination made by the Administrator pursuant to this Award or the Plan shall be final, binding and
conclusive.



As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this
Award, shall be subject to any equity holding, stock ownership or similar policies or requirements imposed by the Company or made applicable by law, regulation or listing standards to
the Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements).

In general, this Award may be amended only by written consent signed by both you and the Company, unless the amendment is not to your detriment. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
this Award may be modified, reduced, extinguished or canceled by the Administrator or the Company without your consent in accordance with the provisions of the Plan and the
Administrator shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to adjust the methods used to calculate the Performance Metrics.

The failure of the Company to enforce any provision of this Award at any time shall in no way constitute a waiver of such provision or of any other provision hereof.

This Award shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of you and your heirs and personal representatives and the Company and its successors and legal representatives.

This Award may be executed in counterparts.

Prospectus Delivery/Access: By accepting this Award you acknowledge that a prospectus for the Plan, along with a copy of the Plan and the Company’s most recent Annual Report to Shareholders, has been
made available to you electronically via the Company’s designated stock plan administrator's web portal.

A paper copy of the prospectus for the Plan is also available to you upon request.



This Award is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Plan. Additional provisions regarding this Award and definitions of capitalized terms used and not defined in this Award can be found in
the Plan.

UNLESS YOU DECLINE THIS AWARD WITHIN 90 DAYS, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND IN THE PLAN. YOU ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE
HAVING READ THIS AWARD AND THE PLAN.

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:




Exhibit 10.39

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION - 2023 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD

[Name]
[Address]

Dear
You have been granted an award of Restricted Stock Units (this “Award”) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) with the following terms and conditions:
Grant Date: , 20

Number of Restricted
Stock Units: ( ) Units

Vesting Schedule:  Except as otherwise provided herein, one-third (1/3) of your Restricted Stock Units will vest on each of the first three anniversaries of the Grant Date, provided that you remain continuously
employed by the Company and its Affiliates through the applicable vesting dates.

If your employment with the Company and its Affiliates terminates due to Retirement before your Restricted Stock Units are 100% vested, then your Restricted Stock Units will continue
to vest on the regular vesting dates described in the first paragraph above, without regard to your continued employment, but subject to your compliance with the “Restrictive Covenants”
provisions below. For purposes hereof, you will be considered to have terminated due to “Retirement” if all of the following conditions have been met as of the date of your termination:
(1) you have remained in employment with the Company and its Affiliates for at least nine (9) months after the Grant Date, (2) you have provided the Company with at least six (6)
months advance written notice of your retirement and have remained actively employed throughout such notice period (unless such notice requirement is waived in whole or part by the
Company), (3) you have attained at least age 55 and your age plus years of service with the Company and its Affiliates is at least equal to 68, (4) you have cooperated, to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Company, with respect to the transfer of your duties, and (5) your most recent performance rating was not the lowest rating. For purposes of determining
your years of service with the Company or an Affiliate, your service with an entity prior to its acquisition by the Company or an Affiliate shall count, provided such service was continuous
at the time of the acquisition.

If your employment with the Company and its Affiliates terminates due to death or Disability before your Restricted Stock Units are 100% vested, then you will vest on the date of such
termination in a proportionate number of Units, determined by:



Issuance of Shares:

(1) multiplying the total number of Restricted Stock Units granted under this award by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days from the Grant Date through your date of
termination, and the denominator of which is 1,095, and
(2) reducing the amount determined in paragraph (1) by the number of Restricted Stock Units that have previously vested, if any.

The remaining unvested Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited. For purposes hereof, a “Disability” means your physical or mental incapacity which qualifies you to collect a benefit under
a long-term disability plan maintained by the Company or an Affiliate, or any such similar mental or physical condition which the Administrator determines to be a disability, regardless of
whether either you or your condition is covered by any such long-term disability plan. You must provide proof of Disability if requested by the Administrator.

If your employment with the Company and its Affiliates terminates (voluntarily or involuntarily) before your Restricted Stock Units are 100% vested in any other circumstance not
described above, then all nonvested Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, your entire RSU Award is terminated immediately if the Company or an Affiliate terminates your employment for Cause, or if your
employment is terminated at a time when you could be terminated for Cause. In addition, if you are not terminated for Cause but the Administrator later determines that you could have
been terminated for Cause if all facts had been known at that time, your RSU Award will terminate immediately on the date of such determination. For purposes hereof, “Cause” means
your act or omission that the Administrator determines constitutes cause for termination, including but not limited to any of the following: (1) a material violation of any Company or
Affiliate policy, including any policy contained in the Company Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (2) embezzlement from, or theft of property belonging to, the Company or any
Affiliate; (3) willful failure to perform or gross negligence in the performance of assigned duties; or (4) other intentional misconduct, whether related to employment or otherwise, that has,
or has the potential to have, an adverse effect on the business conducted by the Company or its Affiliates.

If the application of the vesting schedule described herein would cause any fractional Restricted Stock Units to vest, then the number of Restricted Stock Units that vest on any vesting
date other than the final vesting date shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share, and such fractional Restricted Stock Units shall accumulate and vest on the next vesting date
that they add up to a whole share.

As soon as reasonably practicable after your Restricted Stock Units vest, the Company will issue to you a number of Shares equal to the number



of Restricted Stock Units that have vested. In all events such settlement of any vested Restricted Stock Units shall occur no later than March 15 of the year following the year of vesting
unless delivery is deferred pursuant to a nonqualified deferred compensation plan, if allowed by the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and
subject to applicable withholding.

Change of Control:  Upon a Change of Control, this Award will be treated as provided in the Plan. In addition, notwithstanding the definition of “Cause” above, during the twenty-four (24) month period following a
Change of Control, the definition of “Cause” for purposes of this Award shall be limited to (1) your engagement in intentional conduct not taken in good faith that the Company
establishes, by clear and convincing evidence, has caused demonstrable and serious financial injury to the Company, as evidenced by a determination in a binding and final judgment,
order or decree of a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, in effect after exhaustion or lapse of all rights of appeal, in an action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative; (2) your conviction of a felony (as evidenced by binding and final judgment, order or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, in effect after
exhaustion of all rights of appeal), which substantially impairs your ability to perform your duties or responsibilities; or (3) your continuing willful and unreasonable refusal to perform your
duties or responsibilities (unless significantly changed without your consent).

Transferability of Shares: By accepting this Award, you agree not to sell any Shares acquired under this Award at a time when applicable laws, Company policies or an agreement between the Company and its
underwriters prohibit a sale.

Rights as Shareholder:  You will not be deemed for any purposes to be a shareholder of the Company with respect to any of the Restricted Stock Units unless and until Shares are issued therefor upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units. Accordingly, prior to Shares being issued to you upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, you may not exercise any voting rights and you will not be entitled
to receive any dividends and other distributions paid with respect to any such Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units.

If, however, after the Grant Date and prior to the settlement date, both a record date and payment date with respect to a cash dividend (other than a special or extraordinary dividend,
including any dividend not paid as a regular quarterly dividend) on the Shares occurs, then on the date that such dividend is paid to Company shareholders you shall be credited with
“dividend equivalents” in an amount equal to the dividends that would have been paid to you if you owned a humber of Shares equal to the number of outstanding Restricted Stock Units
hereunder as of such record date. The dividend equivalents will be deemed to be reinvested in additional Restricted Stock Units



(determined by dividing the cash dividends paid by the Fair Market Value of a Share on the dividend payment date) which will be subject to the same terms and conditions, and shall
vest and be settled or be forfeited (if applicable) at the same time, as the Restricted Stock Units to which they are attributable.

Transferability of Award:  Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, you may not assign, alienate, sell or transfer this Award for any reason, other than under your will or as required by the laws of descent and
distribution. This Award also may not be pledged, attached, or otherwise encumbered. Any purported assignment, alienation, sale, transfer, pledge, attachment or encumbrance of this
Award in violation of its terms shall be null and void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate.

Tax Withholding:  To the extent that the vesting of the Restricted Stock Units results in income to you for Federal, state or local income tax purposes, or the Company is otherwise required to withhold amounts with
respect to the Restricted Stock Units, you shall deliver to the Company at the time the Company is obligated to withhold amounts, such amount as the Company requires to meet the
statutory withholding obligation under applicable tax laws or regulations, and if you fail to do so, the Company has the right and authority to deduct or withhold from payment under this
Award or other compensation payable to you an amount sufficient to satisfy its withholding obligations. You may satisfy the withholding requirement, in connection with the vesting of the
Restricted Stock Units, in whole or in part, in cash or by electing to have the Company withhold for its own account that number of Shares otherwise deliverable to you upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units having an aggregate Fair Market Value sufficient to satisfy the Company’s withholding obligation; provided that the amount to be withheld may not exceed the
total maximum statutory tax withholding obligations associated with the transaction to the extent needed for the Company to avoid an accounting charge (such method, “Withholding in
Shares”). Your election must be irrevocable, in writing, and submitted to the Secretary of the Company before the date on which the applicable withholding obligation arises.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act and you fail to make an election regarding tax withholding or to otherwise deliver to the Company the
amount required to meet the Company’s statutory withholding obligation under applicable tax laws or regulations, the Company will satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations by
Withholding in Shares.

Restrictive Covenants: By accepting this Award, you agree that this Award shall be subject to forfeiture, and any gains pursuant to this Award shall be subject to disgorgement, if (1) while you are employed by the
Company or any Affiliate, you compete with the Company or an Affiliate, participate in any enterprise that competes with the Company or an Affiliate or use or disclose, other than as
expressly authorized by the Company, any



confidential business information or trade secrets that you obtain during the course of your employment with the Company or any Affiliate; or (2) after you are no longer employed by the
Company or any Affiliate, you are determined by the Administrator in its reasonable discretion (A) to be in breach of any confidentiality, noncompetition, nonsolicitation or similar
agreement between you, on the one hand, and the Company or any Affiliate, on the other hand (your “Restrictive Agreement”), or (B) while this Award is in effect, to have engaged in
conduct that would have constituted a breach of your Restrictive Agreement if such Restrictive Agreement were then in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein or in any
other agreement with the Company or an Affiliate, including the Restrictive Agreement, shall be applied or interpreted so as to impede you from reporting possible violations of law to any
government agency or entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress, and any agency Inspector General, or
making other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal or state law or regulation.

Addendum: Notwithstanding any provisions herein, if you work or reside outside the United States of America (“United States”, “U.S.” or “U.S.A.”), this Award shall be subject to any additional or different terms and
conditions set forth in the Addendum. Moreover, if you relocate to or are considered a resident for local law purposes of any one of the countries included in the Addendum, the
additional or different terms and conditions for such country will apply, to the extent the Administrator determines that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or
advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of the terms and conditions of the Award.

Recoupment:  As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this Award may be,
respectively, cancelled and recovered pursuant to (1) the Company’'s Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) and/or the Company’s Supplemental
Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) (together, the “Company Policies”) and (2) any recoupment, clawback or similar requirements made applicable
by law, regulation or listing standards to the Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements). To the extent that a recoupment of this Award is required
pursuant to the Company Policies or other provisions above, you expressly authorize the Company to cancel any unpaid portion of the Award (whether vested or unvested) and to issue
instructions, on your behalf, to any stock plan administrator, brokerage firm or other third party service provider engaged by the Company to hold Shares and other amounts acquired
under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return to the Company any cash or Shares previously paid pursuant to the Award. You



acknowledge and agree that the Company's rights hereunder shall not be affected in any way by any subsequent change in your status, including retirement or termination of
employment (including due to death or Disability). You expressly agree to indemnify and hold the Company and its Affiliates harmless from any loss, cost, damage, or expense (including
attorneys’ fees) that the Company or any Affiliate may incur as a result of your actions or in the Company and any Affiliate’s efforts to recover such previously made payments or value
pursuant to this “Recoupment” provision.

Miscellaneous: As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award and the Plan shall be interpreted by the Administrator and that any
interpretation by the Administrator of the terms of this Award or the Plan and any determination made by the Administrator pursuant to this Award or the Plan shall be final, binding and
conclusive.

As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this
Award, shall be subject to any equity holding, stock ownership or similar requirements imposed by the Company or made applicable by law, regulation or listing standards to the
Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements).

In general, this Award may be amended only by written consent signed by both you and the Company, unless the amendment is not to your detriment. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
this Award may be modified, reduced, extinguished or canceled amended or terminated by the Administrator or the Company without your consent in accordance with the provisions of
the Plan.

The failure of the Company to enforce any provision of this Award at any time shall in no way constitute a waiver of such provision or of any other provision hereof.
This Award shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of you and your heirs and personal representatives and the Company and its successors and legal representatives.
This Award may be executed in counterparts.

Prospectus Delivery/Access: By accepting this Award you acknowledge that a prospectus for the Plan, along with a copy of the Plan and the Company’s most recent Annual Report to Shareholders, has been
made available to you electronically via the Company’s designated stock plan administrator's web portal.



A paper copy of the prospectus for the Plan is also available to you upon request.

This Award is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Plan. Additional provisions regarding your Award and definitions of capitalized terms used and not defined in this Award can be found in
the Plan.

UNLESS YOU DECLINE THIS AWARD WITHIN 90 DAYS, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND IN THE PLAN. YOU ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE
HAVING READ THIS AWARD AND THE PLAN.

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:




ADDENDUM

This Addendum includes additional or different terms and conditions that govern the Award if you work or reside in one of the jurisdictions reflected in this Addendum. Moreover, if you relocate to or are considered a
resident for local law purposes of any one of the countries included in the Addendum, the additional or different terms and conditions for such country will apply, to the extent the Administrator determines that the
application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The information contained in this Addendum is based on the applicable laws in effect in the respective
jurisdictions as of December 2024. Capitalized terms not defined in this Addendum but defined in the Award or the Plan shall have the same meaning as in the Award or the Plan.

ALL COUNTRIES OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES

1.

Settlement of Restricted Stock Units. Notwithstanding any provision in the Award, the Company, in its sole discretion, may provide for the settlement of the Restricted Stock Units in the form of:

a. a cash payment (in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares that correspond to the vested Restricted Stock Units) to the extent that settlement in Shares (i) is prohibited under local
law, (i) would require you, or the Company or any of its Affiliates to obtain the approval of any governmental or regulatory body, (iii) would result in adverse tax consequences for you or the Company
or any of its Affiliates or (iv) is administratively burdensome; or

b. Shares, but require you to sell such Shares immediately or within a specified period (in which case, you hereby agree that the Company shall have the authority to issue sale instructions in relation to
such Shares on your behalf).

Tax Withholding. You acknowledge that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or, if different, the Affiliate of the Company that employs you (the “Employer”), the ultimate liability for all income tax,
social contributions, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to your participation in the Plan and legally applicable to you or deemed by the Company or the
Employer in their discretion to be an appropriate charge to you even if legally applicable to the Company or the Employer (“Tax-Related Items”), is and remains your responsibility and may exceed the amount
actually withheld by the Company or the Employer, if any. You further acknowledge that the Company and/or the Employer (a) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-
Related Items in connection with any aspect of the Award, including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Award, the subsequent sale of Shares acquired pursuant to such settlement and
the receipt of any dividend equivalents or dividends; and (b) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of the Award to reduce or eliminate the your liability
for Tax-Related ltems or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if you are subject to Tax-Related Iltems in more than one jurisdiction between the Grant Date and the date of any relevant taxable or tax
withholding event, as applicable, you acknowledge that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one
jurisdiction.

Prior to the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, you agree to make adequate arrangements satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-



Related Items. In this regard, you authorize the Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Related ltems by one or a combination of the
following: (i) deducting from any payments of any kind otherwise due to you cash or Shares otherwise deliverable or vesting under the Award having a Fair Market Value approximately equal to the Tax-
Related Items; (ii) requiring you to pay to the Company or the Employer, in cash, promptly on demand, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the Company regarding the payment of the aggregate
amount of the Tax-Related Items; (iii) if Shares have been delivered under the Award, requiring you to tender Shares having a Fair Market Value approximately equal to the Tax-Related Items back to the
Company, promptly on demand; (iv) if Shares are deliverable upon payment of the Award, having the Company withhold Shares otherwise issuable under the Award, tendering back Shares received in
connection with the Award, or delivering other previously owned Shares, in each case having a Fair Market Value approximately equal to the Tax-Related Items; and/or (v) any other method determined by
the Administrator to be permitted under applicable law.

Depending on the withholding method, the Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable statutory withholding rates (as determined by the Company in good faith and in
its sole discretion) or other applicable withholding rates, including maximum applicable rates. In the event of over-withholding, you may receive a refund of any over-withheld amount in cash through the
Employer’s normal payroll process (with no entitiement to the equivalent in Shares), or if not refunded, you may seek a refund from the applicable tax authorities. In the event of under-withholding, you may be
required to pay additional Tax-Related Items directly to the applicable tax authorities or to the Company and/or the Employer. If the obligation for Tax-Related Items is satisfied by withholding from the Shares
to be delivered upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, for tax purposes, you are deemed to have been issued the full number of Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units, notwithstanding that a
number of Shares are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related Items. You will have no further rights with respect to any Shares that are retained by the Company pursuant to this provision.

You agree to pay to the Company or the Employer any amount of Tax-Related Items that the Company or the Employer may be required to withhold or account for as a result of your participation in the Plan
that cannot be satisfied by the means previously described. The Company may refuse to issue or deliver Shares or proceeds from the sale of Shares until arrangements satisfactory to the Company have
been made in connection with the Tax-Related Iltems.

Nature of Grant. In accepting the award of Restricted Stock Units, you acknowledge and agree that:

a. the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended or terminated by the Board or the Committee, in their sole discretion, at
any time (subject to any limitations set forth in the Plan);

b. the Plan is operated and the Restricted Stock Units are granted solely by the Company and only the Company is a party to the Award; accordingly, any rights you may have related to the Award may
be raised only against the Company but not any Affiliate (including, but not limited to, the Employer);



no Affiliate (including, but not limited to, the Employer) has any obligation to make any payment of any kind to you pertaining to the Award;

the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is exceptional, voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive future grants of Restricted Stock Units, or benefits in lieu of
Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units or other awards have been granted in the past;

all decisions with respect to future awards, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Administrator;
your participation in the Plan is voluntary;

the Restricted Stock Units and your participation in the Plan shall not create a right to employment or be interpreted as forming an employment contract with the Company or any of its Affiliates and
shall not interfere with the ability of the Company or the Employer, as applicable, to terminate your service relationship (as otherwise may be permitted under local law);

unless otherwise agreed with the Company, the Restricted Stock Units and any Shares acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, and the income from and value of the same, are not
granted as consideration for, or in connection with, any service you may provide as a director of any Subsidiary or Affiliate;

the Restricted Stock Units and any Shares acquired under the Plan and the income and value of the same, are not part of normal or expected compensation for purposes of calculating any severance,
resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, holiday pay, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments and in no event
should be considered as compensation for, or relating in any way to, past services for the Company, the Employer or any Affiliate;

the future value of the Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units is unknown, indeterminable, and cannot be predicted with certainty;

no claim or entittement to compensation or damages shall arise from (i) the forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units resulting from the termination of your service relationship (for any reason and
whether or not in breach of local labor laws and whether or not later found to be invalid) and/or (i) the forfeiture or cancellation of the Restricted Stock Units and/or recoupment of any Shares, cash, or
other benefits acquired under the Plan resulting from the application of the Company’s recoupment or clawback policies;

the Restricted Stock Units and the benefits evidenced herein do not create any entitlement not otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan or provided by the Company in its discretion, to have the
Restricted Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, another company, nor to be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in connection with any corporate transaction affecting
the Shares;

for purposes of the Restricted Stock Units, your service will be considered terminated as of the date you are no longer actively providing services to the Company, the Employer
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or any Affiliate (regardless of the reason for such termination and whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where you provide services or the terms of
your employment or service agreement, if any), and such date will not be extended by any notice period (e.g., your period of service would not include any contractual notice period or any period of
“garden leave” or similar period mandated under employment laws in the jurisdiction where you provide services or the terms of your employment or service agreement, if any); the Administrator shall
have the exclusive discretion to determine when you are no longer actively providing service for purposes of the Restricted Stock Units (including whether you may still be considered to be providing
service while on a leave of absence); and

neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation between your local currency and the U.S. dollar that may affect the value of the Restricted Stock
Units or any amounts due to you pursuant to the settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or the subsequent sale of any Shares acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units.

Data Privacy Information. The Company is located at 111 W. Michigan Street. Milwaukee, WI 53203, U.S.A., and grants Restricted Stock Units under the Plan to Participants in its sole discretion. The
Company is the controller responsible for the processing of your personal data and the third parties noted below. The applicable data protection laws is the legislation that regulates data protection
compliance in the country of your residence or where the Agreement is executed. In conjunction with the Company’s award of Restricted Stock Units under the Plan and its ongoing administration of such
Restricted Stock Units, the Company is providing the following information about its data collection, processing and transfer practices. Where required by applicable law, in accepting the Restricted Stock
Units, you expressly acknowledge and, where required by applicable law, explicitly consent to the personal data activities as described herein.

a.

Data Collection, Processing and Usage. Pursuant to applicable data protection laws, you are hereby notified that the Company collects, processes and uses certain personal information about you for
the legitimate purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan and generally administering Restricted Stock Units, including your [name, home address, email address, and telephone
number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, citizenship, job title, any Shares or directorships held in the Company, and details of all Awards or any other equity
compensation awards granted, canceled, exercised, vested, or outstanding in your favor] (“Personal Data”). In granting Restricted Stock Units under the Plan, the Company will collect, process, use
disclose and transfer (collectively “Processing”) Personal Data for purposes of implementing, administering and complying with its contractual and statutory obligations, as well as the necessity of the
Processing for the Company to perform its contractual obligations under this Agreement and the Plan. Where strictly required by applicable law, the Company’s legal basis for the Processing of
Personal Data is your consent. Your refusal to provide Personal Data would make it impossible for the Company to perform its contractual obligations and may affect your ability to participate in the
Plan. As such, by accepting the Restricted Stock Units, you voluntarily acknowledge and consent to the Processing of your Personal Data as described herein. Where applicable under local data
protection laws, your personal data will be processed as it is necessary for the performance of contractual obligations or steps preceding those.
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Sharing of Data with Stock Plan Service Providers. The Company and the Employer may transfer Personal Data to Fidelity Stock Plan Services LLC and certain of its affiliated companies, an
independent service provider based, in relevant part, in the United States, which may assist the Company with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan (the “Stock Plan
Administrator”). In the future, the Company may select a different Stock Plan Administrator and share Personal Data with another company that services in a similar manner, including, but not limited
to, the Company'’s outside legal counsel and the Company’s auditor. The Processing of Personal Data by the Stock Plan Administrator will take place through both electronic and non-electronic means.
Personal Data will only be accessible by those individuals requiring access to it for the purposes of implementing, administering and operating the Plan. When receiving your Personal Data, if
applicable, the Stock Plan Administrator provides appropriate safeguards in accordance with the Standard Contractual Clauses, adequacy decisions, or other appropriate cross-border transfer
solutions. By participating in the Plan, you understand that the Stock Plan Administrator will process your Personal Data for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing your
participation in the Plan.

International Personal Data Transfers. The Plan and the Restricted Stock Units are administered in the United States, which means it will be necessary for Personal Data to be transferred to, and
Processed in, the United States. When transferring Personal Data to the United States, the Company provides appropriate safeguards in accordance with the Standard Contractual Clauses, adequacy
decisions, or other appropriate cross-border transfer solutions. You may request a copy of the appropriate safeguards with the Stock Plan Administrator or the Company by contacting
data.protection@regalrexnord.com. Where required by applicable law, the Company’s legal basis for the transfer of your Personal Data to the United States is your explicit consent.

Personal Data Retention. The Company and the Employer will use Personal Data only as long as is necessary to implement, administer and manage your participation in the Plan, or as required to
comply with legal or regulatory retention obligations, including under tax, exchange control, labor and securities laws. The period may extend beyond your employment or service with the Company or
the Employer, in accordance with regulatory obligations. When the Company and the Employer no longer need Personal Data for any of the above purposes, they will cease processing it in this
context and remove it from all of their systems used for such purposes, to the fullest extent practicable.

Voluntariness and Consequences of Consent Denial or Withdrawal. Where your consent is required by applicable law, you acknowledge that your participation in the Plan and your grant of consent
hereunder is purely voluntary. You may deny or withdraw your consent at any time. If you do not consent, or if you later withdraw your consent, you may be unable to participate in the Plan. This would
not affect your existing employment, service or salary; instead, you merely may forfeit the opportunities associated with participation in the Plan.

Data Subjects Rights. You may have a number of rights under the data privacy laws in your jurisdiction. Depending on where you are based, such rights may include the right to (i) subject to certain
exceptions, request access to or copies of Personal Data the Company Processes, (ii) request rectification of incorrect Personal Data, (iii) request deletion of Personal Data, (iv) place restrictions on
the processing of Personal Data,
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(v) lodge complaints with competent authorities in your jurisdiction and/or (vi) request a information about any potential recipients of Personal Data. To receive clarification regarding these rights or to
exercise these rights, you can data.protection@regalrexnord.com. You also have the right to object, on grounds related to a particular situation, to the Processing of your Personal Data, as well as opt-
out of the Plan, in any case without cost, by data.protection@regalrexnord.com in writing. You provision of Personal Data is a contractual requirement. You understand, however, that the only
consequence of refusing to provide Personal Data is that the Company may not be able to administer the Restricted Stock Units, or grant other awards or administer or maintain such awards. For more
information on the consequences of the refusal to provide Personal Data, you may contact data.protection@regalrexnord.com in writing.

Compliance with Laws. The grant of the Restricted Stock Units and the issuance and delivery of Shares are subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental
agencies or securities exchange as may be required. Notwithstanding any provision herein or in the Plan, the Company has no liability to deliver any Shares under the Plan or make any payment unless such
delivery or payment would comply with all laws and the applicable requirements of any governmental agency, securities exchange or similar entity, and unless and until you have taken all actions required by
the Company in connection with the Award. The Company may impose such restrictions on any Shares issued under the Plan as the Company determines necessary or desirable to comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations or requirements.

Insider Trading; Market Abuse Laws. By participating in the Plan, you agree to comply with the Company’s policy on insider trading to the extent that it is applicable to you. You further acknowledge that,
depending on your or your broker’s country of residence or where the Shares are listed, you may be subject to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse laws that may affect your ability to accept,
acquire, sell or otherwise dispose of Shares, rights to Shares (e.g., Restricted Stock Units) or rights linked to the value of Shares, during such times you are considered to have “inside information” regarding
the Company as defined by the laws or regulations in your country. Local insider trading laws and regulations may prohibit the cancellation or amendment of orders you place before you possessed inside
information. Furthermore, you could be prohibited from (i) disclosing the inside information to any third party (other than on a “need to know” basis) and (ii) “tipping” third parties or causing them otherwise to
buy or sell securities. You understand that third parties include fellow employees. Any restrictions under these laws or regulations are separate from and in addition to any restrictions that may be imposed
under any applicable Company insider trading policy. You acknowledge that it is your responsibility to comply with any applicable restrictions, and that you should therefore consult your personal advisor on
this matter.

Not a Public Offering. The grant of the Restricted Stock Units is not intended to be a public offering of securities in your country. The Company has not submitted any registration statement, prospectus or
other filings with the local securities authorities (unless otherwise required under applicable law), and the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is not subject to the supervision of the local securities authorities.

Language. If you are resident in a country where English is not an official language, you acknowledge and agree that it is your express intent that these terms and conditions, the Plan
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10.

11.

12.

and all other documents, notices and legal proceedings entered into, given or instituted pursuant to the Restricted Stock Units be drawn up in English. Further, you acknowledge that you are sufficiently
proficient in English to understand the terms and conditions herein and any documents related to the Plan or have had the ability to consult with an advisor who is sufficiently proficient in the English
language. If you have received these terms and conditions or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other than English and if the meaning of the translated version is different than
the English version, the English version will control unless otherwise required by applicable law.

No Advice Regarding the Grant. The Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any recommendations regarding your participation in the Plan, or your acquisition
or sale of the underlying Shares. You are hereby advised to consult with your own personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding your participation in the Plan before taking any action related to the
Plan.

Repatriation; Compliance with Law. You agree to repatriate all payments attributable to the Shares and/or cash acquired under the Plan in accordance with applicable foreign exchange rules and regulations.
In addition, you agree to take any and all actions, and consent to any and all actions taken by the Company and any of its Affiliates, as may be required to allow the Company and any of its Affiliates to comply
with local laws, rules and/or regulations. Finally, you agree to take any and all actions as may be required to comply with your personal obligations under applicable laws, rules and/or regulations.

Imposition of Other Requirements. The Administrator reserves the right to impose other requirements on your participation in the Plan, on the Restricted Stock Units, and on any Shares acquired under the
Plan, to the extent the Administrator determines it is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require you to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be necessary to
accomplish the foregoing.

Governing Law; Venue. This Award will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the U.S. State of Wisconsin, without reference to any conflict of law principles. Any legal action or
proceeding with respect to this Award and the Plan, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect of this Award and/or the Plan, may only be brought and determined (i) in a court sitting in the
U.S. State of Wisconsin and (ii) in a “bench” trial, and any party to such action or proceeding shall agree to waive its right to a jury trial.

GERMANY

No country-specific provisions.

INDIA

Exchange Control Requirements. You expressly agree to repatriate to India all dividends and/or sale proceeds attributable to Shares acquired under the Plan and to comply with applicable Indian exchange control

laws and regulations, as may be amended from time to time. You also agree to provide any information that may be required by the Company or the Employer to make any applicable filings under exchange control
laws in India. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall be liable for any fines or penalties resulting from your failure to comply with applicable laws, rules or regulations.
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ITALY

Plan Document Acknowledgement. In accepting the Restricted Stock Units, you acknowledge that you have received a copy of the Plan and these terms and conditions and you have reviewed the Plan and the
Award, including this Addendum, in their entirety and fully understand and accept all provisions of the Plan and the Award, including this Addendum.

More specifically, you acknowledge that you have read and specifically and expressly agree to the following sections of the Award: “Vesting Schedule”, “Issuance of Shares”, “Rights as a Shareholder”, “Restrictive
Covenants”, “Miscellaneous” and the following sections of the Addendum titled “All Countries Outside the United States™ Section 2 (“Tax Withholding”), Section 5 (“Nature of Grant”), Section 6 (“Data Privacy”),
Section 8 (“Language”), Section 11 (“Imposition of Other Requirements”) and Section 12 (“Governing Law; Venue”).

NETHERLANDS

No country-specific provisions.

SWEDEN

Tax Withholding. The following provision shall supplement Section 2 of the Addendum section titled “All Countries Outside the United States”:

Without limiting the Company’s and the Employer’s authority to satisfy their withholding obligations for Tax-Related Items as set forth herein, in accepting the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, you authorize the
Company to withhold Shares otherwise deliverable to you upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units to satisfy Tax-Related Items, regardless of whether the Company and/or the Employer have an obligation to
withhold such Tax-Related Items.

SWITZERLAND

Securities Law Information. Neither this document nor any other materials relating to the Restricted Stock Units (a) constitutes a prospectus according to articles 35 et seq. of the Swiss Federal Act on Financial
Services (“FinSA”), (b) may be publicly distributed nor otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland to any person other than a Participant, or (c) has been or will be filed with, approved or supervised by any
Swiss reviewing body according to article 51 of FinSA or any Swiss regulatory authority, including the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority.

UNITED KINGDOM
Tax-Related Items. The following provision shall supplement Section 2 of the Addendum section titled “All Countries Outside the United States”:
Without limitation to Section 2 of the Addendum section titled “All Countries Outside the United States”, you agree that you are liable for all Tax-Related Items and hereby covenant to pay all such Tax-Related Items,

as and when requested by the Company, the Employer or by HM Revenue and Customs (“HMRC") (or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority). You also agree to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Company and the Employer against any Tax-Related Items that they are required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay on your behalf to HMRC (or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority).
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are a director or executive officer (as within the meaning of Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act), you acknowledge that you may not be able to indemnify the Company or the
Employer for the amount of any income tax not collected from or paid by you, as it may be considered a loan. In this case, the amount of any income tax not collected within ninety (90) days of the end of the United
Kingdom tax year in which an event giving rise to the Tax-Related Item(s) occurs may constitute an additional benefit to you on which additional income tax and National Insurance contributions (“NICs”) may be
payable. You acknowledge that you ultimately will be responsible for reporting and paying any income tax due on this additional benefit directly to HMRC under the self-assessment regime and paying the Company
or the Employer (as applicable) for the value of any employee NICs due on this additional benefit, which the Company and/or the Employer may recover from you at any time thereafter by any of the means referred
to in Section 2 of the Addendum section titled “All Countries Outside the United States”.
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Exhibit 10.40

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION -- 2023 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD FOR DIRECTORS

[Name]
[Address]

Dear
You have been granted an award of Restricted Stock Units (an “Award”) under the Regal Rexnord Corporation 2023 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) with the following terms and conditions:

Grant Date: , 20
Number of Restricted
Stock Units: Units

Vesting Schedule: Except as provided below, one hundred percent (100%) of your Restricted Stock Units will vest on the first anniversary of the Grant Date.

If your employment or service with the Company and its Affiliates terminates due to death or Disability before your Award vests, then you will vest on the date of such termination in a
proportionate number of Restricted Stock Units, determined by multiplying the total number of Restricted Stock Units granted under this Award by a fraction, the numerator of which is
the number of days from the Grant Date through your date of termination, and the denominator of which is 365. The remaining unvested Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited.

For purposes hereof, a “Disability” means a mental or physical condition which the Administrator determines to be a disability. You must provide proof of Disability if requested by the
Administrator.

If your employment or service with the Company and its Affiliates terminates (voluntarily or involuntarily) before your Award vests in any other circumstance not described above, then all
of the Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited as of the date of your termination of service.

Issuance of Shares: As soon as reasonably practicable after your Restricted Stock Units vest, the Company will issue to you a number of Shares equal to the number of Restricted Stock Units that have vested. In
all events such settlement of any vested Restricted Stock Units shall occur no later than March 15 of the year following the year of vesting unless you have elected, in accordance with
the process and rules set forth by the Company, to have delivery of your Shares deferred pursuant to the Regal Rexnord Supplemental Retirement Plan or another nonqualified deferred
compensation plan sponsored by the Company (such plan, the “Nonqualified Plan”). In such case, Shares will be issued to you in



accordance with the terms of your deferral election and the terms of the Nonqualified Plan.
Change of Control:  Upon a Change of Control, this Award will be treated as provided in the Plan.

Transferability of

Restricted Stock Units:  Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, you may not assign, alienate, sell or transfer your Restricted Stock Units granted under this Award for any reason, other than under your will or as
required by the laws of descent and distribution. The Restricted Stock Units also may not be pledged, attached, or otherwise encumbered. Any purported assignment, alienation, sale,
transfer, pledge, attachment or encumbrance of this Award in violation of its terms shall be null and void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate.

Transferability of Shares: By accepting this Award, you agree not to sell any Shares acquired upon settlement of your Restricted Stock Units at a time when applicable laws, Company policies or an agreement
between the Company and its underwriters prohibit a sale.

Rights as Shareholder:  You will not be deemed for any purposes to be a shareholder of the Company with respect to any of the Restricted Stock Units unless and until Shares are issued therefor upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units. Accordingly, prior to Shares being issued to you upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, you may not exercise any voting rights and you will not be entitled
to receive any dividends and other distributions paid with respect to any such Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units.

If, however, after the Grant Date and prior to the settlement date, both a record date and payment date with respect to a cash dividend (other than a special or extraordinary dividend,
including any dividend not paid as a regular quarterly dividend) on the Shares occurs, then on the date that such dividend is paid to Company shareholders you shall be credited with
“dividend equivalents” in an amount equal to the dividends that would have been paid to you if you owned a number of Shares equal to the number of outstanding Restricted Stock Units
hereunder as of such record date. The dividend equivalents will be deemed to be reinvested in additional Restricted Stock Units (determined by dividing the cash dividends paid by the
Fair Market Value of a Share on the dividend payment date) which will be subject to the same terms and conditions, and shall vest and be settled or be forfeited (if applicable) at the
same time, as the Restricted Stock Units to which they are attributable.



Tax Withholding:  In general, you (and not the Company or any Affiliate) shall be responsible for your federal, state, local or foreign tax liability and any other tax consequences that may arise as a result of this

Award.

If applicable law requires the Company to remit any taxes in connection with the grant, vesting or settlement of this Award, then you shall deliver to the Company at the time the Company is obligated to withhold

Restrictive Covenants:

amounts, such amount as the Company requires to meet the statutory withholding obligation under applicable tax laws or regulations, and if you fail to do so, the Company has the right
and authority to deduct or withhold from payment under this Award or other compensation payable to you an amount sufficient to satisfy its withholding obligations. Alternatively, you may
satisfy the withholding requirement, in whole or in part, by electing to have the Company withhold for its own account that number of vested Shares having an aggregate Fair Market
Value sufficient to satisfy the Company’s withholding obligation; provided that, to the extent required for the Company to avoid an accounting charge, the amount to be withheld may not
exceed the total maximum statutory federal, state and local tax withholding rate. Your election must be irrevocable, in writing, and submitted to the Secretary of the Company before the
date on which the applicable withholding obligation arises.

By accepting this Award, you agree that this Award shall be subject to forfeiture, and any gains pursuant to this Award shall be subject to disgorgement, if (1) while you are employed by or in

service with the Company or any Affiliate, you compete with the Company or an Affiliate, participate in any enterprise that competes with the Company or an Affiliate or use or disclose,
other than as expressly authorized by the Company, any confidential business information or trade secrets that you obtain during the course of your employment or service with the
Company or any Affiliate; or (2) after you are no longer employed by or in service with the Company or any Affiliate, you are determined by the Administrator in its reasonable discretion
(A) to be in breach of any confidentiality, noncompetition, nonsolicitation or similar agreement between you, on the one hand, and the Company or any Affiliate, on the other hand (your
“Restrictive Agreement”), or (B) while this Award is in effect, to have engaged in conduct that would have constituted a breach of your Restrictive Agreement if such Restrictive
Agreement were then in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein or in any other agreement with the Company or an Affiliate, including the Restrictive Agreement, shall be
applied or interpreted so as to impede you from reporting possible violations of law to any government agency or entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice, the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress, and any agency Inspector General, or making other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal or
state law or regulation.



Recoupment:  As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this Award may be,
respectively, cancelled and recovered pursuant to (1) the Company’s Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) and/or the Company’s Supplemental
Recovery Policy (as amended from time to time, or any successor policy) (together, the “Company Policies”) and (2) any recoupment, clawback or similar requirements made applicable
by law, regulation or listing standards to the Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements). To the extent that a recoupment of this Award is required
pursuant to the Company Policies or other provisions above, you expressly authorize the Company to cancel any unpaid portion of the Award (whether vested or unvested) and to issue
instructions, on your behalf, to any stock plan administrator, brokerage firm or other third party service provider engaged by the Company to hold Shares and other amounts acquired
under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return to the Company any cash or Shares previously paid pursuant to the Award. You acknowledge and agree that the Company's
rights hereunder shall not be affected in any way by any subsequent change in your status, including retirement or termination of employment (including due to death or Disability). You
expressly agree to indemnify and hold the Company and its Affiliates harmless from any loss, cost, damage, or expense (including attorneys’ fees) that the Company or any Affiliate may
incur as a result of your actions or in the Company and any Affiliate’s efforts to recover such previously made payments or value pursuant to this “Recoupment” provision.

Miscellaneous: As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award and the Plan shall be interpreted by the Administrator and that any
interpretation by the Administrator of the terms of this Award or the Plan and any determination made by the Administrator pursuant to this Award or the Plan shall be final, binding and
conclusive.

As a condition of the granting of this Award, you agree, for yourself and your legal representatives or guardians, that this Award, and any Shares issued or cash paid pursuant to this Award, shall be subject to
any equity holding, stock ownership or similar policies or requirements imposed by the Company or similar requirements made applicable by law, regulation or listing standards to the
Company from time to time (to the extent contemplated by such requirements).

In general, this Award may be amended only by written consent signed by both you and the Company, unless the amendment is not to your detriment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Award may be
modified, reduced, extinguished or canceled amended or terminated by



the Administrator or the Company without your consent in accordance with the provisions of the Plan.
The failure of the Company to enforce any provision of this Award at any time shall in no way constitute a waiver of such provision or of any other provision hereof.
This Award shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of you and your heirs and personal representatives and the Company and its successors and legal representatives.
This Award may be executed in counterparts.

Prospectus Delivery/Access: By accepting this Award you acknowledge that a prospectus for the Plan, along with a copy of the Plan and the Company’s most recent Annual Report to Shareholders, has been
made available to you electronically via the Company’s designated stock plan administrator's web portal.

A paper copy of the prospectus for the Plan is also available to you upon request.

This Award is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Plan. Additional provisions regarding your Award and definitions of capitalized terms used and not defined in this Award can be found in
the Plan.

UNLESS YOU DECLINE THIS AWARD WITHIN 90 DAYS, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND IN THE PLAN. YOU ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE
HAVING READ THIS AWARD AND THE PLAN.

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
By:

Name:
Title:




Insider Trading Prohibited Policy (Global)

CORPORATE Policy Owner: General Counsel

LEGAL

Effective Date: January 30, 2008 Revised Date: May 9, 2024

1. POLICY APPLICATION AND PURPOSE

2.

1.1

1.2.

2.2.

Application. This Policy applies to employees and personnel associated with Regal Rexnord Corporation, its controlled affiliates and subsidiaries (alternatively referred to herein as "Company” or
"Regal Rexnord" and meant to include the people in all business segments, organizational functions, subsidiaries, business units, plants, locations and offices worldwide).

Background & Purpose. The common stock of Regal Rexnord Corporation is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. As a result, US securities laws impose certain important restrictions and
limitations on transactions in Regal Rexnord common stock. A violation of those laws would damage the business and reputation of Regal Rexnord, and a violation of these restrictions by employees,
directors or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates (collectively, “Regal Rexnord personnel”) may subject those people and Regal Rexnord to serious criminal and civil liabilities
and sanctions.

POLICY PROVISIONS
2.1.

Material Nonpublic Information. Any information, positive or negative, that might be important to a reasonable investor in determining whether to buy, sell, or hold stock, and that has not been made
available to the general public by press release or otherwise, could be considered material nonpublic information (often referred to as inside information). Some examples of material nonpublic
information include information regarding a potential significant acquisition of another business or property, internal financial or reserve information, a potential significant new contract (or loss of an
existing significant contract), transactions in our own securities, or an important financing transaction. (The examples do not include all possible items and are intended as illustrative only.)

Prohibition on Trading on Material Nonpublic Information; Prohibition on “Tipping.” Regal Rexnord personnel who become aware of material nonpublic information relating to Regal Rexnord, any
family members or other persons that reside in the home of such personnel, any person whose trades are subject to direction by such personnel and any entity controlled by such personnel, are
prohibited from effecting transactions in Regal Rexnord stock. In addition, the Company is prohibited from effecting transactions in Regal Rexnord stock on the basis of material nonpublic information.
The prohibition described herein includes, for both the individual insider or the Company, the adoption of or changes to a Rule 10b5-1 plan. The prohibition on effecting transactions in Regal Rexnord
stock generally remains in place until the second business day following the day Regal Rexnord makes the material nonpublic information available to the general public or determines it is no longer
material information. In addition, Regal Rexnord personnel who become aware, in the course of their employment or service with the Company, of any material nonpublic information relating to any
other company with which Regal Rexnord does business may not share that information, or effect transactions in the other company’s securities, until the information becomes public or is no longer
material. Similarly, Regal Rexnord personnel may not recommend or suggest that someone transact (commonly referred to as “tipping”) in Regal Rexnord common stock while aware of any material
nonpublic information relating to Regal Rexnord, nor the securities of another company while aware of any material nonpublic information about that company.
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2.3.

2.4.

2.5.
2.6.

2.7.

Confidentiality of Material Nonpublic Information. Material nonpublic information is confidential and, as with all nonpublic information relating to the Company, must not be shared outside Regal
Rexnord or to others in the Company who are unaware of or do not need to know such information without approval.

Prohibition on Short Sales, Pledging and Certain Derivative and Hedging Transactions. A "short sale" is a sale of a stock which is not owned at the time of sale or, if owned, one that will not be
delivered for a period greater than twenty days after the sale. Regal Rexnord personnel may not engage in short sales of Regal Rexnord securities. Regal Rexnord personnel are also prohibited from
holding Regal Rexnord securities in a margin account or otherwise pledging Regal Rexnord securities as collateral for a loan. Further, Regal Rexnord personnel may not engage in transactions in put
options, call options or other derivative securities, or hedging transactions with respect to Regal Rexnord securities. An exception to this prohibition may be granted with prior written approval from the
Company’s General Counsel if there are legitimate tax or other objectives.

Application of the Policy to Bona Fide Gifts. Bona fide gifts are subject to the restrictions in this policy.

Certain Officers, Directors and Key Operational and Financial Staff Subject to Additional Restrictions. Section 16 officers and directors, as well as other executives and key operational and
financial employees who receive notice from Regal Rexnord as to this designation (‘Deemed Insiders”), will provide the Company with an annual certification in a form similar to Appendix 1, to this
policy. Such certification may, in part, modify certain of the provisions of this policy.

Post-termination Transactions. The restrictions imposed by this policy and the annual certification with respect to Deemed Insiders will continue to apply after the termination of employment or
service until the earlier of such period of time as such person is no longer aware of material nonpublic information or until the information has become public or is no longer material.

ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS)

3.1
3.2.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Appendix 1, Certification for Directors, Officers and Key Operational and Financial Staff

REGAL REXNORD RESOURCES AND QUESTIONS

4.1.

If you have any questions about what this policy means, or your responsibilities with regard to trading in Regal Rexnord stock before you act, ask for clarification and guidance from the Company’s
General Counsel (hugo.dubovoy@regalrexnord.com). Do not try to resolve uncertainties on your own. Although this policy is expressly not intended to result in additional legal liabilities that would not
otherwise exist, failure to observe it and any associated procedures will be considered a matter of extreme seriousness and may be grounds for discipline up to and including termination with cause.
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Insider Trading Prohibited (Global Policy) Appendix 1
CORPORATE Policy Owner: General Counsel

LEGAL Effective Date: November 4, 2021 Revised Date: April 24, 2023

The undersigned director, officer, or other designated key associate of Regal Rexnord Corporation or one or more of its affiliates or subsidiaries (collectively, “Regal Rexnord") certifies that he or she (the “Deemed Insider”) has carefully read Regal
Rexnord policy, 100.104 Insider Trading Prohibited (Global Policy), (the “Policy”), and agrees that (i) he or she complies and will continue to comply with all of the provisions of the Policy, and (ii) in addition to the provisions of the Policy, he or she
will comply with the window period and pre-clearance requirements and the other restrictions described in this certificate.

1. Open Window Period. A Deemed Insider may only effect transactions in Regal Rexnord stock during an “open window period” (unless he or she is then in possession of material nonpublic information concerning Regal Rexnord, in which
case he or she remains prohibited from effecting transactions even during the open window period). An open window period generally will begin on the business day following the second full business day after Regal Rexnord makes a press

release announcing its quarterly or annual financial results. For example, in a typical five business day week, when Regal Rexnord makes a press release on a Monday night or Tuesday morning, before the market opens, the open window

period will begin on Thursday. Each open window period generally lasts fifteen business days unless modified by Regal Rexnord. Regal Rexnord's General Counsel will communicate to Deemed Insiders the beginning and ending dates of each
open window period.

2. Pre-Clearance. Each Deemed Insider must pre-clear his or her contemplated Regal Rexnord stock transactions (including, without limitation, non-sale transactions, such as gifts and transfers to or from a trust ) with the General Counsel at leas
one business day before the proposed transaction. The pre-clearance requirement also applies to transactions in Regal Rexnord stock by the Deemed Insider's spouse, minor children and relatives who share the home.

3. Other Restrictions. In addition to the restrictions and limitations described above, Deemed Insiders may not effect short sales, use or pledge Regal Rexnord stock as collateral, or engage in derivative or hedging transactions with respect to
Regal Rexnord stock. These types of prohibitions are described as follows:

a. Short Sale. A “short sale” is a sale of a stock which is not owned at the time of sale or, if owned, one that will not be delivered for a period greater than twenty days after the sale. This type of transaction is viewed by many as involving a
conflict of interest for the seller or a “bet against the company.”

b. Pledging or Use of Regal Rexnord Stock as Collateral for Margin Accounts or Otherwise . Transactions using Regal Rexnord stock as collateral with respect to a margin account maintained by a broker when disposing of securities held as
collateral for a margin account could, among other things, result in an inadvertent violation of the prohibition against sales while in possession of material nonpublic information. For similar reasons, any pledge or other transaction that could
result in stock being sold without your ability to control the timing of the sale is prohibited.

c. Derivatives; Hedging. Regal Rexnord personnel may not engage in transactions in put options, call options or other derivative securities, or hedging transactions with respect to Regal Rexnord securities.
4. Other Considerations. With respect to the open window period requirement and the pre-clearance of trades, the undersigned will consider the following before trading:

a. Stock Option Exercises: Stock option exercises, other than those which also involve the sale of Regal Rexnord stock in the market ( e.g., a cashless exercise with a broker), or the exercise of stock appreciation rights, will not be subject to
the window period requirement or pre-clearance policy. However, sale of Regal
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Rexnord stock received (net of taxes) upon such exercise is subject to the open window period requirement and pre-clearance policy.

b. Rule 10b5-1 Plan Transactions. Transactions in Regal Rexnord’s stock that are effected pursuant to a properly structured Rule 10b5-1 plan approved by Regal Rexnord’s General Counsel are not subject to the open window period
requirement or pre-clearance policy. However, the adoption of a Rule 10b5-1 plan and any changes to an existing Rule 10b5-1 plan may only occur during an open window period and are subject to the pre-clearance policy, and such plan
must comply with the federal securities laws as determined by the General Counsel.

Specifically, the Deemed Insider must adopt the Rule 10b5-1 plan (a) during an open window period, and (b) and at a time when the Deemed Insider is not aware of any material nonpublic information. The Deemed Insider must act in good
faith with respect to the Rule 10b5-1 plan, and not use it as part of a scheme to evade the general prohibition against insider trading.
Other than a Rule 10b5-1 plan adopted by the Company itself, the Deemed Insider's Rule 10b5-1 plan must provide for a waiting period between the date of signing and the earliest possible trade date under the plan (a “cooling-off period”). The
required cooling-off period for directors and Section 16 filing officers is the later of (a) ninety (90) days, or (b) two business days following the filing of the Form 10-Q or Form 10-K for the fiscal quarter in which the Plan was adopted, subject to a
maximum of 120 days; the cooling-off period for others is thirty (30) days.
Deemed Insiders may not have more than one Rule 10b5-1 plan in place at the same time, other than:
«  Contracts with multiple brokers — A series of separate contracts with different broker-dealers or other agents may be treated as a single trading plan if, when taken as a whole, it meets the applicable conditions of and remains collectively
subject to Rule 10b5-1.
+ Later-commencing plans — A Deemed Insider may maintain separate Rule 10b5-1 plans at the same time so long as trading under the later-commencing Rule 10b5-1 plan is not authorized to begin until after all trades under the earlier-
commencing trading plan are completed or expired without execution.
+ Sell-to-cover plans — A Deemed Insider may enter into additional Rule 10b5-1 plans that only authorize qualified “sell-to-cover” transactions to satisfy tax withholding obligations at the time an equity award vests and the person does not
otherwise exercise control over the timing of such sales.
Only once during any 12-month period may a Deemed Insider rely on the Rule 10b5-1 affirmative defense for a single-trade plan (one designed to effect the purchase or sale of the total amount of the securities subject to the plan as a single
transaction) with the exception of “sell-to-cover” plans as described above. The determination of whether a Rule 10b5-1 plan constitutes a single-trade plan pursuant to the exception provided in Rule 10b5-1 will be made by the General

Counsel in his or her sole determination.

The undersigned understands that neither the open window period requirement nor the pre-clearance requirement protects him or her from liability if he or she effects a transaction in Regal Rexnord stock when he or she is in possession of
material nonpublic information.

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date
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A&S Industry Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
American Precision Industries Inc.
Ameridrives International LLC
Arrowhead Systems, LLC

Ball Screws & Actuators Co. Inc.
Bauer Gear Motor GmbH

Boston Gear LLC

Cambridge International, Inc.
Centa-Antriebe Kirschey GmbH
Formsprag LLC

Inertia Dynamics, LLC
Kollmorgen Automation AB
Kollmorgen Corporation

Land Newco, Inc.

Motion Engineering Incorporated
Nook Industries LLC

Portescap India Private Limited
Regal Beloit America, Inc.

Regal Beloit Canada ULC

Regal Beloit Italy SpA (fka Nicotra Gebhardt SpA)
Regal Switzerland Manufacturing GmbH
Rexnord FlatTop Europe B.V.
Rexnord FlatTop Europe S.r.l.
Rexnord I.H. B.V.

Rexnord Industries, LLC

Rexnord Kette GmbH

Stromag GmbH

Svendborg Brakes ApS

TB Wood's Incorporated
Thomson Industries, Inc.
Thomson Linear LLC

Tollo Linear AB

Warner Electric LLC

Significant Subsidiary

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES
AS OF
December 31, 2024

State/Country of Incorporation
China
Delaware
Delaware
Wisconsin
California
Germany
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Delaware
Delaware
Sweden
New York
Delaware
California
Nevada
India
Wisconsin
Canada
Italy
Switzerland
the Netherlands
Italy
the Netherlands
Delaware
Germany
Germany
Denmark
Pennsylvania
New York
Delaware
Sweden

Delaware



List of Guarantor Subsidiaries

The following series of senior unsecured debt securities issued by Regal Rexnord Corporation are jointly and severally unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by certain of its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries (the
“Guarantor Subsidiaries”):

Description

6.05% senior notes due 2026 (the “2026 Senior Notes”)
6.05% senior notes due 2028 (the “2028 Senior Notes")
6.30% senior notes due 2030 (the “2030 Senior Notes”)
6.40% senior notes due 2033 (the “2033 Senior Notes”)

Guarantor Subsidiary State of Incorporation

Regal Beloit America, Inc. Wisconsin
Rexnord Industries, LLC Delaware
Land Newco, Inc. Delaware
Altra Industrial Motion Corp. Delaware
American Precision Industries Inc. Delaware
Ameridrives International, LLC Delaware
AS Motion North America Inc. Delaware
Boston Gear LLC Delaware
Formsprag LLC Delaware
Guardian Couplings LLC Delaware
Inertia Dynamics, LLC Delaware
Kilian Manufacturing Corporation Delaware
Kollmorgen Corporation New York
Nook Industries, LLC Nevada
PacSci Motion Control, Inc. Massachusetts
TB Wood's Corporation Delaware
TB Wood's Incorporated Pennsylvania
Thomson Industries, Inc. Delaware
Thomson Linear LLC Delaware

Warner Electric LLC Delaware



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-142743, 333-193414, 333-204645, 333-224831, 333-270860, and 333-271819 on Form S-8 of our reports dated February 21, 2025, relating to the financial
statements and financial statement schedule of Regal Rexnord Corporation and the effectiveness of Regal Rexnord Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2024.

Is/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
February 21, 2025



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief ive Officer uant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
Under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

I, Louis V. Pinkham, certify that:

1

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 of Regal Rexnord Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls.



REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
Date: February 21, 2025 By: Isl Louis V. Pinkham

Louis V. Pinkham
Director and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
Under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

I, Robert J. Rehard, certify that:

1

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 of Regal Rexnord Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls.



Date: February 21, 2025

REGAL REXNORD CORPORATION
By: Isl Robert J. Rehard

Robert J. Rehard
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Regal Rexnord Corporation
(the “Company”), hereby certify, based on our knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Louis V. Pinkham
Louis V. Pinkham

Chief Executive Officer

/sl Robert J. Rehard
Robert J. Rehard

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 21, 2025



